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MISSION We are committed to:
EA EANE S
ol e creating value for our customers and delivering
quality services at world-class standard; and
REFPEEEERRERHEERBNEERS &
e delivering value to our shareholders through
maximising market share and returns.

BAMISEERNENER RRRGEES
MfEE-

Heart and Harmony
VALUES 2LEE ML
BE

e We strive for perfection through service from the heart and
work harmoniously together by complementing and
supplementing each other.

BARBORSE NETE UNBRAD RitEHES-

Can-do attitude and Commitment to quality
LERR BEAw

e We uphold a can-do attitude with integrity and are committed
to delivering quality that will earn the respect and loyalty of
our stakeholders.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director, Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan

FHITEERIFNTEF HREERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to report the audited consolidated results
of the Company together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to our shareholders.

Business Performance and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$6,302 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of 36% comparing to the
turnover of approximately HK$9,823 million in the year ended 31 December
2016. The Group also recorded a loss of approximately HK$571 million in the
current year comparing to a loss of approximately HK$2,712 million in the
last year. The decrease in the Group's loss was mainly due to the alleviation of
impairment loss on the property investment, a reduction of the net exchange loss
and the fair value gain on investment properties incurred during the year.

Trading in the shares of the Company was halted since on 3 April 2017 at
the request of the Company. As stated in the 2016 independent auditor’s
report, in which the predecessor auditor of the Company at that time, being
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“"PwC"”), did not express an audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 as a result of certain audit issues.

An Independent Investigation Committee comprised of three Independent Non-
executive Directors at that material time was established in March 2017 to
conduct a review on the audit issues. Subsequently, Deloitte Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Deloitte”) to conduct independent investigations on each of the audit
issues accordingly.
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On 10 January 2018, Deloitte issued the investigation report. For the summary of
their major findings and the corresponding recommendations, the Independent
Investigation Committee accepted the factual findings made by Deloitte as
documented in the investigation report, based on which the Independent
Investigation Committee have issued its report on 15 January 2018 and in which
it has made a number of recommendations to the Board of Directors for resolving
the audit issues respectively. Details of the recommendations and the status of
the implementation are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 9
January 2018 and 19 January 2018 respectively.

Construction Business

With Hsin Chong's leading construction industry role and remarkable track record
in Hong Kong and Asia, we strive our best to take part in the city's infrastructure
and building plans.

After these issues are behind us, the Directors are confident that Hsin Chong, as
one of Asia’s longest-standing construction groups with its firm foundation in the
industry, will continue to strengthen our solid position to sustain further successes
in Hong Kong and Asia.

Apart from the public sector, we will also focus our attention to high-end private
sector customers with our professionalism and corporate tradition. We have been
a major participant in Hong Kong's infrastructural development, and will continue
to focus our efforts on soliciting potential opportunities in the competitive field of
construction.

Property Development Business

Over the course of the last few years, Hsin Chong has pursued a strategic
transformation in its property business portfolio. Currently, the Group has two
completed properties in the first tier cities of Beijing and Guangzhou and four
properties under development in Foshan, Tai'an, Tianjin and Tieling. We expect
to grasp the new opportunities in the Mainland of China’s fast growing and
developing property market.

A ceremony to celebrate the official grand opening of Hsin Chong Outlet
Mall was held during 2017 in Foshan, Guangdong Province. The retail mall
indulges visitors with an extensive collection of chic fashion labels, both local
and international, plus a wide selection of leisure and entertainment options.
We believe this development will become a distinguished integrated tourist,
leisure, lifestyle, shopping and entertainment landmark in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Bay Area. The launch of the Outlet Mall is just an initial step in
the realisation of Hsin Chong Town's vision to develop a brand new, integrated
residential and recreational community in Lubao Town of Foshan’s Sanshui District.
Encompassing high quality homes, retail shopping, spa resorts and senior living
residences, we believe the project will assist Sanshui District to grow into an
attractive new destination to live and to visit. With these distinguishing factors,
the project would provide a renowned reputation in China’s property market and
deliver a best return of portfolio to the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Belt and Road Initiative and Greater Bay Area

China has taken the role to lead and manage the Belt and Road Initiative since
its inception in 2013, paving the way for the next stage of development, it also
highlighted the benefits for Hong Kong to leverage its strengths and role in
advancing the Belt and Road Initiative and to cooperate with other core regions to
capitalise on this opportunity.

Riding on the success in establishing regular business relationships, connections
and communications with key ministers and representatives from various
countries, such as: The Republic of Chad (“Chad”) in Africa, The Kingdom
of Cambodia (“Cambodia”) and The Federal Democratic Republic of Nepal
("Nepal”), the International Infrastructure Business Division continues to explore
and pursue opportunities in Asia, Africa, Europe, Middle East and South America.

In Asia, the Company focuses on Cambodia, Malaysia, Republic of the Union
of Myanmar (“Myanmar”) and Nepal which are relatively close to Hong Kong
compared with other continents. In Cambodia, the Company is negotiating
several contracts to develop the peripheral establishments of a sporting
competition event between Asian countries to be held in 2023. In Malaysia, the
Company continues discussions with a major Malaysian-based multinational
conglomerate for the construction of infrastructure and building developments.
In Myanmar, the Group signed a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU") in
early 2017 with an international developer to provide project and construction
management services for a 1,800 acre largescale integrated resort project in
Ngwe Saung. In Nepal, the Company is in critical discussions with the project
developer on the construction of a 25MW hydroelectric power plant in the district
of Darbang. The Company will also be invited to submit tenders for tunnels and
bridges for a significant highway project from Kathmandu to Terai towards the
third quarter of 2018.

In Africa, the Company has extended the validity of its MOU with Chad for one
year. Chad’s National Assembly President, together with some of his ministers, are
planning to visit Hong Kong again in mid-2018.

In Europe, the Company has commissioned an international property valuation
group to prepare a feasibility study on the redevelopment of a major shopping
centre and the associated commercial facilities in Istanbul, Turkey.

In the Middle East, the Company is exploring potentials in certain significant
construction works in the Kingdom of Bahrain and in the Gulf Railway which
connects all six Gulf Cooperation Council member countries.

Leveraging the competitive advantages of Hong Kong and to support its
contribution and participation to the Belt and Road Initiative, Hsin Chong
continues to perform its role as a Super-Connector and expands its construction
expertise by promoting connectivity, integrating and creating a regional economic
cooperation framework.
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The vast concept of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area
("Greater Bay Area”) have been much into details of discussion and also
supported by the National Government. As it also covers several cities area which
are Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou, Hong Kong, Huizhou, Jiangmen, Macau,
Shenzhen, Zhaoging, Zhongshan and Zhuhai. Establishing the Greater Bay Area
promotes the forthcoming development of the metropolitan areas along South
China Region and is part of the nationwide urban agglomeration plan and reform
designed by the Central Government. Improvement in connectivity among cities
can optimise their synergies and maximise economic potential of the cities.

Green Building and Sustainability Concept

Green building, which is designing and constructing buildings using energy saving
materials and techniques, will continue to influence the global construction
industry in 2018. The social trends such as sustainable and healthy living are set to
shape in future years. As an influential construction industry leader in Hong Kong,
we hope to act as a pioneer on sustainable development to maintain our superior
position.

The Group has been applying the energy saving measures in our projects and
prioritises sustainability in all of its undertakings, it sought to apply eco-friendly
practices whenever and wherever possible, minimising potential impact on the
environment. We will continue to work with our partners to promote sustainable
growth and development in other countries, where there is a wealth of
opportunity.

Financial Position

In view of the debt maturity profile and current financial position of the Group,
the priority objective of our prudent financial management is to try to reduce
the costs of finance and lengthen the debt maturity. The overreliance on any
single financing platform in the past would not meet the forthcoming funding
requirements. Our financial professional would take a proactive role to improve
the Group's cash flow through the expansion of funding sources.

In August 2017, the disposal of Hsin Chong Center provided a good opportunity
for the Group to realise its investment value with considerable financial gain.
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Business Prospect and Outlook

The management of the Company will prepare a viable resumption proposal to
be submitted to the Stock Exchange for application of resumption of trading of
shares on the Stock Exchange. And the Board will closely work with professional
parties on the listing application for the resumption of trading of the Company'’s
shares on the Stock Exchange in the near future and strive for the best return to
the shareholders of the Company. We will keep the shareholders and potential
investors informed of the progress as and when appropriate.

Looking ahead into the forthcoming year, the Group will continue to optimize
existing business projects to further enhance profitability and room for expansion
and will actively and steadily promote the development of property projects to
expand the Group's stable sources of income and consolidate the foundation of
the Group. The management is dedicated to explore different attractive business
opportunities for the Group.

In parallel to the continuous promoting of our existing business operations, the
Group brought in professional teams to study different investment opportunities.
The management will continue to develop its principal construction and property
development business and will step up its effort to identify new business
opportunities such as aged care and healthcare services so as to strengthen and
broaden the revenue stream of the Group. At the same time, the management
will adhere to a prudent attitude in identifying investment opportunities with
potentials for long-term development to further gather the Group’s momentum
for sustainable business growth aiming at achieving the goals of improving returns
for shareholders, to pave the way for a better result and prospect for the Group
and to enhance the returns to our shareholders as a whole.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to all shareholders, investors, bankers and business partners for their
continuing trust and support to the Group and to express my sincere appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all of staff members for their strenuous efforts and
valuable contribution during the past year.

LIN Zhuo Yan
Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018

6 Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

EBERMRRESE
ARREEESEE—DHATHEMEZLIR THRZ
PR X IR ERN EE EFEREEXA LI
IR R PIIEARRBNEEN EHHRERTAE F
HUSA 2RISR 7 AR R EE [ 3R © TP 8 8 SR (R AR
FBHEREEBBERBN

REXRE AEERBEEECREEKEAR E TR
BN RERER BRBZEEMERIER BXA
AEBRERARR ZENEEER - BEBRNA/N
SERERRERS| N TR -

ERBEHEPRB XL ENRE  AKE S| AFTREGN
RTANKERE BEEKEEERRETIBZZERYE
BRED UHEESHISHHEE flnREE RE
32 AR5 LA DN5R K 4 FE AN 52 B RO W A BIOIR - R B  B IR FE S
BREESHAARMEREINRERS £ PRE
AEEREEBERND N BERESKRLDHNER
RAREDMEEERFEARMKEE WRARRERD
e

g

AANERREFTS HUBERNERER REE EX
RITEBAFRAFEHEAKENBEFIAIBRIRR
DR WAEEREBETNBE—FIERON RS S
REEERBUAHRHE -

FBTTLERIFPTEE
HEE

F%& - 201853 H23H



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DM

#

Nominated subcontractors’ work of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project (“NSC")

#

I

HEXEBEZERBRDR 2017FH

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND PROSPECTS EBOBERAR
1. Financial Overview 1. HMHELOE
Change
)]

(In HK$ million) 2017 2016 Amount %
(B%RET) 2017 20165 ki %
Revenue & 6,302 9,823 -3,521 -36%
Revenue - excluding NSC* k& -FEENSC 6,124 9,379 -3,255 -35%
Gross profit £ 165 456 -291 -64%
Gross profit margin EHE 2.6% 4.6% -2.0%
Gross profit margin - excluding NSC* EFE-FRENSC 2.7% 4.9% -22%
Fair value gain/(loss) on REVRLAEZ

investment properties K&/ (ER) 707 (884) 1,591 180%
Provision for impairment of properties BEPMERERE

under development (361) (1,924) 1,563 81%
EBITDA EBITDA (42) (4,040) 3,998 99%
Net finance costs MERFBE (321) (142) -179 -126%
Loss attributable to shareholders BREGER (778) (2,734 1,960 72%
Basic loss per share (in HK cents) BREXEE (B%W0) (13.6) (48.9) 353 72%
Interim dividend (in HK cents) HERR R (ER%W) - - N/A i N/A T F
Final dividend (in HK cents) KBRS (B%W) - - N/A i F N/A T F

Note: HaF -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENARAIN
2. Business Overview 2. #EXEOE
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Hsin Chong is an integrated construction and property group in the
region, which pursues a strategic transformation in its business portfolio
by establishing a dynamic property company. While we await the property
business to deliver significant revenue contribution to the Group, our
Group's construction business remained profitable.

Change
] )]
(In HK$ million) 2017 2016 Amount %
(B¥EET) 20174 20165 £ %
Revenue &
Construction — excluding NSC BiE— TR IENSC 6,058 9,314 -3,256 -35%
Property development and investment MEZRRIRE 66 65 1 2%
6,124 9,379 -3,255 -35%
Construction — NSC B#E—NSC 178 444 -266 —-60%
6,302 9,823 -3,521 -36%
Discontinued operation (Note) BRI 7% (FfRE) - 2,163 -2,163 -100%
6,302 11,986 -5,684 -47%
Gross profit £
Construction B 139 436 -297 -68%
Property development and investment MEERRIRE 26 20 6 30%
165 456 -291 -64%
Discontinued operation (Note) B IFE T (HE) = 149 -149 -100%
165 605 -440 -73%
EBITDA EBITDA
Construction e - 315 -315 ~100%
Property development and investment MEERRRIRE 73 (4,238) 4311 102%
Corporate overhead and others CELEBRARAM (115) (117) 2 2%
(42) (4,040) 3,998 99%
Discontinued operation (Note) BRI (M) - 48 48 -100%
(42) (3,992) 3,950 99%
Gross profit margin (excluding NSC) EFE (FRENSC)
Construction B 2.3% 47%
Property development and investment MEBRERIRE 39.4% 30.8%
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Note:

The discontinued operation represented interiors and special projects (“ISP”) and property
and facility management business upon the disposal of Synergis Holdings Limited, which
ceased to be a subsidiary on 21 November 2016.

2.1 Construction Business Review

During the year of 2017, the Construction Division received total new
orders of HK$619 million (2016: HK$5,782 million), including the
following major contracts:

(i) P4002 direct contract for PPC Pile Works for Galaxy Resort &
Casino Phase 4, Lot 4 New Integrated Resort Development at
Cotai City, Macau;

(i) Contract No. CV/2016/10 Site Formation and Associated
Infrastructural Works for Development of Columbarium at Sandy
Ridge Cemetery;

(i) a sub-contract for air-conditioning installation for construction of
Sports Center, Community Hall and Football Pitches in Area 1,
Tai Po; and

(iv) a sub-contract for air-conditioning and mechanical ventilation
installation for construction of Public Rental Housing
Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phases 7 and 8.

As of 31 December 2017, the outstanding workload (excluding NSC)
reported HK$6.8 billion. Among all the contracts on hand, 79% were
from the public sector and MTR, including:

(i)  Government & Public Institutions: M+ Museum Main Works
Contract at West Kowloon Cultural District, Design &
Construction of Kowloon East Regional Headquarters and
Operational Base cum Ngau Tau Kok Divisional Police Station and
Civil Engineering and Development Department; and

(i) MTR Corporation: Elevated Road along LOHAS Park Road and
the Pedestrian Footbridge FBI, Express Rail Link contract for
West Kowloon Terminus Station South and Shatin to Central
Link contract for Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations and
Tunnels.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Mantin Heights
A B

Another 21% were from private clients, mainly include New World
Development, Lai Sun Development and Galaxy Entertainment Group.

During the year, the Group's core Construction Business recorded
revenue (excluding NSC) of HK$6.1 billion (2016: HK$9.3 billion) and
gross profit of HK$139 million (2016: HK$436 million). The revenue
for the year decreased by 35% comparing to that of last year and the
gross profit decreased by 68%, our gross margin then decreased by
2.4 percentage point to 2.3%.

Property Development and Investment Business Review

Over the course of last few years, Hsin Chong has pursued a strategic
transformation in its property business portfolio. Currently, the Group
has two completed properties in the first-tier cities of Beijing and
Guangzhou and four properties under development in Foshan, Tai‘an,
Tianjin and Tieling.

During the year, this division delivered a revenue of HK$66 million and
a gross profit of HK$26 million.

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Property Portfolio
Completed properties for investment and/or sale

0

(i)

Ui,

New Times Plaza, Beijing

At present, New Times Plaza is a famous commercial landmark
and top representative of consumption model in Xicheng District.
The property is a commercial development, comprising 15 storeys
aboveground and 3 storeys of basement. The shopping mall and car
park occupy 9 floors of the property (from 3rd floor of the basement
to 6th floor) with a total gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately
55,798 square metres (“sgm”). The apartments are located on the
7th to 15th floors of the property. As at 31 December 2017, the
apartments with an area of approximately 11,962 sgm are available
for sale or lease.

As of 31 December 2017, the occupancy rate of the shopping mall
was more than 95%. The New Times Plaza has generated stable rental
and related income for the year and contribution from the property
has been stably growing since acquisition.

Xiyang Computer City (Commercial Portion of Tian Cheng Ming
Yuan)

The property with total GFA of 26,306 sgm, consists of commercial
property and car park with 325 car parking space, is situated at
strategic location of Shipai Xi Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou City.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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New Times Plaza, Beijing
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Property under development

(i)

La Viva, Foshan

La Viva, Foshan project is located at the “Ninety-Ninth Hill” of
Dushugang Village, Lubao Town, Sanshui District of Foshan City. The
project is 40 kilometers east to the downtown of Guangzhou and
close to Hong Kong and Macau in the south. With the established
three-dimensional transportation network in the surrounding area,
it only takes one hour to get to main cities in the Pearl River Delta
Economic Zone, including Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Zhuhai, Dongguan,
Zhongshan, Yunfu, Zhaoging, Huizhou, Qingyuan and Jiangmen,
directly covering more than 100 million consumers in Greater Bay
Area.

The planned core layout includes Venice water town, super five-
star resort hotel, featured shopping center, children’s playground,
experience education base, wedding celebration square, hot spring,
golf course, regional commercial facilities, service apartment, high-end
residential area, egret nature reserve, etc.

The project is positioned as a fashion shopping center and tourist
destinations of short vacations in the Pearl River Delta targeted at
Guangzhou and Foshan in the short term, and the health preservation
resort targeted at Guangdong and the whole country in the medium
and long-term (the second residence for improved living conditions in
Guangdong, and suitable for health preservation of northern tourists
in winter).

The retail outlets with an area of approximately 98,588 sgm was
put into trial operation on 28 April 2017, and formally opened for
business on 29 May 2017, attracting more than 500,000 customers
in the first three days. The wedding plaza and the pet paradise were
completed in 2017, and are currently in normal operation. The club,
the Phase | of container hotel, and the serviced apartments all have
been completed and put into operation. The initial construction of
water park has been finished, and water entertainment facilities
such as sightseeing boat and fishing have been put into use. The
pile foundation construction and municipal supporting project of
the commercial residence project with an area of 82,000 sqgm have
been completed, and the construction engineering planning license
and construction license have been obtained. The project has been
initially positioned as the first recreation and shopping resort town in
Guangzhou-Foshan area.

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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(i)

(iii)

Commercial development project, Tai’an

The project is located in the new town in the south of Tai'an city,
Shandong Province —Tai'an New and High Tech Industrial Development
Zone. It is 70 kilometers from Ji'nan city in its north, approximately 12
kilometers from Dongyue Street in the downtown area of Tai‘an city,
and 14 kilometers from the trailhead of Mountain Taishan. The project
includes commercial properties with a total GFA of approximately
274,977 sgm. The project aims at building an integrated commercial
complex featured with tourism and leisure element by integrating
traditional business and tourism industry. Based on this comprehensive
development framework, the tourism and leisure-oriented project will
develop a variety of ancillary facilities integrating various functions
such as recreation, leisure, sports, health preservation, catering, and
retail, etc. As at the date of this report, a total of 34 blocks of two-
storey commercial retail outlet mall with a total GFA of over 100,000
sgm are under construction.

Commercial development project, Tianjin

The project is located in the core area of Tianjin Binhai Free Trade
Zone, adjacent to Haihe River on three fronts. The project is planned
to have two core themes: the first theme is to build a world-
famous cultural relics industry service zone centered on cultural relics
exhibition, identification, transaction and supporting finance; the
second theme is to build a children’s education and entertainment
industry base centered on research and development, application,
experiment and promotion of augmented reality and virtual reality
technology. There are supporting functions such as office, catering,
entertainment and business for core themes, all of which are still in the
planning stage.

b

(i)

(iii)
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(iv) La Viva, Tieling

La Viva, Tieling is located alongside the south bank of Fanhe River in
the Tieling New Town, 8 kilometres north to the old town and over
30 kilometres south to the downtown of Shenyang city. The project
includes numerous facilities such as retail, entertainment, tourist
attractions, hotel, international school, water park, residence, office
buildings and conference and exhibition facilities. It covers an area of
180 hectares and a total GFA of approximately 3 million sgm.

Residential development Phase 1 owns a total saleable area of
approximately 225,000 sgqm. Upon completion, there will be a total of
2,100 units available for sale, with average size per unit of 107 sgm.
The residential sales will be tied with the phased opening of the retail
outlets and water park.

Phase 1 of the commercial development of La Viva comprises
exhibition centre, banquet hall, club house, outlet mall and a water
park which is one of the key components of the unparalleled La Viva
experience. It will be the first round-the-year water recreation facility in
the northeast region of PRC. The total GFA of the Phase 1 commercial
development approximates to 214,743 sgm.

La Viva-Tieling
HEEUEF

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Looking Forward

Construction business

With Hsin Chong’s leading construction industry position and remarkable
track record in Hong Kong, we strive our best to take part in the city's
infrastructure and building plans. The Group, in joint venture basis with
Build King Holdings Limited, secured the Hong Kong Police Force Kowloon
East Regional Headquarters Project contract in the second quarter of last
year. Involving both design and construction works, the significant project
for Hsin Chong also includes electrical and mechanical engineering works.

In the coming five years from 2019-20 to 2023-24, Hong Kong is expected
to have 25 sites available for production of more than 60,000 flats of which
more than 80% are for public housing.

The Group's financial situation has been restraining its ability to obtain new
projects since the beginning of the year, which resulted in decrease of the
Construction Business’ turnover. This in turn cause reduction in the Group's
cashflow and increase the financing cost.

Hsin Chong has pursued strategic measures include but not limited to
disposal of assets and refinance the current facilities to restore the Group's
cashflow and liquidity. During such restoration period, the management
notice and foresee that (i) the operating progress of various projects may be
affected; (i) short term financing cost may increase; (iii) new tenders will be
restricted until the cashflow and liquidity of the Group restored; and (iv) key
staffs turnover may increase.

After the Group manages to sort out its current financial issues, Hsin
Chong, as one of Asia’s longest-standing construction groups with its firm
foundation in the industry, will continue to strengthen our solid position to
sustain further successes in Hong Kong.

Apart from the public sector, we will also pay our attention to high-end
private sector customers with our professionalism and corporate tradition.
We have been a major player in Hong Kong's infrastructural development,
and will continue to focus our efforts on soliciting new opportunities in the
competitive construction market.
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PRC Property business

Hsin Chong is experiencing a strategic transformation in diversifying our
business segment with the expansion in PRC property development.
We hope to grasp the new opportunities in the Mainland China’s fast
developing property market to form new profit-making points.

)

(i)

New Times Plaza, Beijing and Xiyang Computer City
(Commercial Portion of Tian Cheng Ming Yuan)

The Group is actively seeking opportunities to dispose the two projects
entirely in 2018 to realise value to stakeholders and improve the
Group's cashflow position.

La Viva, Foshan

The Company is applying for pre-sales license for the low density
residence with an area of approximately 24,000 sgm, which is
expected to be completely sold in 2018. The commercial residence
projects with an area of 82,000 sgqm will be available for sales
upon satisfaction with pre-sales conditions. It is planned that the
construction of the commercial residence project for sales with an
area of 300,000 sgm will be commenced in 2018, which will realize
considerable cash flow upon satisfaction with pre-sales conditions.

The supporting facilities for Outlets Business will be further improved
in 2018 to attract more customers and increase revenue.

Meanwhile, the Company will continue with the application for

"Featured Town"” in 2018, in order to obtain the special support from
the State in terms of policies and financing.

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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(iii) Commercial development project, Tai'an
The Company plans to launch the commercial operation for the
project under construction with an area of over 100,000 sgm in 2018
and commences the construction of saleable residence with an area of
175,000 sgm so as to partially realize the fund withdrawal.

(iv) Commercial development project, Tianjin
A cooperation arrangement has been concluded whereby our
partner will contribute funds for development and construction. The
arrangement is considered to be beneficial to our cashflow position
and should deliver reasonable return.

(v) La Viva, Tieling
The Phase | residence with an area of 225,000 sgqm will be available
for sale and the commercial water world will be opened for business
in 2018. The Company plans to cooperate with powerful institutions
to increase the capital investment in projects, liquidize assets and
optimize the model of operation in 2018.

Meanwhile, the Company will continue with the application for
“Featured Town" in 2018 with an aim to obtain the special support
from the State in terms of policies and financing.

International Infrastructure Business — Belt and Road Initiative
Riding on the success in establishing regular business relationships,
connections and communications with key ministers and representatives
from various countries, such as: Chad in Africa, Cambodia and Nepal,
the International Infrastructure Business Division continues to explore
and pursue opportunities in Asia, Africa, Europe, Middle East and South
America.

In Asia, the Company focuses on Cambodia, Malaysia, Myanmar and Nepal
which are relatively close to Hong Kong compared with other continents.
In Cambodia, the Company is negotiating several contracts to develop
the peripheral establishments of a sporting competition event between
Asian countries to be held in 2023. In Malaysia, the Company continues
discussions with a major Malaysian-based multinational conglomerate for
the construction of infrastructure and building developments. In Myanmar,
the Group signed a MOU in early 2017 with an international developer to
provide project and construction management services for a 1,800 acre
largescale integrated resort project in Ngwe Saung. In Nepal, the Company
is in critical discussions with the project developer on the construction of a
25MW hydroelectric power plant in the district of Darbang. The Company
will also be invited to submit tenders for tunnels and bridges for a significant
highway project from Kathmandu to Terai towards the third quarter of
2018.
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In Africa, the Company has extended the validity of its MOU with Chad for
one year. Chad’s National Assembly President, together with some of his
ministers, are planning to visit Hong Kong again in mid-2018. Concurrently,
the Company is considering other infrastructure projects, such as: solar
energy, railway, civil engineering and mining projects etc, in other African
countries, e.g. Morocco, Republic of Cote d'lvoire, Zimbabwe and Ghana.

In Europe, the Company has commissioned an international property
valuation group to prepare a feasibility study on the redevelopment of a
major shopping centre and the associated commercial facilities in Istanbul,
Turkey. Critical discussions with the project developer are on-going. The
Company also focuses on potential infrastructure projects along the Silk
Road Economic Belt in Central and Eastern European countries, such as:
Hungary and the Republic of Czech.

In the Middle East, the Company is exploring potentials in certain significant
construction works in the Kingdom of Bahrain and in the Gulf Railway
which connects all six Gulf Cooperation Council member countries.

Leveraging the competitive advantages of Hong Kong and to support
its contribution and participation to the Belt and Road Initiative, Hsin
Chong continues to perform its role as a Super-Connector and expands its
construction expertise by promoting connectivity, integrating and creating a
regional economic cooperation framework.

Tung Chung Public Housing
FRAERRE
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Health Living Concept

The Chinese government has placed high priority on improving the lives of
its senior citizens. Based on the statistics released in the Mainland of China,
as of end of 2016, senior citizens aged above 60 was over 230 million,
representing over 16% of the total population. It is forecast that the elderly
population will reach 300 million by 2025. Given the growing needs of
aged care services in the Mainland of China, Hsin Chong is actively looking
into opportunities to develop quality aged care and healthcare services with
focus in Greater Bay Area.

The Group is also in advanced stages of discussion in the formation of
another joint venture with renowned brand in co-developing on the La Viva
Foshan site. In anticipation of the potential synergy with our senior care
premises on site, a high end spa resort hotel as well as a rehabilitation and
spa centre with resort and senior living are now being planned.

Green Building and Sustainability Concept

Green building, which is designing and constructing buildings using energy
saving materials and techniques, will continue to influence the global
construction industry in 2018. The social trends such as sustainable and
healthy living are set to shape in future years. As an influential construction
industry leader in Hong Kong, we hope to act as a pioneer on sustainable
development to maintain our superior position.

Financial Position

The Group monitors its liquidity requirements and arranges refinancing
of the Group’s borrowings when appropriate. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group raised an addition of entrusted loans in
PRC of HK$4.0 billion of which HK$2.1 billion has maturity over 1 year.
As of 31 December 2017, the total debts were HK$13.9 billion of which
HK$8.5 billion were from entrusted loans and HK$0.9 billion were from
other loans, HK$3.5 billion were from senior notes. Total bank borrowings
were at HK$1,039.9 million. There are no outstanding US$100 million
6% convertible bonds due 2017 (“2017 Convertible Bonds”) in issue after
the redemption of all outstanding 2017 Convertible Bonds in full at the
redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount of
US$2,600,000 plus accrued and unpaid interest of US$30,758 in August
2017.

As of 31 December 2017, cash and bank deposits were HK$1,179.6 million
(2016: HK$1,038.6 million).

Net gearing, representing net debt over tangible net assets (net assets less
intangible assets) as at 31 December 2017, was 114% (2016: 102%).

Based on the current financial position and debt maturity profile, the primary
objective of our prudent financial management is to try to expand the
funding sources to improve the Group's cash flow and to lengthen the debt
maturity.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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5. Funding cost

Bank loans are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and floating rate
interest bearing. Senior notes are denominated in United States Dollar and
charged at fixed rate. Interest on the Group's other borrowings including
entrusted loans in PRC and other loans is on fixed rate term.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged its investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$9,210 million (2016: HK$7,310 million), property,
plant and equipment and leasehold land with carrying amount of HK$1,794
million (2016: HK$2,265 million), properties under development with
carrying amount of HK$8,746 million (2016: HK$8,575 million), stocks of
properties with carrying amount of HK$562 million (2016: HK$527 million),
other receivable with carrying amount of nil (2016: HK$512 million) and
bank balances with carrying amount of HK$392 million (2016: HK$627
million), and its equity interest in certain subsidiaries, as collaterals to bank
financial institutions and other third parties to secure its borrowings.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges
The Group operates in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Saipan and Cambodia
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in local currencies.
Foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group’s operation in
Macau and the PRC is monitored by proper synchronisation of receipts and
payments in different operating currencies. For the Group’s companies with
USD as functional currency, it is not expected that there are any significant
movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate as the HKD is pegged to the
USD. As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not use any derivative
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk (2016:
nil).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of contracted but not provided for capital expenditures on properties under
development and other capital investment amounting to HK$2,569 million
(2016: HK$2,939 million).

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group is subject to
various claims on liquidated damages of certain construction contracts
during the normal course of business. The Directors are of the opinion that
the Group has applied extension of time to mitigate the liquidated damages
and any resulting liability would not materially affect the financial position of
the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of employees in the Group was
2,111 full time staff, which included staff in different business segments, such as
construction, property development, international business and related services.
They are employed in Hong Kong, Macau and Chinese Mainland, and overseas
countries.

The Group adopts sound policies of management incentives and competitive
remuneration, which aligns the interests of management, employees and
shareholders. The chief asset of the Group remains the skills and expertise of our
loyal staff and we have rightly invested much time and effort in the selection,
training and personal improvement of our staff.

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management of the
Group. The performance measures are balanced between financial and industrial
comparatives. The components of the remuneration package consisted of base
salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus,
participation in share options scheme and long-term rewards.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
(aged 49)

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan (“Mr. Lin”), was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from 23 May 2015, and has been
further appointed as the Non-executive Chairman since 19
June 2015.

M. Lin is the Honorary Chairman of World Association of Small
and Medium Enterprises (58 /N1 E ), Permanent
Standing Vice President of China Foreign Trade Council (1
YHNE HIEES), and President of Outlets Branch of China
General Chamber of Commerce (/0 B i 2 Bt & & B 45 3¢
Hrt%=) . Mr. Lin has over 20 years of experience in large
enterprise operation and management as well as investment
and operation of mega-sized projects.

He received the Commandery of Sant’Agata Honour and was
awarded the “Prize of Most Innovative Real Estate Figures in
China for the Year" (P EIFEH AL NHEAMKLE),
“Prize for Business Leaders in China for the Year” (FR Bl E
2 %BHK42) and “Prize for Qutstanding Brand Innovators in
China” (H B an i BT D AR HR)
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
DSc, BSc, RPE, CEng, FHKIE, FHKIHT, MICE

(aged 70)

Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (“Ir Dr Choi”) is an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is
a member of each of the Executive Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ir Dr Choi is a fellow and the Immediate Past President of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (“HKIE”) as well as the
Chairman of the Planning Committee, member of the Council
and Executive Committee.

Ir Dr Choi is the vice chairman of Council of China’s Foreign
Trade of the China Council for the Promotion of International
Trade, and a fellow and a council member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Highways and Transportation. He is currently
a member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
since 1 April 2016.

Ir Dr Choi is a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers
of the UK, a chartered engineer of the UK, a registered
professional engineer of Hong Kong.

Ir Dr Choi joined the Group in August 2009 as Assistant
Managing Director and has been subsequently promoted to
his current positions. He has over 45 years of multi-dimensional
and multi-functional experience in construction industry across
contracting and client organisations in Hong Kong, Chinese
Mainland, Taiwan, Macau and overseas. Before joining the
Group, he was the general manager of the Kowloon-Canton
Railway Corporation and MTR Corporation Limited, responsible
for the design and construction of various new railway lines.

Ir Dr Choi graduated from the University of Aston in
Birmingham, United Kingdom with a degree of Bachelor of
Science in Civil Engineering, and was awarded the Degree of
Honorary Doctorate of Science from the University of Aston on
18 July 2017.
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Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun
MBA, MA, FCPA

(aged 48)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (“Mr. Wu") is an Executive Director
and the Chief Risk Officer of the Company. He is also a member
of the Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee and
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Wu joined the Group in July 2014 as the Associate Director of
Corporate Finance, and was appointed as an Executive Director
in June 2015, responsible for all merger and acquisition projects
from due diligence, negotiation of purchase agreement,
handling regulatory approvals and financial sourcing to the
smooth operation after merger or acquisition of the projects.
Mr. Wu was appointed as the Chief Risk Officer in September
2016, responsible for corporate risk management.

Mr. Wu has more than 20 years of experience in financial
reporting, investment proposal appraisal, financial due
diligence, insolvency, litigation support and forensic accounting
with major corporations and consultancy firms.

Mr. Wu was conferred a Bachelor of Business Administration
and Master of Arts in Comparative and Public History from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Executive Director

Mr. Eric TODD
BSc, AICPA (US.A.)

(aged 56)

Mr. Eric TODD (“Mr. Todd") joined the Group on 9 March 2017
as an Executive Director of the Company. He is also a member
of the Executive Committee.

Mr. Todd possesses extensive professional experience in
auditing, financial management and investment. Mr. Todd
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from Boston University in the United States. He was a Certified
Public Accountant in the State of California, the United States
from 1989 to 2010.

Mr. Todd started his career with the Hong Kong office of KPMG
(formerly known as KPMG Peat Marwick) and subsequently
joined the Standard Chartered Bank Group. Prior to joining the
Company, he had been a business consultant and also served
as finance director for several companies engaged in the media
and investment industry. Mr. Todd has been appointed as a
non-executive director of Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Stock Code: 1089)
since July 2015, and as an executive director of Kong Shum
Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (@ company
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
8181) since August 2016.

Mr. Todd was an independent non-executive director of Ngai
Shun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1246) from 18 July 2016
to 14 August 2017.
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Non-executive Director
Mr. YAN lJie
(aged 54)

Mr. YAN Jie (“Mr. Yan") has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director since 30 May 2014.

Mr. Yan, joined Tewoo Group Co., Ltd.* (KE¥EEE
AR AF]) (“Tewoo Group”) (formerly known as Tianjin
Administration Bureau of Materials and Tianjin Material &
Equipment Group Corporation, being a substantial shareholder
of the Company) in October 1983, and held positions in the
finance department, audit department and assets department,
and served as the head of corporate development department
of Tewoo Group.

Mr. Yan has extensive management experience in finance,
audit, investment and strategic planning and has presided
over or participated in a number of domestic and overseas
substantial merger & acquisition and reorganization projects.

Mr. Yan is currently the board chairman of Tianjin Property
Development Co., Ltd. (being a subsidiary of Tewoo Group),
an executive director of Tewoo Investment Co., Limited and a
director of various subsidiaries of Tewoo Group.

Mr. Yan graduated from Party School of the Central Committee
of CPC with a post-graduate degree majoring in economic
management, and holds professional qualifications of
accountant, senior economist and senior occupation manager.
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Non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Lei
(aged 34)

Mr. CHEN Lei (“Mr. Chen”) has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director since 23 May 2015.

Mr. Chen joined Tewoo Import and Export Trade Co., Ltd.* (X
EYEELOESHBER AR, asubsidiary of Tewoo Group,
in January 2015 as the deputy general manager. Mr. Chen
served as an officer of the Beijing court system and held various
positions such as the deputy department head of the legal
affair department of Tianjin Er-shang Group Co., Ltd.* (KFE=
[EESEEC]UNCIDE

He has extensive experience in the fields of corporate legal
affair, risk prevention and control. Mr. Chen has been
redesignated as the deputy department head of corporate
development department of Tewoo Group in July 2015.

Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor degree in Management from
the Beijing University of Chemical Technology (1t 5/t T AE2)
and a Master degree in Law from the Tsinghua University (&
#ERE) | He has obtained various professional qualifications
such as legal qualification (Mainland China) and corporate legal
counsel.
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Non-executive Director
Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau
(aged 51)

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”) has been appointed as
a Non-executive Director since 23 May 2015. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chui is a non-executive director of Boill Healthcare Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Ngai Shun Holdings Limited, stock
code:1246) and DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code:
559) respectively, the shares of which are all listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an executive director
of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(stock code: 8085), the share of which is listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chui was an Executive Director of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) from
5 October 2005 to 30 June 2016. Further, he was an
Independent Non-executive Director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 17 March 2010 to 16
March 2016.

He has over 20 years' experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing fields.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. LUI Chun Pong
BA, MAcc, LLM, MBA (Executive), FCPA, FCCA, ATIHK, CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS

(aged 49)

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (“Mr. Lui”) has been re-designated from an
Executive Director to a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2017. He is also a member of the
Nomination Committee.

He joined the Group in 2010 as Group Financial Controller.
He was further appointed as an Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer in September 2015. Mr. Lui stepped down
from the role of Chief Financial Officer of the Group with effect
from 1 December 2016.

While working in the Group, Mr. Lui was responsible for
overseeing the Group’s finance and accounting operations.
He has over 26 years of experience in corporate accounting,
financing and tax administration in the real estate business
like property development, property investment and property
management, in addition to company secretarial practices of
Hong Kong listed companies. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lui
held senior positions at a number of Hong Kong companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lui obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts from the University
of Hong Kong, a Master degree of Laws from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of Accountancy
from Charles Sturt University in Australia and an Executive
Master degree of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant
and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong, and a Chartered
Certified Accountant and a Chartered Secretary in the United
Kingdom.

Mr. Lui also serves the community through participation in
promoting sports and youth and students’ affairs in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lui was a baseball coach and was appointed as
a team secretary and a deputy delegate leader of Hong
Kong Women's Baseball Team to join the Women'’s Baseball
World Cup in 2006 and in 2014. For the public services in
youth and students’ affairs, Mr. Lui is a leader of various
leadership mentoring programmes in Hong Kong United Youth
Association, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Lui was a director of Hong Kong United Youth
Association in 2014/2015 and Budget Proposal 2017-18 Sub-
committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lui is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Student Affairs Sub-committee of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
MBA, BEc, CPA

(aged 74)

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (“Mr. Cheng”) has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director since 1 January 2014.
He is also the chairmen of both the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Nomination
Committee, Risk Management Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

Mr. Cheng has extensive experience in banking, finance and
investment fields. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Cheng was a director of Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
from August 2006 to June 2014 and a director of Chi Cheung
Investment Company, Limited (now known as LT Commercial
Real Estate Limited), a company listed in the Stock Exchange,
from 1997 to 2000.

He has held senior management positions in companies in
Hong Kong and overseas, as well as several companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. He has also been involved in private
consulting working in the PRC and Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor's degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration.
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Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho
(aged 73)

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (“Mr. Yuen") has been appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director since 12 July 2016.
He is also the chairman of both the Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee, a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Management Committee respectively.

M. Yuen is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited which
was listed on the Stock Exchange before being privatised on 21
December 2010. He was a director of Visteon Corporation, a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yuen was an independent non-executive director of Easy
One Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 221) from 20 March
2007 to 29 August 2017.

Mr. Yuen is a member of the Court of the University of
Hong Kong and a business advisory council member of U.N.
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific.

Mr. Yuen graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s Degree (Honours) in Economics and Political Science.
Mr. Yuen has attended post-graduate studies in International
Marketing Management at the International Marketing
Institute, Cambridge, Massachusetts, U.S.A. and has completed
the Hong Kong Administrators Course (commissioned by
the Hong Kong Government) in Public Administration and
International Relations at Oxford University, the United
Kingdom, and the International Executive Program in INSEAD,
France respectively. In June 2003, Mr. Yuen was admitted to
the Leadership in Development Program organised by Kennedy
School of Government, Harvard University, U.S.A. In June 2004,
Standford University, California, U.S.A. had also invited Mr.
Yuen to participate in its “Corporate Governance” forum and
in early 2006, the University awarded a fellowship to Mr. Yuen
as a non-profit leader at its Center for Social Innovation.
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Mr. Yuen had been Chief Executive Officer of “The Better
Hong Kong Foundation” for nine years from September 1997.
Prior to his joining “The Better Hong Kong Foundation”, Mr.
Yuen was the Assistant Director and Acting Deputy Director
of the Information Services Department of the Hong Kong
Government. Mr. Yuen played an active role in organising
significant international conferences in Hong Kong and held
multiple public offices, including being a board member of
the East-west Strategic Development Commission. From
2003 to 2007, Mr. Yuen was a member of the Pan-Pearl
River Delta Panel of the Central Policy Unit (“CPU") of the
HKSAR Government. From January 2006 to January 2013,
Mr. Yuen was a member of the Committee of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, an adviser of the Institute of Finance
and Trade Economics, Chinese Academy of Social Sciences,
an adviser of Center for Hong Kong and Macao Research,
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences, China, and an adviser
of Guangzhou Municipal Board for International Investment,
China.

Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, a member of the British Institute of Management and
the Institute of Marketing, U.K., and was also commended by
the U.S. President, George W. Bush for his efforts in support of
coalition’s campaign against global terrorism.

32

B1997F9A R RhAAEGHE[EH
RAABEFESD | 1THRAEFIEIF - IIA
[EAPXEFES | Bl REERES
B EEETTEENEERELE
BEIRE REEBGLEBHENES
B EERKgR UEEEZEA
B EheRHIRREREREREE
BE 8 ° F22003F £2007F Hifd - = 5L
4 BERBRFRITHRE BT REBUR
HermI=—AMNREHEZEEKE -
FE2006451 AZE201341 A EARS  =4E4
AT ARBCGAHE S HEAMTER
BAREZEEZ 8  hET ST &R
BELE S AT FC AR R - R B IS A
SR ERERARPLER P EE
PN T B R A (R A DV ER R o

EAEAESEERE I AREE
AERSeRERTHEeeE LY
AT ZE QG RRB TR
5B T B B B o

JF 1% B

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. LAI Chik Fan
(aged 69)

Mr. LAl Chik Fan (“Mr. Lai”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive director with effect from 8 June
2017. He is also the chairman of Risk Management Committee
and a member of Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee.

Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor degree of Science from Indiana
State University in the United States. He possesses extensive
professional experience in financial management, securities and
capital investment.

Mr. Lai is the principal of AR Evans Capital Partners Inc. He
has more than 35 years of experience in the financial services
sector, mainly in stock broking and investment banking. Mr.
Lai previously served as advisor to the Board of Directors of
Asia Securities Global Ltd. and was CEO of Koffman Financial
Holdings Ltd. He had held senior positions at various reputable
financial institutions in Hong Kong, including the role of
Managing Director at Smith Barney Shearson (Asia) Ltd., Merrill
Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited and Paine Webber Hong Kong Ltd.
He was the Group CEO of Chin Tung Financial Holdings which
eventually became part of Standard Chartered Asia Ltd. in
1988.

Mr. Lai was a Non-executive Director of CCT Fortis Holdings
Limited (stock code: 138) from 8 October 1991 to 29 June
1992, a Non-executive Director of GCL New Energy Holdings
Limited (stock code: 451) from 13 February 1992 to 15 May
1992, an Independent Non-executive Director of Shanghai
Zendai Property Limited (stock code: 755) from 18 May 2004
to 25 May 2017. Further, he was an Executive Director of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (stock code: 162) from
11 August 2007 to 9 October 2008 respectively, the shares of
which are all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

In addition, Mr. Lai was an Independent Non-executive Director
of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (stock code:
8120) from 21 October 2004 to 22 January 2007, and re-
designated as a Non-executive Director of China Demeter
Financial Investments Limited (stock code: 8120) from 22
January 2007 to 9 August 2007, the share of which is listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of the Group’s Key Personnel

SEES 2/

Group Operating Management and Corporate Service

Mr. Thomas PANG Pui Yin (“Mr. Pang”), aged 56, is Chief Operating Officer
of the Company. Mr. Pang is primarily responsible for overseeing the operations
of the Company. Mr. Pang possesses over 30 years of experience in the areas of
capital markets, accounting & finance, and corporate management covering a
number of industrial sectors such as real estate investment and management,
oil and gas, financial advisory, investment management and securities market
regulation. Before joining the Group, Mr. PANG held senior positions including
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of a real estate investment fund
as well as a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Pang qualified as a Chartered Accountant in England and Wales in 1988
while working in the London office of a big 4 accounting firm. He is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with exposure in the United
Kingdom, Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong, the Mainland of China and Dubai.
Mr. Pang graduated from the University of Oxford, England with a Master's
degree and also obtained a Master's degree from the International School of
Advanced Studies, University of Trieste, Italy.

Mr. CHAN Chi Fai David (“Mr. Chan”), aged 52, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 22 March 2017. Mr. CHAN has also been
appointed as the Group Financial Controller of the Company in 14 March 2017.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Manchester. Mr. Chan has over 29 years of experience in company secretarial
management, auditing, finance and corporate governance.

Mr. YAO Yan Ping Francis (“Mr. Yao"”), aged 48, is the assistant director of
Strategic Development Department with effect from 8 January 2018. He is
primarily responsible for corporate development, finance and strategic planning
of the Company. Mr. Yao is a certified public accountant and is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 26 years
accounting, auditing, corporate finance and governance experience.
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Construction Business

Ir Paul LEE Kai Hung (“Ir Lee"), BEng, MASc, PEng, MCSCE, RPE, CEng, FHKIE, MICE,
aged 61, is the Managing Director of each of Hsin Chong Construction Company
Limited (“HCC"), Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited (“HCA") and HCCG
Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ir Lee was appointed as the Deputy Managing
Director of HCC in July 2015 and has been promoted to his current position in
HCC in October 2015.

Ir Lee is responsible for the management of the construction and related
businesses within the Group. Ir Lee joined the Group in 2010 and has more than
38 years of experience in civil engineering and building construction.

Ir Lee is a registered professional engineer. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior executive with
a leading Hong Kong contractor.

Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho Ning (“Mr. Fung”), BSc (Eng), CEng, RPE, FIMECHE, MCIBSE,
MHKIE, aged 65, is the managing director of Hsin Chong Aster Building Services
Limited ("HC Aster”), the electrical and mechanical engineering specialists of
the Group, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Fung has
the primary responsibility in managing the business of HC Aster. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 39 years of experience in the engineering field as
consultant, client’s representative and contractor in Hong Kong, United Kingdom
and Australia. Prior to joining the Group, for over 17 years, Mr. Fung was engaged
in the general management of companies in Australia and Hong Kong before
acting as the general manager of Jardine and Cathay Pacific group of companies.

Mr. Desmond SZE Man Sang (“Mr. Sze"), MHKIE, RPE (CVL), aged 57, is an
Assistant Managing Director since January 2017 of HCC. Mr. Sze is responsible
for part of the building business of the Group within Hong Kong. He joined
the Group in 2015 and has over 35 years of experience in the field of civil and
building construction.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi Keung (“Mr. Chin"), 8Sc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, RPE, aged 59, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chin is responsible for the overall management of the Building Division in
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 33 years of experience in
the field of structural design and project management. Mr. Chin is a member of
the Mandatory Provident Fund Industry Schemes Committee and the Immediate
Vice President of the Hong Kong Construction Association.

Mr. James LEE Kok Foo (“Mr. Lee"), BEng, MHKIE, aged 66, is a director of
HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee
is responsible for the business development for the Building Division, including
managing the business development and operation of Design and Build Projects.
He joined the Group in 1981 and has over 42 years of experience in the field of
electrical and mechanical engineering and building construction management.
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Mr. Steven John MEREDITH (“Mr. Meredith”), BSc (Eng), C.Eng, MICE, aged 59
is a director of HCC and HCA. Mr. Meredith is a director (Civil Engineering), and is
responsible for the civil engineering business of the Group within Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in 2017 and has over 37 years of experience in the field of civil
engineering.

Mr. Alan Clive EVANS (“Mr. Evans”), MA, FRICS, ACIArb, RPS(QS), aged 56, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Evans is responsible for overseeing all commercial, legal, insurance and
procurement matters for the whole construction business. He joined the Group in
2011 as Group Commercial Manager and has more than 30 years of property and
construction management experience with major corporations and international
consultants in the UK, Qatar, Macau and Hong Kong.

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY (“Mr. Buckley”), BSc (Civil), CEng, MICE, MHKIE, aged 69, is
a director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Buckley is the Executive Project Director of the construction management
business of the Group in Macau. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 46
years of experience in the field of building construction and civil engineering.

Mr. Augustine TANG Man Yee ("Mr. Tang”), MSc, MCIOB, MAIB, MHKICM, aged
60, is a director of HCC, HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited
and Ever Work Construction Limited. Mr. Tang is also a Chairman of Zhuhai
Henggin New Area HCCG Construction Management Co., Ltd., a President of
HCCG Building & Civil Engineering (Saipan) Limited and a Chairman of Hsin
Chong Building and Civil Engineering (Cambodia) Co. Ltd. Mr. Tang is responsible
for the civil engineering and building Projects in Macau, Zhuhai and overseas.
He joined the Group in 1976 and has over 40 years of experience in the field of
building construction and project management of mega construction projects in
Hong Kong, Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhuhai, Macau and overseas.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE (“Mr. Clarke"), MRICS, aged 58, is the commercial
director of Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited, Hsin Chong Engineering
(Macau) Limited and Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Company Limited, the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Macau. Mr. Clarke joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 35 years of experience in providing commercial and technical support in the
construction field.

Mr. Gilbert CHAN Cheuk Tong (“Mr. Chan”), MBA, BA(Econ), FCPA, MHKS], MCIM,
aged 59, is the finance director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited.
Mr. Chan is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
he worked in a number of listed companies and sizable organizations in Hong
Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen as finance executive and controller with finance
and accounting experiences in various industries ranging from banking, garment,
textile machinery trading, sole distributor of consumer electronics, healthcare
services, construction, hotel, semiconductor manufacturing, e-Commerce to
electronics manufacturing services (“EMS”) factory. Before joining the Company
on 23 June 2017, Mr. Chan was the chief executive officer for about 5 years of
an EMS group of companies, managed its business and headquarters in Macau
and Hong Kong; and operated two sizable factories in Shenzhen and Hunan with
2,500 workers.
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Property Development and Hospitality Business (Hong
Kong and International)

Sr Stanley LO Seung Chi ("Sr Lo"), LLB(Hons), LLM, MBA (Construction & Real Estate),
PCLL, FRICS, FHKIS, FCIOB, MClArb, RPS(QS), age 60, is the Managing Director of
Hsin Chong International Infrastructure Company Limited (“HCII"). He is also a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Sr Lo was appointed as the Managing
Director of HCIl since he joined the Company in June 2016. Sr Lo is responsible
for the management of the Company’s international infrastructure projects and
related businesses under the Belt and Road Initiative. Sr Lo has over 37 years of
experience in building, civil engineering, railway and infrastructure constructions.

Sr Lo is an executive with dual professions. In addition to being a Chartered
Quantity Surveyor, he is also an admitted Solicitor of the High Court of HKSAR.
Sr Lo is a fellow of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, fellow of the
Hong Kong Institution of Surveyors, fellow of the Chartered Institute of Building
(Chartered Construction Manager), member of the Chartered Institute of
Avrbitrators, and a Registered Professional Surveyor (Quantity Surveying).

Prior to joining Hsin Chong, Sr Lo was the Director and General Manager of a
leading contractor which was listed in the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Before
that, Sr Lo was an executive of the Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation and the
Mass Transit Railway Corporation.

Sr Lo is currently a member of the Belt & Road Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre (“HKIAC"). He was also the Chairman of
the Construction Mediation Interest Group (2015—2016) of the Hong Kong
Mediation Council (a division of the HKIAC).

Project Directors (Construction Business)

Mr. Chris CHAU Chi Wai (“Mr. Chau"), BSc (Hons), MHKIE, RPE, aged 56, is an
assistant director of Building Division of HCC. He is responsible for construction
projects, including M+ Museum, Dragons Range, redevelopment of Hong Kong
Sports Institute and Shek Mun HSBC Data Centre. Mr. Chau joined the Group in
2007. He has 32 years of experience in the construction industry.

Mr. Benjamin CHOW Tai Wang (“Mr. Chow"), BSc (Civil Engineering), aged 65,
has been promoted as an assistant director of HCC in 2015 and is the head of
civil projects operations. He is responsible for project management, tendering and
business development. Mr. Chow joined the Group in 2002. He has over 38 years
of experience in foundation, site formation, infrastructure, structural steel, road &
drainage, marine works, demolition, building and contracting business.
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Mr. CHOI Man Fai ("Mr. Choi”), BSc, FHKIE, FCIOB, FHKICM, MICE, MRICS, RPE, aged
56, is a senior project director of HCC. He is responsible for managing all aspects
of the construction operations in projects under his control including the MTRC
Shatin to Central Link Contract No. SCL1109 — Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa
Wan Stations and Tunnels. Mr. Choi joined the Group in 2009. He has over 28
years of experience in managing and administering both Government-funded
and privately-sponsored infrastructure projects comprising civil, building and
foundation jobs.

Mr. Frankie LAM Kam Keung (“Mr. Lam”), BSc (Eng), MA (Arb & DR), CEng, MICE,
RPE, MHKIE, MCSCEHKB, aged 49, is a senior project director of HCC. He is primarily
responsible for project management as well as tender preparation and business
development. Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1994. He has over 26 years of
experience in both consulting and contracting business on a wide spectrum of
projects including infrastructure, site formation, roads & drainage, foundation,
deep excavation, geotechnical and ground investigation field works. He is also
appointed as the Authorised Signatory under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123) supervising site formation works, foundation works and ground investigation
field works.

Mr. Christopher TANG Sik Ming (“Mr. Tang"), BSc (Hons), MCIOB, MHKIE, MASCE,
MHKICM, MCMI, RPE, MASI, aged 63, is a senior project director of HCC. He is
responsible for the construction management of various projects: Ocean Park
Marriott Hotel, Office Complex at Lam Lee Street, Sai Wan Terrace, Tsuen Wan
Adventist Hospital, Hong Kong Housing Authority’s housing developments at
Anderson Road and Tung Chung, and HKUST, etc. Mr. Tang joined the Group in
2011. He has over 37 years of experience in building construction management
and administration.

Mr. Wayne CHAN Wai Kei (“Mr. Chan"), BSc (Arch), MIHEEM, ASHRAE, aged 62,
is a project director of HC Aster. He is responsible for Building Services project
management, tender preparation and business development. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in 2005. He has over 36 years of experience in the managing and
administering of both public and private sector E & M projects.
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Business of the Mainland of China

Ms. WAN Wen Ying (“Ms. Wan"), aged 72, joined Hsin Chong Holdings (China)
Limited as Senior Commercial Vice President in March 2016. She is also Chairman
of Hsin Chong (China) Business Management Company Limited, standing director
of China General Chamber of Commerce, vice president of China Commerce
Association for General Merchandise, a member of the Expert Committee of
China General Chamber of Commerce, and honorary president of Outlets Branch
of China General Chamber of Commerce. Ms. Wan is also a senior economist and
senior corporate operator.

Ms. Wan has engaged in business operation and management for 42 years and
devoted herself to research and development of the business sector in China,
and accumulated rich experience in business management. Honoured as the
"originator of China's outlets”, she was the first to bring the outlets mode into
China, and she was also the planner and leader of the outlets business model
of the new generation. In recent years, as the general business advisor of Beijing
Capital Land, she led and directed in the opening and operation of Capital Land’s
projects in Fangshan, Wanning, Huzhou, and Kunshan, and explored a path for
developing outlets with Chinese characteristics.

Mr. JIANG Wanyong (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 58, is a senior engineer with the
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering. He now assumes the senior vice president
of Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited. Mr. Jiang once worked for China-
Foreign Aid Office of Ministry of Railways/China Civil Engineering Construction
Corporation (CCECC), and was dispatched to Arabia and African countries,
Hong Kong, Macao and North America. He worked as the director of business
development in Mainland China for CH2MHILL, a world's famous large-scale
engineering consulting company and took charge of energy and transportation
services. With over 30 years' management experience in real estate investment
and development, energy and environmental protection, urban planning and
infrastructure construction, communications technologies and services, asset
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions of enterprises and others, Mr. Jiang, a
senior business management specialist, has accumulated rich experience in the
investment and operation and management of large projects at home and abroad
as well as commercial real estate investment and development management, and
obtained outstanding achievements in related fields. Mr. Jiang also concurrently
serves as an expert member of Commercial Real Estate Association and the vice
president of Ortles Branch of China General Chamber of Commerce.

Ms. ZENG Xian ("Ms. Zeng"”), aged 50, is a senior corporate culture specialist
and economist with double Master's Degree respectively in Economic
Management and Psychology. She has been the vice president of Hsin Chong
Holdings (China) Limited since 2015. As a senior human resources expert, Ms.
Zeng once assumed the senior management position of several famous listed
companies and large real estate enterprises, and she particularly excels in human
resource management of real estate industry. Ms. Zeng also concurrently serves as
the vice president of Ortles Branch of China General Chamber of Commerce, the
director of Practice Committee of Chinese Human Resource Theory and Practice
Association, the vice chairman of Human Resource Alliance of Commercial and
Tourism Real Estate Professional Committee of China Real Estate Association,
managing director of National Real Estate Managers Alliance, distinguished
lecturer of China Federation of Human Resources Managers and career mentor of
Sun Yat-sen Business School.
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Profiles of the Group’s Key Personnel
EEESZEN

Ms. LIU Lan ("Ms. Liu"), aged 49, holds a bachelor degree in economic
management and an MBA degree in monetary banking. Ms. Liu is currently the
Assistant president of Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited. Ms. Liu is a senior
professional manager in the property development industry in China. She has held
senior executive positions in various well-known real estate enterprises such as the
Contue Group, the Ronggiao Group and the Tahoe Group, delivering outstanding
performances in project development, sales and commercial opening. She was
named one of the Top 10 Characters in National Property Marketing. Ms. Liu has
been appointed as Deputy Secretary General by the Shan Dong Alumni Office
of the Renmin University of China and as investment adviser by Taian High-tech
Industrial Development Zone.

Mr. DING Mingliang (“Mr. Ding”), aged 50, graduated from Tsinghua University
with a masters’ degree, majoring in heating, ventilation and air conditioning.
He joined Hsin Chong (China) Business Management Company Limited* as
Executive Deputy General Manager in 2015 and is responsible for the properties
and engineering related business. Mr. Ding is also responsible for the business
operation management of Foshan project.

For many years Mr. Ding engaged in planning, investment attraction, and
operation management with commercial real estate projects. He has nearly 20
years' experience as a senior executive at well-known enterprises and commercial
property companies including GT Land Group, Saite Group, and Beijing Modern
Plaza, thus with comprehensive management capability in large commercial real
estate projects, especially in large commercial complex and other commercial
projects in Guangzhou Area.

Mr. LI Qiming (“Mr. Li”), aged 47, is a senior engineer and a Class 1 registered
constructor as well as a national supervision engineer with a civil engineering
degree. Mr. Li joined Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited in 2016 as the general
manager of Liaoning Tongji Property Investment Limited / Liaoning Huisheng
Property Investment Limited (Tieling project company). Mr. Li has 17 years of
experience in comprehensive development and management of large-scale real
estate complex, commercial, hotel, residential and tourism properties, and has
conducted whole process management and operation in a number of complexes
and real estate projects with an area over 500,000 sgm?. He has assumed various
senior management positions in Yintai Land Group, Wanda Group and many
other well-known real estate enterprises, including the general manager of
projects and the general manager of cites. Mr. Li has outstanding performance
in real estate operation and has profound management experience in all stages
of commercial property development as well as remarkable resources integration
capabilities.
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Mr. XIE Lizhong ("Mr. Xie"”), aged 50, is the deputy general manager of the
Foshan Project Company of Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited. Mr. Xie is
a senior engineer graduated from Tsinghua University with a degree in water
resources and hydropower engineering. Mr. Xie had been the Director of
Guangdong Fangshi Construction Supervision Co., Ltd. (EREBZHR T2
B AHMR/AF]), the deputy general manager of Guangdong Jinhuiyang Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (ER&EFEHEHBRRAF) and the project manager of
Panyu Clifford Estate Real Estate Limited (FB#TE@FNEHEFR A F]) . He
has nearly 30 years' experience in construction project management, particularly
in the operation of construction and supervision companies, and is familiar with
the construction related processes and relevant laws and regulations of property
development.

Mr. MENG Yunjun (“Mr. Meng”), aged 45, graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with bachelor degree in civil engineering. He is
currently the executive general manager of the Taian Project Company of Hsin
Chong Holdings (China) Limited. He is a senior professional manager in real estate
development industry in China, and has held senior management positions in
several famous real estate enterprises, such as Wanda and Yintai group, during
which he has delivered outperformance in development, sales and commercial
commencement. In addition, Mr. Meng has been appointed as the Vice President
of Zhejiang Chamber of Commerce in Taian City.

Mr. CHENG Shing Lit (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 57, is a member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (Facilities Management) with a master degree of
Business Administration awarded by the Newport University in the US. Mr. Cheng
has been engaged in property management for over 30 years and accumulated
considerable experience in property and asset management during his service in
well-known projects in Hong Kong and Mainland China. He has cooperated with
renowned domestic and overseas property developers and Top 500 companies
in managing high-end residential properties, 5A office buildings, large shopping
malls and service apartments, etc. He is an expert in market development, early
stage consultation, preparation of accurate management budget, acceptance
inspection, renovation supervision, hygiene, environmental protection and fire
inspection, inspection before opening of projects and risk management. By
effectively applying the mature management modes of Hong Kong properties to
those in mainland China, he is capable of coordinating the operation of various
departments and managing projects comprehensively and has a good track record
in his management work.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRE

Corporate governance is the system by which the Company is directed and
controlled. The Board is fully aware of its importance to shareholders and has
developed a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows management
to respond to the strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well balanced corporate governance system enables the Company to
achieve business excellence and fulfill the Company’s mission.

Corporate Code of Conduct

Since 1995, the Company has published and distributed its Corporate Code of
Conduct to all staff to educate and reinforce the Company’s commitment to the
highest standards of business ethics and the seriousness with which the Board
treats such matters. The Corporate Code of Conduct is a living document that
will be periodically updated to incorporate comments and suggestions from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption and the other regulating authorities
in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has applied the principals in the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
complied with all code provisions of the CG Code, except those deviations as
mentioned herein below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time by the Stock Exchange) as its own code of
conduct for regulating securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines
for regulating securities transactions by the senior management and certain
employees of the Group (collectively, the “Relevant Employees”). The Board
believes that the Relevant Employees may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Group.
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Board of Directors

Composition

As at 23 March 2018, the Board comprised 11 Directors, including three Executive
Directors, five Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Directors who were in office during the year and up to the date of this report
are named as below:

Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan

Executive Directors

Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Chief Executive Officer) (re-designated from Co-
Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive Officer with effect from 8 June 2017)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Eric TODD (appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)

Mr. ZHOU Wei (resigned with effect from 8 June 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAN Jie

Mr. CHEN Lei

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (re-designated with effect from 1 January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho

Mr. LAl Chik Fan (appointed with effect from 8 June 2017)

Ms. LEE Jai Ying (resigned with effect from 13 March 2018)

Mr. KWOK Shiu Keung Ernest (resigned with effect from 5 May 2017)

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company must appoint
Independent Non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
Upon the appointment of Mr. Eric TODD as the Executive Director with effect
from 9 March 2017, and with the resignation of Independent Non-executive
Director of Mr. KWOK Shiu Keung Ernest on 5 May 2017, the Company did
not fulfill the Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. However, on 8 June 2017, with
the resignation of Mr. ZHOU Wei from the position of Executive Director and
the appointment of Mr. LAl Chik Fan as the Independent Non-executive Director
respectively, the number of the Independent Non-executive Directors has fulfilled
with the minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rule. As the resignation of Independent Non-executive Director of Ms. LEE
Jai Ying on 13 March 2018, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Board has fallen below the minimum number required under Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rule.

The Company will seek suitable candidates to fill the expected replacement to be
appointed within three months from 13 March 2018 pursuant to Rule 3.11 of
the Listing Rules. The Company will make further announcement as and when
appropriate.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.hsinchong.com).
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Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including real
estate development, property development, construction, finance, and finance
related work, members of the Board possess a balance of skills, expertise and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group which
helps promote its success and benefits its management. Save as disclosed in the
Profiles of Directors set out on pages 22 to 33 of this annual report, there is no
relationship among the members of the Board.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given the Company an
annual confirmation of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
are and have remained independent. Mr. CHENG Sui Sang, chairman of the Audit
Committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications which disclose
the names of the directors of the Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group's activities. Its primary functions
are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and to monitor and measure
the management’s performance. It is accountable for the overall strategic
development of the Group with the objective to enhance shareholder value.
Material matters are reserved for the Board's considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group, business plans, annual
budgets, significant capital expenditure, interim and annual results and reports,
dividend policy and payments, material acquisitions, disposals or investment
proposals, directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other
material transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive Committee. It
has also delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business to the senior
management. Delegation of duties to the Board committees and daily business
operations to the management are discussed on pages 50 to 58 of this report.

Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is the Non-executive Chairman. For the period from 1
January 2017 to 7 June 2017, Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (an Executive Director)
was the Co-Chief Executive Officer. Upon the resignation of Mr. ZHANG Xuejun as
Co-Chief Executive Officer with effect from 8 June 2017, the title of Ir Dr Joseph
CHOI Kin Hung was changed to Chief Executive Officer.

The roles of chairman and chief executive are separate, and there are clear
divisions among their responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power
and authority. Therefore, the Company complies with the code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code.
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With the support from the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Board chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information on
a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors. The Board set up a Nomination Committee in 2011
to recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the Directors.

All the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of two years subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws"), including the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or
standing for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at least once
every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided with
information on duties and obligations of director, relevant regulatory requirements
and the Group's business affairs. All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
would be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year are
scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the
Directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will
be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who
is not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting through
electronic means of communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days in advance,
and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each
Director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by
meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director
not less than three days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except
where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent
ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings,
drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to Directors for comments
and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board at the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and open for inspection to any Director on request.

Corporate Governance Report
TRERES

ERITEERAAREZ BT EEREERRNEE
FOREFERE LR FEEEEEHE LK
5% R AT K2 AR

S EXERELZETF
EXEgREERET ERNERES -EFEN2011F
KRiIRREBZREG RESZZE SRLERRERES-

FTBJEIT KB R ITE SR EAR QR R IR R2F
LRIk ERET EMRARARBARR (TABRI)) Z
MRE BRI E3F - ARARBRREAFRE LRFE
FRYBEEEERTREREE IR - ZEIRE R
AT ER

TAHFEERERRBAZTIRYERHEECBERE
B AREERELAEERBEEZER B RER
BRERMERENETERERZERNARFERK
RARE EREBIRES -

EFees
EFeFERIBTARENEE BT R-BFEF
SENRA L AMENEBEFOIFEREE MMEESH
HEERFLLR - EEENERERERTERGH
ARRIRZRE R - RIBAR EABERFHFE 2EEY
EBEFRAREG PINeHAEEREMBLURAR
f 2EENEEEER-

EFEERF
BRBRAEFTEEHERIBEENRDI4RAEL M
PEMEFEER BTSN ERARNE L - 2RI
EmpEFEIRATERRERER BUEFHAR
BIEAMATHE - ZRERHEEF R AREENZE
BAXFHTINEFTEERRTAMABAERGEUE
=2 (RIEZSLENERBAT ERNZBEMNESR
BHRIE)  EEFENAN W ERIELAERE -

ARAMERERRESEERLE FRACBZVREER
BRISENE g2 ABEREANMESEMN  VRMT
& MERRARFE A SRLRAHESFENEZ
EARERZ FEMERREFLTRFMAZCE B
EERBZAMRERREZRYER (WE) EFE
BHELEANRNERT UHEERKARTENESES
R

FEEEERERAT 201758 45



Corporate Governance Report
TRERES

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures are complied with and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including reports from the Board committees and reports from the
management. They are also provided with updates on the latest developments of
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes and matters of
relevance to the Directors in discharging their duties as and when appropriate.

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted written
procedures in case any Director wishes to seek independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant to
the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in a tight timeframe and
hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or not practicable. In case where a
resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient information and explanatory materials
will also be provided to the Directors at the same time. These written resolutions
were tabled for the Directors’ review at the next following Board meeting so that
Directors were given the opportunity to raise any further comment (if any) on the
relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long as time is
allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant matter first before
any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance covering directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been arranged
to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.
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Attendances of Meetings

26 Board meetings, 9 Audit Committee meetings, 6 Remuneration Committee
meetings, 3 Nomination Committee meetings, one annual general meeting and
one special general meeting were held during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Attendances of these meetings by Directors are set out below:
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE /RERHEER
Annual Special
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
Name of Directors EERS Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee Meetings Meetings
E¥e FEZAT FHRET REZAT RRAEXE BRRBIKE
Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director — EB1 77 E# B 1TEE
LIN Zhuo Yan MEFE 20126 N/A N/A N/A 01 01
Executive Directors HiTEE
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung' (Chief Executive Officer) B (7THA8%) 26126 N/A 6/6 33 1n 1n
Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Chief Risk Officer) SEE (BEARE) 25/26 N/A 6/6 N/A 17 17
Eric TODD? ERE 2021 N/A N/A N/A 1n 01
ZHOU Wep By 16/18 N/A N/A N/A 01 N/A
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
YAN Jie B3 17126 N/A N/A N/A o1 1n
CHEN Lei ¥ 11126 N/A N/A N/A 01 01
CHUI Kwong Kau BRIk 26126 99 N/A N/A 1 o1
LUI Chun Pong? = iR 23126 N/A N/A 33 1 1
Indlependent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
CHENG Sui Sang Bint 22126 99 6/6 23 1n 1n
George YUEN Kam Ho rek 25/26 99 6/6 33 171 1
LAI Chik Fan® bl 77 22 22 N/A N/A on
LEE Jai Ying? FEES 20126 N/A 4/6 33 17 on
KWOK Shiu Keung Emest’ B 912 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Notes: M«J Ef .

1

N/A:

Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung was re-designated from Co-Chief Executive Officer to Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 8 June 2017.

Mr. Eric TODD was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of Executive
Committee with effect from 9 March 2017 and 22 March 2017 respectively.

Mr. ZHOU Wei resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 8 June 2017 and ceased to
be the Chief Strategic Officer with effect from 19 January 2018.

Mr. LUl Chun Pong was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2017.

Mr. LAI Chik Fan was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 8 June 2017.

Ms. LEE Jai Ying resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, chairman of
Nomination Committee and a member of Remuneration Committee respectively with effect

from 13 March 2018.

Mr. KWOK Shiu Keung Ernest resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of Audit Committee respectively with effect from 5 May 2017.

Not Applicable
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During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held a meeting
with Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
without the presence of Executive Directors.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan,
Mr. YAN Jie and Mr. CHEN Lei, the Non-executive Directors, did not attend the
annual general meeting due to their own official businesses. Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan,
Mr. CHEN Lei and Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau, the Non-executive Directors, and Ms. LEE
Jai Ying and Mr. LAI Chik Fan, the Independent Non-executive Directors, did not
attend the special general meeting of the Company held on 31 July 2017 due to
their own official businesses.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Group's performance and financial position.

Directors are aware of the requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code regarding continuous professional development. During the year, the
Company provided reading materials to the Directors for self-study. In addition,
the Directors have attended external courses, conferences or luncheons organised
by various organisations.
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Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates and other
reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments in corporate
governance practices, and relevant legal and regulatory developments. A record
of the Directors’ participation in various professional development programs is
kept by the company secretarial department. A summary of training received by
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 is according to the records
provided by the Directors as follows:
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attending seminars/

Reading newspapers,
journals and

updates relating

to the economy,
general business,
accounting, laws,

Giving talks or

conferences/forums rules and regulations, etc.

FIRERRR 48 -

—mER g EE

BTHESHE FRAREREFELZ

Name of Directors EENS Wie gE RiE BE PHREHEM
LIN Zhuo Yan (Non-executive Chairman —~ WhE3E (FEE 7T EH#

and Non-executive Director) HHTEE) v v
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung' BB\ (1T )

(Chief Executive Officer) %4 v
Wilfred WU Shek Chun BEE (FEEALE)

(Chief Risk Officer) v v
Eric TODD? E R v v
ZHOU Wei? [EE N/A N/A
YAN Jie ks v v
CHEN Lei BRE %4 v
CHUI Kwong Kau K v v
LUI Chun Pong* = i FB v v
CHENG Sui Sang EIRAE v v
George YUEN Kam Ho ReE v v
LAl Chik Fan® RIS v v
LEE Jai Ying® T5ES v v
KWOK Shiu Keung Ernest’ B N/A N/A

Notes: BaE

1

N/A:

Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung was re-designated from Co-Chief Executive Officer to Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 8 June 2017.

Mr. Eric TODD was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of Executive
Committee with effect from 9 March 2017 and 22 March 2017 respectively.

Mr. ZHOU Wei resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 8 June 2017 and ceased to
be the Chief Strategic Officer with effect from 19 January 2018.

Mr. LUI Chun Pong was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2017.

Mr. LAI Chik Fan was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 8 June 2017.

Ms. LEE Jai Ying resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, chairman of
Nomination Committee and a member of Remuneration Committee respectively with effect
from 13 March 2018.

Mr. KWOK Shiu Keung Ernest resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of Audit Committee respectively with effect from 5 May 2017.

Not Applicable

N/A
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Board Committees

Each of the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee, is to assist
in the execution of the Board's responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect of
the Group's affairs. Each Board committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws,
its specific written terms of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of
Board meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent Non-
executive Director) as chairman, Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (Non-executive Director),
Mr. KWOK Shiu Keung Ernest (who resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director and ceased to be a member with effect from 5 May 2017), Mr. George
YUEN Kam Ho (Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. LAl Chik Fan (who
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member with
effect from 8 June 2017) as members. None of the Audit Committee members
is or has been a former partner of the existing auditing firm engaged by the
Company for the past one year.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an independent and
objective review of the financial reporting process, internal controls and audit
function with emphasis on:

(i)  appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal and
external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators and the
general public;

(i) ascertain the adequacy of the Company's system of internal controls which
management and the Board have established; and

(iv) serve as useful channel of communication between the Board and the
external and internal auditors on matters relating to and arising out of the
external and internal audit.

The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific written
terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the Company’s external auditor and on its remuneration; reviewing the
Company'’s interim and annual financial statements and other financial reports;
and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
procedures (including monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function)
and risk management systems. The Audit Committee has explicit authority to
investigate any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the authority
to obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it considers
necessary.
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. During the year ended 31
December 2017, 9 committee meetings were held. Attendances of the meetings
have been disclosed on page 47 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee members
reviewed (i) the audit strategy memorandum from the external auditor; (ii) with
the participation of the internal and external auditors and the management,
reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the Group; and (iii)
with the participation of the internal and external auditors and the management,
the interim and annual results and the related financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensuring that these financial statements were prepared
in accordance with the accounting principles and standards generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The Audit Committee also considered the reports from the external
auditor on the scope and findings of its independent review of the interim
financial information and independent audit of the annual financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent Non-
executive Director) as chairman, Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Executive Director),
Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Executive Director), Ms. LEE Jai Ying (who resigned
as an Independent Non-executive Director and ceased to be a member with effect
from 13 March 2018), Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (Independent Non-executive
Director) and Mr. LAl Chik Fan (who was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member with effect from 8 June 2017) as members.

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. Its duties are summarised below:

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company's remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;
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5

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

ERBE

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive;

review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

delegate such of its powers the committee deems appropriate to the
management; and

ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, 6 committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 47 of in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee
members (i) reviewed the bonus distribution of the Executive Directors and the
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2016; (i) reviewed the
bonus structure of the Executive Directors and the senior management; (iii)
reviewed the salaries of Executive Directors and senior management; (iv) reviewed
the annual fee of Directors and annual fees for Chairman and members of each of
Board committees for the financial year ending 31 December 2018; (v) the grant
of share options to an relevant employee; and (vi) recommended the aforesaid
matters to the Board for approval.
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Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group adopts sound policies of management incentives and competitive
remuneration, which aligns the interests of management, employees and
shareholders. The chief asset of the Group remains the skills and expertise of our
loyal staff and we have rightly invested much time and effort in the selection,
training and personal improvement of our staff.

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management of the
Group. The performance measures are balanced between financial and industrial
comparatives. The components of the remuneration package consist of base
salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus,
participation in share option scheme and long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and determined by the Board except that no director or
any of his associates is allowed to make recommendation on or to determine his
own remuneration package. Director’s remuneration is determined by reference
to each director’s duties and responsibilities in the Group as well as the overall
performance of the respective company and the Group and the prevailing market
situation and competitiveness in the industry.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are determined by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board by reference to their
respective responsibilities and accountability, target achievements, business results
and market competitiveness of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
managerial and support staff are determined by the senior management of the
Company.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for senior
management staff and employees with significant contributions to the business
objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and performance based. Share
options are granted to directors, senior management and other employees
based on individual performance and overall contributions to the Group. The
number and terms of share options granted to each grantee are proposed by the
respective executive directors (except for options granted to themselves), reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

The Group has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating
policies on remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the section headed
“Profiles of the Group's Key Personnel” in this annual report. Remuneration
paid to the senior management (including the Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2017 are included in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (Independent
Non-executive Director and who was appointed as the chairman with effect from
23 March 2018) as chairman, Ms. LEE Jai Ying (who resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director and ceased to be the chairman with effect from 13 March
2018) as former chairman, Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Executive Director),
Mr. LUl Chun Pong (who was re-designated from an Executive Director to a
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017), Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
(Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. LAl Chik Fan (who was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member with effect from 8 June
2017) as members.

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating nomination
policy and leading the process of identifying and nominating suitable candidates.
Its duties are summarised below:

(i) review the structure, size and diversity (including, but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, skills, knowledge,
professional experience and length of service) of the Board at least annually;
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group's corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

(i) identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of directors for the
Board's approval;

(iv) taking into account the Group's corporate strategy and mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;

(v)  assess the independence of independent non-executive directors and review
the independent non-executive directors’ annual confirmations on their
independence; and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(vi) regularly review the time required from a director to perform his/her
responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings; and

(vii) review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable
objectives that the Board had set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of
its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, 3 committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 47 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee members
(i) reviewed and considered that the structure, size, diversity and composition of
the Board are appropriate; (i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors; (iii) recommended the appointments of new Board members,
and (iv) recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.

The "Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the
Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, background, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities of members of the board. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, including but not limited to those described above. The “Board Diversity
Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, to ensure
its effectiveness.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung, Mr. ZHOU Wei
(who resigned as an Executive Director and ceased to be a member with effect
from 8 June 2017), Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun, Mr. LUl Chun Pong (who was
re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director and ceased
to be a member with effect from 1 January 2017) and Mr. Eric TODD (who was
appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 9 March 2017 and was
appointed to be a member with effect from 22 March 2017) as members.

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Its primary duties are to approve banking matters,
issue of shares under any share option schemes of the Company, and
administrative issues of routine nature (excluding notifiable transactions), with a
view to assisting the Board to discharge partially its executive functions.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required depending on business
and operation needs. Members' attendances would depend on the importance
of the matters to be transacted. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Executive Committee held 45 meetings to discharge their duties.

Risk Management Committee

The Board has established a Risk Management Committee on 13 March
2018. The Risk Management Committee comprises Mr. LAl Chik Fan (who
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 8
June 2017) as chairman, Mr. CHENG Sui Sang and Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho
(Independent Non-executive Directors) as members.

The Risk Management Committee is primarily responsible for ensuring there is a
formal and effective procedures for assessing and monitoring the risk elements of

the Group.

The Risk Management Committee shall meet at least once a year.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Board has established a Corporate Governance Committee on 13 March
2018. The Corporate Governance Committee comprises Mr. George YUEN Kam
Ho (Independent Non-executive Director) as chairman, Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
(Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. LAl Chik Fan (who was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 8 June 2017) as
members.

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for ensuring
there is a formal and transparent procedures for setting up and monitoring the
implementation of the corporate governance policy for the Group.

The Corporate Governance Committee shall meet at least once a year.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and performing the corporate governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(i) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to the employees and Directors; and

(v)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in place procedures for Directors to seek Independent Professional
Advice.

Delegation to Management

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business plans and
strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior executives led primarily
by the Executive Committee. The Management Committee for the Group's
operations comprising all the Executive Directors and key senior executives
was established to oversee the achievement of the Group’s operations. The
Management Committee holds regular meetings to review and discuss the
Group's performance against budget, business strategy, operational issues, and
matters relating to corporate services including human resources, corporate
communications, and information technology. Other management meetings
are also held regularly to review and discuss the day-to-day operations and
performance of individual business divisions.
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Tender Procedures for Construction Related Business

The directors of the respective business divisions are responsible for reviewing
business opportunities and their associated risks; formulating viable business
models; and deciding the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity. These
directors or the managing director of the construction division, working together
with the estimator, the bid manager or other persons with relevant expertise
continuously review, discuss and approve the various business proposals
submitted.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of internal control and
for the assessment and management of risks.

While such systems are designed to identify and manage risks that could have an
adverse impact on the achievement of the Group's objectives, it does not provide
an absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the top,
performing risk assessments, and owning the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls. The associated policies and procedures for risk
management and internal controls, are designed to help ensure that the Group's
assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition; relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with; complete, accurate and reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained; and key risk factors including
business strategic, operational, financial and regulatory compliance risks which
may impact the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.

The key elements of the Company's risk management and internal control
systems include:

o A distinct organisational structure for different responsible parties with
defined authority, responsibilities and risk management roles;

e The Board sets forth the proper risk management culture and risk appetite
for the Group, evaluates and determines the level of risk that the Group
should take and monitor regularly;

e The Risk Management Committee facilitates the risk assessment process and
timely communication to the Audit Committee and the Board. Also, they
ensure key business and operational risks properly identified and managed;
and

o A Risk Management Policy has been established to provide a framework
for the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring and
reporting of key financial risks and in particular, liquidity risk, currency risk
and interest rate risk, with a view to further strengthening the financial risk
management.
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Internal Control

The Group has separate internal audit functions for its principal property,
construction & construction related operations, and for its subsidiary property
and facility management operations, forming part of its ongoing effort to focus
on greater efficiency and to quickly respond to the management’s concern for
the likely problem areas due to their distinctive business nature. Internal audit
adopts risks and controls based audit approach. The internal audit work plan
for the subsidiary property and facility management operations is reviewed by
Group internal audit, and its audit reports and follow-up actions are circulated
to the Group internal audit for information. The work plans of internal audit are
reviewed/further reviewed and endorsed by the respective audit committees.
Examination of the processes, practices and procedures of internal controls for
business operations and corporate functions of the Group are performed on a
regular basis. Internal audit reports containing findings and recommendations for
improvements are submitted to the respective audit committees for review.

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and dissemination of inside
information under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"). The Group has a set
of procedures and controls in place to preserve the confidentiality of inside
information relating to the Group. All Board members and senior management,
who are likely to possess the Group's inside information because of their offices
or employments in the Group, are bound by Model Code. In addition, every
employee is required to follow the guidelines of the code of conduct and the staff
handbook to keep unpublished inside information strictly confidential.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group through discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and
control issues at least annually. These procedures provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and fraud, and manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group's business objectives.

Based on Deloitte Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Deloitte”)’s findings, there
are weaknesses in Group management and certain internal control systems inside
the Group.

Refer to the Independent Investigation Committee report, there are several
recommendation issues in relation to the implementation of the internal control
review. The details of scope and procedures are expected to be established shortly
to take into account upon any recommendations, which is expected to take place
in June 2018.
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Connected transactions

As stated in the 2016 Annual Report, the Group entered into a series of
transactions and provide financial assistance to entities associated with a former
executive director, Mr. Zhou Wei, which constitute connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company had omitted to comply with the reporting, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements of Rule 14A.35 of the
Listing Rules and failed to announce the provisions of financial assistance to the
connected entities at the time of the execution of the relevant agreements at the
material time.

As additional time is required to prepare and finalise the contents of the Circular
and the letter of advice from the independent financial adviser, the Company
expects that the despatch of the Circular will be postponed to a later date.

Details of the connected transactions with respect to the provision of financial
assistance by the Company mentioned above are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 30 March 2017, 24 April 2017, 28 June 2017, 28 August
2017, 30 October 2017, 28 December 2017, 28 February 2018 and 2 May 2018
in respect of the delay in despatch of the circular in relation to the aforesaid
connected transaction.

The Issues of the Independent Investigations Report

As stated in the 2016 independent auditor’s report, in which the auditor of the
Company at that time, being PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), did not express
an audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 as a result of certain matters, including:

(1) multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (“Audit Issue 1”);

(2) transactions and balances relating to Mr. Zhou and his related entities
(" Audit Issue 2");

(3) payments made to a construction company (“Audit Issue 3”); and

(4)  payments made to certain financial consultancy companies ("“Audit Issue 4",
together with Audit Issue 1, Audit Issue 2, Audit Issue 3, collectively referred
to as “Audit Issues”).

For the Audit Issues 2, 3 and 4, the Board of Directors established the
Independent Investigation Committee in late March 2017 and authorised it to
conduct independent investigations thereon.
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The Independent Investigation Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and it engages P. C. Woo & Co. to provide the Independent
Non-executive Directors with relevant legal advice in respect of the independent
investigations. Subsequently, P C. Woo & Co. engaged Deloitte Advisory (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Deloitte”) to conduct independent investigations on each of the
Audit Issues 2, 3 and 4.

On 10 January 2018, Deloitte issued the investigation report. For the summary
of their major findings and the corresponding recommendations, details of the
above mentioned issues are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
9 January 2018 and 19 January 2018 respectively.

The Independent Investigation Committee accepted the factual findings made
by Deloitte as documented in the investigation report, based on which the
Independent Investigation Committee have issued its report on 15 January 2018
and in which it has made a number of recommendations to the Board of Directors
for resolving the Audit Issues 2, 3 and 4. Details of the recommendations and the
status of the implementation are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 January 2018.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

As disclosed in sections headed “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Disclaimer
of Opinion” in independent auditor’s report contained on pages 83 to 88 of
this report, the auditor of the Company did not express an audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 as a result of certain matters, including: (1) multiple uncertainties relating
to going concern; and (2) transactions and balances relating to Mr. Zhou and his
related entities.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group on a going concern basis. With the support of the
accounting and finance functions led by Group Financial Controller of the Group,
the Directors have ensured that the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been prepared in accordance with appropriate
accounting policies applied consistently save for those new and amended
accounting standards, if any, as disclosed in the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparing the interim financial information and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
the Directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Group's position and prospects. Financial information put before the Board
for approval by management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable
the Directors to make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the external

auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Group consolidated financial
statements, is set out on pages 83 to 88 of this annual report.
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Auditor’s Remuneration
The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, the Company’s external auditor, for
services rendered for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out as follows:
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Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FRr iR BB 5 Bft EER
HK$'000
BT
Audit services EizR% 7,680
Non-audit services* IEE LRG> 805

* including advisory services for compliance with regulatory requirements and potential ~ * BIEABREERERREER AP BB ERERSH

transactions and interim review of financial information etc.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
communications among Board members. The Company Secretary complied with
all the qualifications under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and

Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
quarterly business updates, and press releases, updates on the Group's
developments are also provided on the Company’s website which is updated on a
timely manner.

Comments, suggestions and enquiries from shareholders or investors to the Board
are welcome through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at Hsin
Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 6596
(iii) by telephone at (852) 2579 8238
(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk

(v)  on the Company’s website at www.hsinchong.com under “IR Contact” of
“Investor Relations”
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Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders (continued)

An annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days
together with detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the annual general
meeting of the Company and ten clear business days for all special general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolution is proposed at an annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of each
individual director.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at a
general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition served to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be convened by
the Board for transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of
meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

Continuous Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.
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The Board have pleasure in presenting their report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to the shareholders.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are building construction, civil engineering,
electrical and mechanical installation, interiors and special projects, property
development and investment. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements and particulars of
its joint operations are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information
Details of segment information are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review
Details of the business review information are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 21 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We consider environmental protection is essential to the long-term development
of the Group and will constantly improve management practices so as to minimise
waste, maximise efficiencies and reduce our negative environmental impact on
the environment.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory requirements
and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements. The Group has been
allocating system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and the mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Our establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, Bermuda and the mainland China. A review was undertaken of
procurement processes, procedures and practices for compliance with the new
Competition Ordinance that came into force in December 2015. No significant
amendments were required as the preexisting approach was already consistent
with the ethos and requirements of the Ordinance.

To ensure compliance with the new Competition Ordinance, the Group
has conducted trainings for our staff. We also step up measures to increase
safety awareness amongst our management and staff to prevent accidents in
contravention with safety regulations.
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Risks and Uncertainties

Various risks that the Company may face have been disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
this Report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and we regularly review
and improve our policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A customer
complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive, analyse and study complaints
and make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving service
quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair and strict
appraisal of its suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 89; the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 90 and the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated balance
sheet on pages 91 to 92 and in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statement
respectively.

The Board did not recommend the payment of interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 (2016: nil). To preserve funds for the expansion and
development of the Company, the Board does not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). Accordingly, total
dividends for the financial year of 2017 is nil (2016: nil).
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
95 to 97 and in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 4 financial years and for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out on page 200. This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leasehold Land

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Major Properties

A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/own use/sale and
properties under development as at 31 December 2017 is set out on pages 204
to 207.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2017, calculated under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to nil (2016: nil).

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although there
is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to bye-law 177 of the Company’s Bye-laws, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto,
and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the
duties of his/her office or in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-laws shall only
have effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda Companies
Act. The Company and its listed subsidiary have maintained Directors and officers
liability insurance during the year.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan

Executive Directors

Ir Dr Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Chief Executive Officer) (re-designated from Co-
Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive Officer with effect from 8 June 2017)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Eric TODD (appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)

Mr. ZHOU Wei (resigned with effect from 8 June 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAN Jie

Mr. CHEN Lei

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (re-designated with effect from 1 January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho

Mr. LAl Chik Fan (appointed with effect from 8 June 2017)

Ms. LEE Jai Ying (resigned with effect from 13 March 2018)

Mr. KWOK Shiu Keung Ernest (resigned with effect from 5 May 2017)

The Profiles of Directors who are in office as at the date of this report are set out
on pages 22 to 33 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 98(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. LIN Zhou Yan, Mr. Wilfred
WU Shek Chun, Mr. LUI Chun Pong and Mr. YAN lJie shall retire by rotation but,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2018
annual general meeting. Save for the aforesaid, the other remaining directors of
the Company would continue in office.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the 2018 annual
general meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts

Save as disclosed in the connected transactions section, there were no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries
or holding companies was a party and in which a Director and the Director's
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RELXEIRGEEBRGZIFE
Approximate
percentage of
interest in
Number of Number of the issued
shares held/ underlying share
Name of Directors Capacity involved shares held Total capital
HE T
BE/BR BFHZHEA BEZED
EEgf 213 ZRiSE B8 E et L ol=Ro e
(Note 4)
GED)
LIN Zhuo Yan Interest of spouse 1,466,858,789 - 1,466,858,789 25.70%
MR [y e (Note 1)
(BED)
Interest of controlled
corporations - 2,704,166,666  2,704,166,666 47.39%
REEEES (Note 2)
(Ft5E2)
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung Beneficial owner - 1,334,000 1,334,000 0.023%
N BEnlAA (Note 3)
(FEE3)
ZHOU Wei Beneficial owner 43,932,000 - 48,932,000 0.86%
[EE EafAA
LUI Chun Pong Beneficial owner - 750,000 750,000 0.013%
2R BnlAA (Note 3)
(F5E3)
Notes: B3 -

1 475,816,993 ordinary shares are held by Neo Summit Limited (“Neo Summit”), which is
owned by (a) Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings
Limited (“Summit View") as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%;
and (d) Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Jones Capital Investments Limited is wholly-
owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony (“Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Ms. MA under the SFO.

991,041,796 ordinary shares are held by Summit View, which is owned as to 50% by Dr.
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Ms. MA under the SFO.

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is the spouse of Ms. MA Kwing, Pony and is deemed to be interested in
the aforesaid 1,466,858,789 shares under the SFO.
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2 As disclosed in (i) the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014, Hsin Chong
Property Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
entered into the Acquisition Agreement with Rich Century Development Limited (a company
wholly-owned by the Non-executive Chairman of the Company, Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan) (“Rich
Century”) as the Vendor and Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan as the warrantor regarding a very substantial
acquisition in relation to the acquisition of a property development project in the PRC; and (ii)
the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2014, a Supplemental Agreement
was entered into amongst the same parties. As part of the consideration of the Acquisition
Agreement, the Company may issue to Rich Century convertible preference shares (“CPSs”)
which can be converted into Shares in the Company. As such, Rich Century being a company
wholly owned by Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. LIN Zhuo
Yan under the SFO.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015 in relation to the
issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, the total number of CPSs (issued or which
may be issued) to Rich Century and which can be converted into Shares of the Company is
6,253,829,151. Upon issue of certain number of CPSs to Rich Century on 8 January 2015,
it then disposed 1,855,563,322 CPSs on the same date. Therefore, as of 30 June 2015, Rich
Century held 4,398,265,830 CPSs (rounding difference included).

As further disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2015, 15
January 2016 and 26 April 2016 respectively in relation to the issuance of CPSs as part of
the consideration, Rich Century was further allotted by the Company 1,095,042,146 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs and 295,833,333 CPSs on 8 July 2015, 15 January 2016 and 26 April
2016 respectively. Rich Century then disposed 1,095,042,146 CPSs, 43,960,645 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs, 280,000,000 CPSs and 15,833,333 CPSs on 15 July 2015, 15 January
2016, 19 January 2016, 29 April 2016 and 31 May 2016 respectively. Therefore, as at 31
December 2017, Rich Century held 2,704,166,666 CPSs.

3 As at 31 December 2017, the interests in the underlying shares held by the Directors
represented share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 22 May 2008. Details of share options granted were set out below:
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Number of Exercise price
Name of Directors Date of grant share options held per share Exercisable period
EERE BHAK TR
(dd/mm/yyyy) (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/B/%) HHERRERA BRITER (8/B/%)

(HK$)

(FB¥TT)
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,000 (i) 1.02  04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019
LUI Chun Pong 01/092011 750,000 (ii) 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021

=i

i. Share options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 3 December 2019.

ii. Share options were vested in three portions on 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2021.

4 There were 5,706,670,104 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December
2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Model Code.
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Share Option Scheme

2008 Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
on 22 May 2008 (the “2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option
Scheme, the directors may, at their absolute discretion, make an offer to grant
share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive director of the Company or its
subsidiaries. A summary of the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme
(@) Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in the
prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested Entity”) and
consequently such opportunity is an incentive for such Eligible Person
to contribute further to the success of the Company and/or its any
subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.

(b) Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme
The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
(“Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”):

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of the Company, its subsidiary or any Invested
Entity and for the avoidance of doubt, including any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of
China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; or

(i) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the persons mentioned in
subparagraphs (i) and (i) above.

() Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2008
Option Scheme
As at 18 April 2017, the total number of shares available for issue
was 18,584,000 shares, representing 0.33% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.
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(d)

(e)

()

(@

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the 2008
Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of Shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the total number of issued Shares on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval by the shareholders in a general meeting with
such Eligible Person and his/her associates abstaining from voting has
been obtained.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of HK$10.00 is
payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer. Such amount
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Basic of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less than the
highest of:

()  the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, which must be a
business day; and

(iii)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in the offer
letter in respect of the option.

Remaining life

The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme.

(d)

(e)

()

(@)

(h)
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Movements under the 2008 Option Scheme

Details of movements in the share options under the 2008 Option Scheme, and
the options outstanding as at the beginning and the year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:

2008F 2R &5t & T2 2B

2008 AR &I T R i 2 8 RN SR 9] R 22017
FIZANBUEFEZRITERREFBENT :

Closing
Number of Number price
share of share per share
options . options immediately
held as at Change:i;r;gnthe year held as at Exercise before date
1 January 31 December price of grant of
Name of grantee(s) Date of grant 2017 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2017 per share Exercisable period  share options
R2017% R2017%
1A18 12A318 RERRE
#EZ BEZ AR
REARE RHAH HRERE R fiE ES: ¢ i} HERERE BRITER 18 SREHE
(dd/mm/yyyy) (HK9) (dd/mmAyyy) (HK9)
(B/R/%) (B¥T) (B/R/%) (%)
Directors
£
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,000 = = = = 1,334,000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 0311212019 1.02
LUI Chun Pong 01/09/2011 750,000 = = = = 750,000 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021 127
BEA
Employees (n aggregate) 23/05/2008 14,000,000%" = = = = 14,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018 204
&R (#:) 041212009 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000 - - 102 041212010 03122019 102
01/09/2011 1,500,000% = = = = 1,500,000 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021 127
Total 18,584,000 - - (1,000,000) - 17,584,000
#it
Notes: B3 -

(1) Share options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 3
December 2019.

2) Share options were vested in three portions on 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 31
August 2021.

(3)  Share options were vested in three portions on 1 January 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively,
and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 22 May 2018.

(4)  These 1,000,000 share options lapsed on 30 June 2017.
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(1) REEDBIR2010%F  2011F %2012F 12 4B IR =S F/E -
W& B B HREE2019512 A30 IL A Fi7E-

(2)  REAEDBIR20124F - 2013F %2014F9A30 R IR = S & -
W& B BB E2021F8A31 H ILEARIA] F1T{E -
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year, the Company operated a share option scheme pursuant to
which options may be granted, inter alia, to the directors of the Company. Details
of such scheme and the movements in options are set out in the paragraphs
entitled “Share Option Schemes” above. Further details of options granted and/
or shares allotted or transferred to the directors of the Company are disclosed
in the paragraph entitled “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations” and Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. YAN lJie (a Non-executive Director)
was the board chairman of KEMEEFEERBR AT (“Tewoo Property”)
engaging in property development in the PRC (the “Tewoo Business”). Based
on Tewoo Group's website, in recent years, it has developed and is developing
projects of approximately 1.4 million sgm GFA in total. Tewoo Property is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Tewoo Group, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

For the purposes of the Listing Rules, Mr. YAN lJie is considered to have interests
(by way of directorship) in competing businesses (i.e. property development and
investment in the PRC). The operations of Tewoo Property and the Group and
their respective management are totally separate and independent. Therefore,
the Company has been and continues to carry on its business, management and
operation independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Tewoo Business.

As disclosed in page 78 and page 79, Mr. Zhou Wei (an Executive Director), has
interests in Zhong Wu Xin He which engaging in property development in the
PRC.

For the purposes of the Listing Rules, Mr. Zhou Wei is considered to have interests
(by way of shareholding) in competing businesses (i.e. property development and
investment in the PRC). The operations of Zhong Wu Xin He and the Group and
their respective management are totally separate and independent. Therefore,
the Company has been and continues to carry on its business, management and
operation independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Zhong Wu Xin He.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (excluding Independent
Non-executive Directors) were interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

Issuance of convertible preference shares

On 8 January 2015 and 8 July 2015, the Company issued a total of
5,654,772,134 CPSs as the consideration (excluding the holdback amount)
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Goleman International Limited.
On 15 January 2016, the Company further issued 259,263,039 CPSs to settle
the holdback amount which was pending the determination of the aggregate
amount of fee, fine or penalty (if any) charged under the relevant land grant
contract or applicable People’s Republic of China (“PRC") laws at any time after
completion but on or before 31 December 2015 in respect of any delay in the
development of certain acquired parcels of land. On 26 April 2016, the Company
lastly issued 295,833,333 CPSs to settle the remaining holdback amount after the
issue of land use rights certificates in respect of the remaining land.

3-year senior notes

In January 2016, the Company issued a 3-year senior notes with principal
amounts of USD150 million due on 22 January 2019 bearing interest of 8.5%
per annum which is payable semi-annually (the “Senior Notes 2019"). The Senior
Notes 2019 achieved at a lower coupon than the Senior Notes 2018 which was
issued in May 2015 reflects certain market interests in our 3-year USD notes. The
Senior Notes 2019 are also listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Redemption by holders of 6.0% Convertible Bonds due 2017

On 25 October 2016, the Company has received notices for the exercise of the
put option in respect of USD94,700,000 in principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds (the “Redemption Principal”), representing approximately 97.33% in
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds outstanding as at that date. In
November 2016, the Company settled the Redemption Principal together with
interest accrued.

On 11 August 2017, the Company redeemed all outstanding US$100 million 6%
convertible bonds due 2017 (“2017 Convertible Bonds”) in full at the redemption
price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount of US$2,600,000 plus
accrued and unpaid interest of US$30,758. The total redemption price paid by the
Company on the redemption date was US$2,630,758. There are no outstanding
2017 Convertible Bonds in issue after the redemption.

Upon completion of the above redemptions, the 2017 Convertible Bonds have
been cancelled and delisted from the Stock Exchange upon the close of business
on 25 August 2017.

Save as above, the option scheme mentioned under “Share Option Scheme”
above and in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
had no other outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights as at 31 December 2017. Other than those disclosed above and in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, there was no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participated defined contribution retirement schemes during the year.
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in Note 2(u)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares

and Underlying Shares of the Company E

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the following
substantial shareholders (other than a director and the chief executive of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, A2 :

were as follows:
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EIERRREILFIROERIEAREFHEE 182 R K

201756124318  IRIEEFH LB EEHI 336K A &)
BAFFEZERMARE THEERE (ARFEER
TTERBBE R IN) AR RN AR D P A 2wk

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company REXEIRGERIEGRIGZIFE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in
shares held/ Number of the issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity involved underlying shares share capital
HERT
s BRZ BFERZ
BER&E 4] ;3778 4| HEAR S A BHhaEsL
(Note 3)
(P7E3)
(1) Tewoo Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of controlled 513,861,240 3,000,000,000 61.57%
corporation
REVEESEBRRATA Ry AE S
(2) Tewoo Investment Co., Limited BenefiEial owner 137,940,000 - 2.42%
AT EBR AT EmEEA
Interests of controlled 375,921,240 3,000,000,000 59.16%
c’orporation
SR B
(3) Riant Investment Co., Limited Benefigial owner 375,921,240 3,000,000,000 59.16%
IR EBRAT EmEAA
(4) Neo Summit Beneficial owner 475,816,993 - 8.34%
g EmEE A (Note 1(a))
(P3E1@))
(5) Summit View Beneficial owner 991,041,796 - 17.37%
= EREEA (Note 1(b))
(BT#E1(b))
(6) MA Kwing, Pony Interests of controlled corporation 1,466,858,789 - 25.70%
&Him P AE s (Note 1)
(B&ED)
Interests of spouse = 2,704,166,666 47.39%
Ao (B (Note 2)
(P=E2)
(7) Wilfred WONG Ying Wai Beneficial owner 26,000,000 - 0.46%
FHEE ExREAA
Interests of controlled corporation 1,466,858,789 - 25.70%
T EE R (Note 1)
(H=E1)
(8) Rich Century Development Limited Beneficial owner - 2,704,166,666 47.39%
It 2R BR A EmEAA (Note 2)
(Pt7E2)
*  For identification purposes only * EHBER
FEEEERERAT 20175 K 75
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest in
shares held/ Number of the issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity involved underlying shares share capital
EERT
i BRZ BFERZ
BRER 4] Bin&E & E L EoI=R2 44
(Note 3)
(P7E3)
(9) China Merchants Securities Co., Interests of controlled corporation 276,855,000 - 4.85%
Ltd.
BREEFRGBR AR R AE R (long position)
(#rE)
83,100,000 - 1.46%
(short position)
(#B)
(10) China Merchants Securities Interests of controlled corporation 276,855,000 - 4.85%
International Company Limited B
REELFBEEER AR S AE S (long position)
(tF&)
83,100,000 - 1.46%
(short position)
(#E)
(11) China Merchants Securities Beneficial owner 193,755,000 - 3.40%
Investment Management (HK)
Co., Limited
REEFREER () Exn#EAA (long position)
BRATA (&r’E)
(12) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)  Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
Limited B
P AE s (Note 4)
(B3E4)
(13) Cheng Yu Tung Family Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
(Holdings Il) Limited B
A EIES (Note 4)
(FT7E4)
(14) Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
A E s (Note 4)
(Pt sE4)
(15) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
T EE R (Note 4)
(FI5E4)
(16) Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited  Beneficial owner 400,000,000 - 7.01%
BARBREAERAR ExnBEAA (Note 4)
(Bi3E4)
(17) MAK Siu Hang Viola Interests of controlled corporation 434,484,000 - 7.61%
2 REAE
(18) VMS Holdings Limited Interests of controlled corporation 434,484,000 - 7.61%
SPEAE RS
(19) VMS Investment Group Ltd. Beneficial owner 434,484,000 - 7.61%
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1. (a) 475,816,993 Shares are held by Neo Summit, which is owned by (a) Pinnacle State
Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings Limited (“Summit
View") as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%; and (d)
Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly
wholly-owned by Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai. Jones Capital Investments Limited is
wholly-owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony (“Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed
to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the
SFO.

(b) 991,041,796 ordinary shares are held by Summit View, which is owned as to 50% by
Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed
to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the
SFO.

2. As disclosed in (i) the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014, Hsin Chong
Property Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
entered into the Acquisition Agreement with Rich Century (@ company wholly-owned by
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan) as the Vendor and Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan as the warrantor regarding a very
substantial acquisition in relation to the acquisition of a property development project in the
PRC; and (i) the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2014, a Supplemental
Agreement was entered into amongst the same parties. As part of the consideration of
the Acquisition Agreement, the Company may issue to Rich Century CPSs which can be
converted into Shares in the Company. As such, Rich Century being a company wholly
owned by Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
under the SFO. MA Kwing, Pony is the spouse of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan and is deemed to be
interested under the SFO.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015 in relation to the
issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, the total number of CPSs (issued or which
may be issued) to Rich Century and which can be converted into Shares of the Company is
6,253,829,151. Upon issue of certain number of CPSs to Rich Century on 8 January 2015,
it then disposed 1,855,563,322 CPSs on the same date. Therefore, as of 30 June 2015, Rich
Century held 4,398,265,830 CPSs (rounding difference included).

As further disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2015, 15
January 2016 and 26 April 2016 respectively in relation to the issuance of CPSs as part of
the consideration, Rich Century was further allotted by the Company 1,095,042,146 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs and 295,833,333 CPSs on 8 July 2015, 15 January 2016 and 26 April
2016 respectively. Rich Century then disposed 1,095,042,146 CPSs, 43,960,645 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs, 280,000,000 CPSs and 15,833,333 CPSs on 15 July 2015, 15 January
2016, 19 January 2016, 29 April 2016 and 31 May 2016 respectively. Therefore, as at 31
December 2017, Rich Century held 2,704,166,666 CPSs.

3. There were 5,706,670,104 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December
2017.

4. As of 31 December 2017, 400,000,000 shares are held by Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited,
which is owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited as to 99.80%. Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited is owned by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited as to 78.58%. Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited is in turn owned by (i) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited as to 48.98% and (ii)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited as to 46.65%.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than a director and the chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Connected Transactions

Provision of financial assistance to Zhong Wu Xin He

On 24 August 2016, Hsin Chong Finance Lease (China) Company Limited
(the “Finance Lease Company”) and Zhong Wu Xin He Property Development
Company Limited (“Zhong Wu Xin He") is an associate of Mr. Zhou Wei
("Mr. Zhou") who is an Executive Director, entered into a Sale and Leaseback
Agreement, pursuant to which, (i) the Finance Lease Company shall purchase
the Properties from Zhong Wu Xin He at a consideration of RMB500,000,000;
and (ii) upon the settlement of the first instalment of the purchase price of the
Properties of RMB130,000,000 by the Finance Lease Company, the Finance Lease
Company shall lease the Properties back to Zhong Wu Xin He for a period of 8
years commencing from 24 August 2016, for an aggregate lease consideration
of approximately RMB203,485,214.31 payable semi-annually. The interest rate is
calculated on the basis of 12% per annum.

On 25 August 2016, the Finance Lease Company has paid Zhong Wu Xin He
RMB 129,000,000 (after deducting RMB1,000,000 as security money) as the first
instalment of the purchase price of the Properties.

On 15 December 2016, the Finance Lease Company, Zhong Wu Xin He, Hsin
Chong Holdings (China) Limited (“Hsin Chong China”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tianjin Jiu Ding Ke Mao Company
Limited entered into the Confirmation Letter, pursuant to which it was confirmed
among the parties that (i) the Sale and Leaseback Agreement (including the
pledges of the equity interest in Zhong Wu Xin He and the mortgage of the
Properties by Zhong Wu Xin He) shall be terminated; (ii) the first instalment of
the RMB129,000,000 paid by the Finance Lease Company to Zhong Wu Xin He
under the Sale and Leaseback Agreement shall be treated as an unsecured loan
provided by the Finance Lease Company to Zhong Wu Xin He; and (iii) the rights
of the Finance Lease Company under such loan shall be assigned to Hsin Chong
China, a fellow subsidiary of the Finance Lease Company. On the same day, the
Finance Lease Company, Hsin Chong China and Zhong Wu Xin He entered into
an agreement, pursuant to which, the parties agreed that Zhong Wu Xin He
shall repay the loan of RMB129,000,000 which was originally received from the
Finance Lease Company under the Sale and Leaseback Agreement to Hsin Chong
China before 21 August 2024. The interest rate for the loan of RMB129,000,000
shall be 12% per annum which shall be paid by Zhong Wu Xin He semi-annually.

78 Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

REXS

R 15 FOIE 4 7 7 5 BY

M20165F8A248 - FTEMEMRE (PE)BR AR ([
EHERA])BEERFYENEHEREAGRAF ([H
WEN BRTEZRAREE(ALE]) 2 —2HBE
N)EIMERBRGE BOBREHERRIAUNARE
500,000,0007T Z BRI {E B EZEWE kiR
BMEHRERARINZEMEREENEHREARYE
130,000,0007C1% * @ EHE R RIZEN2016F8 H24H B
SFHIRNEZEMERRLTYEN HERREN A
AR#5203,485,2143170  BEFF I —K - HEREFIRZ
FEB12%tHE -

R20165F8A25H B HERARIBEMAMEMIHAR
#129,000,0007T (44N AR ¥ 1,000,000 E AR 7E S )
EBZEWEREBZHHRE-

MR2016F 128158 BEME QA - FWEM - KNRAEH
—EEE2ENB AR SR (R ERAR ([F8
PR RRENERIE AR AT LR - EI &5
R (VERAEDE (BERYEMERTYEFZ iE
RERZEME)BERLE: (IRMERERARREERME
2] 7 75 2 [7) AP 90 = 0 =2 1+ B9 A R #5129,000,0007T & X
HEMEAREREQG AT YEMRENERIFER:
K EHERARRZEERTHEFN EEELmEM
ERRMARNBAREGLH -RH @EHEAR
FEFBR LAY EMNIL MR it SHFREFY
EFIER20248 A21H Z IR EF REERZVAME
HERAFREEZAR B EREME 2 AKR%129,000,0007T
ZER-Z%E ARY129,000,000 2 ERZ MR ABEE
2% JERFRYEMEELEI LK



Provision of financial assistance to Beijing Xuan He

On 27 December 2016, Beijing Xuan He, Hsin Chong China and Zhong Wu
Xin He entered into the Loan Agreement, pursuant to which Hsin Chong China
agreed to advance a loan to Beijing Xuan He in the sum of RMB247,500,000 for a
term of period from 28 December 2016 to 12 November 2018. The interest rate
for the loan shall be 0.91667% per month payable in four instalments during the
term of the loan. The loan together with the unpaid interest may be prepaid in full
after the expiry of six months from the commencement date of the term of the
loan by giving ten working days notice to Hsin Chong China. Pursuant to the Loan
Agreement, Zhong Wu Xin He shall act as the guarantor for Beijing Xuan He.

Listing rules implications

As Zhong Wu Xin He is an associate of Mr. Zhou who is an Executive Director,
Zhong Wu Xin He is a connected person of the Company, and Beijing Xuan He
is a deemed connected person of the Company within the meaning under the
Listing Rules, the entering into of each of the Sale and Leaseback Agreement,
the Confirmation Letter, the Cooperation Agreement and the Loan Agreement
constitutes connected transaction and the transactions as contemplated
thereunder constitute connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As the relevant percentage ratios in respect of the Sale and Leaseback Agreement,
the Confirmation Letter, the Cooperation Agreement and the Loan Agreement,
on an aggregated basis, exceed 5% and the total value of the financial
assistance plus the monetary advantage to the connected person is more
than HK$10,000,000, the transactions thereunder constitutes a non-exempt
connected transaction for the Company and is therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company had omitted to comply with the reporting, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements of Rule 14A.35 of the
Listing Rules and failed to announce the provisions of financial assistance to the
connected entities at the time of the execution of the relevant agreements at the
material time.

For details of the connected transactions mentioned above, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2017.

For the relevant 2016 audit issues, the Board established the Independent
Investigation Committee in late March 2017 and authorised it to conduct
independent investigations thereon.

The Independent Investigation Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors and it engages P. C. Woo & Co. to provide the independent
non-executive Directors with relevant legal advice in respect of the independent
investigations. Subsequently, P C. Woo & Co. engaged Deloitte Advisory (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Deloitte”) to conduct independent investigations on the audit
issues.
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On 10 January 2018, Deloitte issued the investigation report. For the summary of
their main findings and the corresponding recommendations, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 9 January 2018 and 19 January 2018.

The Independent Investigation Committee accepted the factual findings made
by Deloitte as documented in the investigation report, based on which the
Independent Investigation Committee have issued its report on 15 January
2018 and in which it has made a number of recommendations to the Board for
resolving the audit issue.

Refer to the Independent Investigation Committee report, one of the
recommendation issue is the termination of the duties and powers of Mr.
Zhou within the Group. The Company has resolved to remove Mr. Zhou from
his positions as directors in the subsidiaries of the Group and terminated his
employment as Chief Strategic Officer with the Group. The employment of Mr.
Zhou as the Chief Strategic Officer with the Group was terminated immediately
and Mr. Zhou has already tendered resignation as director of the relevant
subsidiaries of the Group, which will become effective upon the completion of the
registration with the relevant local authorities.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Smart Lane, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has already sold
all its shareholding in Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”) to Champ Key, the
transaction of which was completed on 21 November 2016 (“Completion”). As
such, since Synergis is no longer a subsidiary of the Company, the transactions
between Synergis and the Company are no longer regarded as connected
transactions since 21 November 2016.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 66% (2016: 52%) of the
Group's total revenue and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 23%
(2016: 19%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The 5 largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% (2016: less than
30%) of the Group's total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

Senior Notes, Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The particulars of senior notes, bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2017 are set out in Notes 30, 32 and 33 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Convertible Bonds

On 11 August 2017, the company redeemed all outstanding US$100 million
6% convertible bonds due 2017 (the “2017 Convertible Bonds”) in full at the
redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof
being the outstanding principal amount of US$2,600,000 of the existing
2017 Convertible Bonds, plus accrued and unpaid interest of US$30,758. The
total redemption price paid by the Company on the redemption date was
US$2,630,758. Further details on redemption of the 2017 Convertible Bonds had
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 21 August 2017.
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Donations
During the year, donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes
amounted to HK$35,018 (2016: HK$157,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Save for disclosed in the “Convertible Bonds" section above, the Company has
not purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2017.

Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. In relation to those related party transactions
that also constituted connected transaction or continuing connected transactions
of the Group as defined in the Listing Rules, if any, the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with except for the connected transaction disclosed in pages 85 to 87.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of knowledge of its directors.

Auditor

BDO Limited have been appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 14 August 2017 to fill the casual vacancy following the retirement of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company which took effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2017
and did not offer themselves for re-appointment. Save for the above, there has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
were audited by BDO Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for

the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LIN Zhuo Yan
Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{5E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties relating to
going concern and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements and because we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence as described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our
report. In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

(1) Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
reported loss attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$774 million
and had a net operating cash outflow of approximately HK$2,636 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. As at the same date, the Group's
total borrowings amounted to HK$13,860 million, of which HK$10,582
million were classified as current liabilities, while its unrestricted cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$784 million only.

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report, total borrowings
of the Group of HK$1,167 million and HK$1,932 million were overdue
respectively but the Group has not been able to obtain extensions of
repayments of such balances prior to the date of this report. These overdue
borrowings without extension would be immediately repayable if and when
requested by the lenders. Furthermore, in respect of the total borrowings of
the Group in aggregate of HK$3,798 million as at 31 December 2017, the
Group did not meet certain financial ratios as set out in the covenants in
the relevant borrowing agreements. Should the above-mentioned situations
constitute or have become events of default under the respective borrowing
agreements, including those under the cross-default terms, these might
cause an aggregate amount of borrowings up to HK$6,463 million at
31 December 2017, of which an aggregate amount of HK$3,256 million
had original contractual repayment dates beyond 31 December 2018, to
become immediately repayable and the said amount of HK$3,256 million
might be classified as current liabilities accordingly. These conditions indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, and to
remediate certain delayed repayments to financial institutions, which are
set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends on the outcome of these measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) the successful negotiations
with the lenders for the renewal of or extensions for repayments of
outstanding borrowings, including those with overdue principals and
interests; (i) the success of additional new sources of financing as and when
needed; (jii) the successful implementation and acceleration of its disposal
plans of its property, plant and equipment and leasehold land, investment
properties, properties under development and completed properties held
for sale, including timely execution of definitive sales agreements and timely
collection of the disposal proceeds, and the successful deferral of capital
expenditures for the Group's projects held on hand; (iv) the successful pre-
sales of certain residential units in Foshan so as to generate operating cash
inflows; (v) the successful negotiation with the Group’s existing lenders such
that no action will be taken by the relevant lenders to demand immediate
repayments of the borrowings in any breach of loan covenants or default,
including those with cross-default terms; and (vi) the successful maintenance
of relationship with the suppliers of the Group, in particular those in relation
to the Group’s construction business and property development projects
such that no actions will be taken by those suppliers against the Group
should the Group not be able to meet all the payment obligations on a
timely basis.

The Company's ex-auditor did not express audit opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 (the “Company’s 2016 financial statements”) due to the potential
interaction of the above-mentioned multiple uncertainties relating to
going concern and the possible cumulative effect on the Company’s 2016
financial statements, and the other limitations on their scope of audit
procedures. The Group's financial position as of 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this report, and the measures undertaken by the directors
of the Company to improve the Group’s financial position as summarised
above are substantially the same as that existing as of 31 December
2016 and as of date of the auditor’s report on the Company’'s 2016
financial statements. The multiple uncertainties remain unresolved as of 31
December 2017 and their possible cumulative effects on the consolidated
financial statements could be both material and pervasive.
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@

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans and measures,
it might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying values
of the Group's assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Transactions and balances relating to Mr. Zhou Wei, former
executive director of the Company and his related entities

In response to the following matters, we have encountered various
limitations during the course of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

(i) Funding arrangements in relation to certain properties in
Beijing

A set of agreements (“Agreement A"”), which was not complete and
fully executed, was entered into by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group (“Subsidiary A”), Mr. Zhou Wei (“Mr. Zhou"), and a People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") incorporated company indirectly owned
by Mr. Zhou and his relative (“Mr. Zhou's Company A"). Pursuant
to Agreement A, Mr. Zhou's Company A sold certain properties in
Beijing, the PRC (the “BJ Properties”) to the Group at a consideration
of RMB500 million. According to Agreement A, the Group made a
first instalment of RMB130 million upon fulfilling certain conditions, of
which RMB129 million had been paid by Subsidiary A to Mr. Zhou's
Company A in August 2016.

Another set of agreements (“Complete Agreement A”) were entered
by Subsidiary A, Mr. Zhou and Mr. Zhou's Company A which was
the same as Agreement A except that they were complete and fully
executed. Pursuant to further documents entered into by Subsidiary
A, another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group ("Subsidiary B")
and Mr. Zhou's Company A (“Further Documents”), Agreement A
was terminated as Subsidiary A did not provide the remaining funding
of RMB370 million under that agreement. Furthermore, the balance
of RMB129 million advanced by Subsidiary A was treated as an
unsecured loan to Mr. Zhou's Company A, which carries interest at
12% per annum and is repayable before 21 August 2024.

This balance of RMB129 million was recorded as “Receivables and
Prepayments” under non-current assets in the Group's consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2016.

@)
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(i)

The loan of RMB129 million was carried forward as “Receivables and
Prepayments” under non-current assets in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2017. Interest income of RMB16
million was recognised in the Group’s consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and interest receivables of
RMB16 million was recorded as “Receivables and Prepayments” under
current assets in the Group's consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2017.

Cooperation agreement in relation to the BJ Properties

A cooperation agreement was entered into between another
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group (“Subsidiary C") and
another PRC incorporated company owned by Mr. Zhou's relatives
("Mr. Zhou's Company B") together with a guarantee agreement
entered into amongst Subsidiary C, Mr. Zhou's Company A and Mr.
Zhou (collectively, “Agreement B”). Pursuant to Agreement B, as
considerations for certain services provided by Mr. Zhou's Company
B, Subsidiary C should pay a total amount of RMB247.5 million
to Mr. Zhou's Company B. Payments of RMB126.2 million and
RMB121.3 million were made by Subsidiary C to another company
indirectly owned by Mr. Zhou on 29 December 2016 and 13 January
2017, respectively, which were financed by a long-term loan facility
of RMB420 million provided by a financial institution in the PRC to
the Group on 28 December 2016. Pursuant to the relevant loan
agreement, Mr. Zhou's Company A agreed to pledge the BJ Properties
to the financial institution as a security to the loan facility of RMB420
million provided to Subsidiary C.

Pursuant to another agreement (“Agreement C"), Agreement B was
subsequently terminated and a loan agreement (“Agreement D")
was entered into, pursuant to which total payments of RMB247.5
million, made on 13 January 2017 in accordance with Agreement B,
are treated as a loan from Subsidiary C to Mr. Zhou's Company B for a
term of period from 28 December 2016 to 12 November 2018, which
carries interest at 0.91667% per month.

As at 31 December 2016, the first payment of RMB126.2 million was
recorded as “Receivables and Prepayments” under non-current assets
in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016.
No profit or loss was recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2016 in this connection.
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As at 31 December 2017, the total payments of RMB247.5 million
was recorded as “Receivables and Prepayments” under current assets
in the Group's consolidated balance sheet. Interest income of RMB27
million was recognised in the Group’s consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and interest receivables of
RMB27 million was recorded as “Receivables and Prepayments” under
current assets in the Group's consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2017.

However, the directors of the Company were unable to provide us
with adequate documentary evidence to support the proper approval
of these transactions at or prior to the transaction dates, nor were
they able to provide satisfactory and consistent explanations about
their business rationale and commercial substance. We were also
not able to obtain all the necessary corroborative evidence from the
counterparties to substantiate the nature of these transactions and the
related outstanding balances. Because of the above scope limitations,
and there were no alternative audit procedures that we could perform,
we are unable to satisfy ourselves as to:

(i)  ascertain the business rationale and commercial substance,
occurrence, accuracy, completeness and presentation of these
transactions and the related balances as at and during the year
ended 31 December 2017; and

(i) whether the effects of these transactions have been properly
accounted for and disclosed, including the accuracy and
completeness of any related party transaction disclosures.

The Company’s ex-auditor did not express audit opinion on the
Company's 2016 financial statements due to, among other matters,
limitations on their scope of audit procedures in relation to these
transactions and balances with Mr. Zhou and entities related to him.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYBRBEMEE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016, were audited by another auditor who expressed a disclaimer of
opinion on those statements on 18 April 2017.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number PO5018

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

ma R

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B ZE201712A31BIEFE
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE BETT BT T
Continuing operations BEEEER
Revenue g 5 6,302,374 9,823,216
Cost of sales 4 B 10 (6,137,310) (9,366,767)
Gross profit EH 165,064 456,449
Other losses, net H b 518558 7 (20,278) (1,106,159)
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties % & ¥12 A L EWES, (E518) 18 707,268 (883,925)
Provision for impairment of properties BRPYERERE
under development B 8 (361,383) (1,924,025)
Net exchange loss P 5 5185 58 (25,978) (101,899)
Selling and general administrative expenses 356 & — 1T B (600,031) (507,182)
Amortisation of intangible assets | E E#E 19 (21,040) (12,340)
Interest income B U A 48,845 12,101
Interest expenses FEMAX 9 (369,999) (154,465)
(477,532) (4,221,445)
Share of loss of an associated company FE(h — 8 &R R E 18 21 - (52,015)
Loss before taxation MR AT ES 1B 10 (477,532) (4,273,460)
Taxation HIE 14 (93,206) 1,350,866
Loss for the year from continuing operations  7i¢ &5 15 48 48 & ¥ F8 M) AN 4E &
B8 (570,738) (2,922,594)
Discontinued operation BRIEEESRE
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHE ARz Y 6 - 185,915
Profit for the year from discontinued operation?R B B 4% | F 45 & 215 &) AN 6 & Vi F) 6 - 24,493
- 210,408
Loss for the year AFEEE (570,738) (2,712,186)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(E (B518) s Al -
Equity holders of the Company ARalERBFEEA (774,382) (2,733,500)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 203,644 21,314
(570,738) (2,712,186)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders RNATERTE AN (FB)
of the Company: A
Continuing operations SIBC B TS (774,382) (2,936,129)
Discontinued operation BRI AT - 202,629
(774,382) (2,733,500)
Loss per share from REABBECEER 2 GREBRE
continuing operations (HK cents) (L)
Basic HAK 15 (13.6) (52.6)
Diluted g 15 (13.6) (52.6)
Earnings per share from discontinued KEDRIEEEER 2 BRAT
operation (HK cents) (BREAL)
Basic YN 15 - 36
Diluted i3 15 - 36
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31BIEEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Loss for the year XEEBR (570,738) (2,712,186)
Other comprehensive income Htt 2@k S
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & E# 741872 EH -
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations BRRENEECIBEEE (666) (101)
Fair value gain on leasehold land and building HETHEEFZ AAEBERE 32,924 117,548
Deferred tax on fair value gain of HETHEEFAABEREZ
leasehold land and building PRIEFL T8 (5.432) (19,395)
Release of deferred tax upon disposal of HEMRE T RIEFR
leasehold land and building B EIRET IR 108,711 -
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to HEn e EF 7 B Rm o HE -
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHHERBEE 2 ARBEEE
financial asset (1,821) (1,877)
Deferred tax on fair value loss of AHEENBKEEAABEBEZ
available-for-sale financial asset EERIA 455 469
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEBINEBEEZIER 58
foreign operations 1,034,878 (1,034,216)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEFEEEMRRARCEMZERE
net of tax 1,169,049 (937,572)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FTEEEMBRERZ2EREEE
net of tax 598,311 (3,649,758)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE{E 2 EI S :
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEEA 347,941 (3,631,959)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR FE 2 250,370 (17,799)
598,311 (3,649,758)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2017
72017412 A31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE BETT BT
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M WS RREREE LM
and leasehold land 17 2,486,922 3,010,816
Investment properties "B 18 11,317,718 9,597,022
Intangible assets EmREE 19 186,018 194,200
Goodwill EES 20 - -
Available-for-sale financial asset AR E B EE 23 27,964 29,785
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R BN & 26 534,203 661,070
Deferred tax assets REFIAE E 29 5,044 9,056
14,557,869 13,501,949
Current assets ) E
Properties under development BRPYE 24 15,916,556 13,429,518
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress FEREERTE 25 2,007,585 2,395,934
Receivables and prepayments RUERF R IFE & 26 2,524,837 3,063,363
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & U 122 A% 12 25 3518 27 2,250 267
Amounts due from other partners of R REE 2
joint operations Hib & ERHRIE 22 8,369 8,041
Tax recoverable AT [ 5 18 7,277 -
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents F-RekERBEEER 28 784,137 411,147
Restricted cash ZRRFIRE 28 395,454 627,416
21,646,465 19,935,686
Current liabilities mE A
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (25,216)
Bank loans IRITER 30 (1,039,886) (2,329,735)
Convertible bonds AR ES 34 - (44,696)
Other borrowings HithfgE 32 (7.224,732) (4,151,612)
Senior notes BEEE 33 (2,317,069)
Payables and accruals JEMERF N ERHE A 31 (5,583,736) (6,01 1,998)
Amounts due to other partners of FERHEREE 2
joint operations Hih&1ERHKIA 22 (44,772) (22,847)
Financial derivative liability CRIVTETHRARE 34 - (183)
Current tax liabilities EHNIBEAE (89,180) (81,827)
(16,299,375) (12,668,114)
Net current assets mENEERE 5,347,090 7,267,572
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRHAR 19,904,959 20,769,521
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RAEEREXR
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B eE BETT BB TIT
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Other borrowings HEE 32 (2,115,044) (1,610,389)
Senior notes BAEZER 33 (1,141,161) (3,417,715)
Private bonds LEESH 32 (21,903) -
Long service payment liabilities EHRScaE 35 (2,943) (2,157)
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEAE 29 (4,918,922) (4,632,585)
Total non-current liabilities R & FEE (8,199,973) (9,662,846)
Net assets BEBRE 11,704,986 11,106,675
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to EAFRSFFABRGEFRER
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital &N 36 1,141,084 1,141,084
Other reserves HiEE 9,391,099 8,937,241
Retained profits IREE i A 340,868 446,785
Proposed dividends HR A% B, 16 = -
10,873,051 10,525,110
Non-controlling interests JEIRRRiES 46 831,935 581,565
Total equity k=3 4y 11,704,986 11,106,675

The financial statements on pages 89 to 199 were approved by the Board of  Z89E199E ¥ M IR KX B &L HE B L M2018F3H23H

Directors on 23 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf. BEW R TIEEREKREE-
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung Wilfred WU Shek Chun

E=4 By RAEEE

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer
HITEFFRTIHEH HITEEFRERRERE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B ZE201712A31BIEFE
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ks BETRT BETT
Operating activities ﬁﬁ‘iﬁiﬂ
Net cash outflow from operations e 2R R I FRE 42 (730,097) (310,800)
Interest received B U F & 2,606 12,206
Interest paid ERFLE (1,895,598) (986,769)
Tax paid EATIE (34,282) (58,186)
Long service payment EHE k%< (86) (793)
Net advance from other partners of FlaE & 2 Kb 5 IERH 2
joint operations %&Mﬁ}%’éﬁ 21,597 9,868
Net cash outflow from operating BEIDCHaSNHPHE
activities (2,635,860) (1,334,474)
Investing activities BREED
Acquisition of a non-wholly owned WiE—FIFEL2EME AR
subsidiary - 249
Release of time deposit over three months = 1@ A LA £ & HiTs 502 B# B 449 316
Investment in an associate R—EBERR 2 RE - (52,994)
Increase in amount due from a FEW— g ARz —RREZ
shareholder of an associate FRIBIE N - (156,044)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment Eﬁ, W s RREREE T
and leasehold land (96,543) (42,838)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEEEE (217) (544)
Additions of investment properties NBREYE (242,538) (740,986)
Deposits refunded/(paid) BiRE /(B iES 200,011 (528,415)
Increase in receivables JE YR 51,2 35 0 (140,284) (150,572)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME R RERER
plant and equipment and leasehold land HE T TS RIE 752,567 319
Net cash receipt from disposal of KB HE—FHE A RIWE
a subsidiary REFE - 190,088
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BREFBZHERA /(FH)BHE
investing activities 473,445 (1,481,421)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GELERER

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Financing activities i A E
Deposits paid [=ARE (144,764) (35,163)
Deposits refunded BRERS 23,711 -
Decrease/(increase) in receivables FEWER R Z A, (18 hn) 529,954 (535,058)
Drawdown of bank loans IREURTTE R 329,636 1,400,606
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (1,620,267) (2,627,871)
Proceeds from issuance of shares by EATERRREm B
Synergis to non-controlling interests IR IE R BT IR D
upon exercise of share options FRiS 58 - 389
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B /& T IEIE R AE IR B - (7,148)
Net proceeds from issuance of senior notes 2R B 1 TE L RIR 2 TS FHIBFEE - 1,106,501
Net proceeds from issuance of REBTILEES ZEHRIEFE
private bonds 21,357 -
Redemption of convertible bonds §E& O] ] #2 i% (& 55 (20,151) (733,943)
Repurchase of shares & [0 f% 1 — (7,583)
Drawdown of other borrowings REEAMEE 10,013,128 5,269,050
Repayment of other borrowings HEHMESR (6,819,785) (1,582,383)
(Decrease)/increase in bank overdrafts RITBEZ ORd), /180 (25,216) 25,216
Decrease/(increase) in restricted deposits SREFFORD () 231,962 (500,604)
Net cash inflow from financing activities EFHZHRERABHE 2,519,565 1,772,009
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRERRLERRBM  (KD)
equivalents 357,150 (1,043,886)
Cash and cash equivalents at the REVzZHEeRERREER
beginning of the year 404,716 1,462,716
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and cash RekFRBELBEEZ
equivalents [E 5 sk (F518) 16,289 (14,114)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RERZEERSERAAKEAR
of the year 778,155 404,716
Analysis of the balances of cash and HeRSERBREHABFZRSI:
cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted WITHEFRES TR 784,137 411,147
Less: Time deposit over three months A =1 A LA _EE BifE R (5,982) (6,431)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RERZEERSERAALEHEA
of the year 778,155 404,716
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F 128318 L FE
Convertible
Capital bonds
redemption and
and Share warrants Non-
Share Share  Exchange general Special  Revaluation options equity Other Retained controlling Total
aapital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total inteests equity
TRRES
HIWER RimEE
Bx  BREM ERRE 2 HEGE 0 GREE  EGRE DREGE  BRER  AREE  GEEH @ FHBEE  HaeH
(Note ) (Noteii) (Noteii) (Note v)
(Isk) (ki) (i) (Istw)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETn  BRTT EETn B¥Tn BBTn BMTn B¥Tn BT BT BT BETR BT BT
At 1 January 2017 0751818 1,141,084 9,906,163 (187709 15,864 332,046 537,351 13035 9874 - 46785 10525110 581565 11106675
(Loss)forofit for the year 15§ (B - - - - - - - - - (774382) (774,382) 203,644 (570,738)
Other comprehensive income Af2EK
Actuara los on retement beneft RIVEHETZREFE
obligations - - - - - - - - - (666) (666) - (666)
Fairvalle gan on leasehold land and HETHREF AEYE
buiding - - - - - 3294 - - - - 294 - 3294
Deferred tax on fai value gain of RETHREFAREREL
leasehold and and buiding gz - - - - - (5432 - - - - (5432 - (543
Release of defered tax upon dlsposal of HERELIR
Jeasefold and and builing BRRAOEEHNE - - - - - 108711 - - - - 108711 - 108711
Falrvalue loss on avallble-forsale AHHER AR MESE
finandial assets - - - - - (1821) - - - - (1821) - (1821)
Deferte tax on fair value loss of AR HEELLEREY
avalable-forsal financl asset jidiz] - - - - - 45 - - - - 45 - 45
Exchange differences aring on BEENEREL BN EE
translation of foreign operations - - 988152 - - - - - - - 988152 46726 1034878
Total comprehensive income il estie - - 988,152 - - 134837 - - - (775,048) 347941 250,370 598311
Transfer of revaluation reserve upon disposal of  AIHETREHi
the leasehold land and buiding L Euse e - - - - - (6885) - - - 658857 - - -
Transfer upon maturty of convertile bonds R AR EHE AR - - - - - - - (9874) - 9874 - - -
Transfer upon share options apsing B FIGE - - - - - - (400 - - 40 - - -
- - - - - (658,857) (400) (9874) - 669,131 - - -
At31 Decernber 2017 H0178128318 1,141,084 9,906,163 (888,940) 15,804 332,046 13331 12635 - - 340868 10,873,051 831935 11,704,986
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

—_ YA
REREEEEX
Capital Convertible
redemption bonds and
and Share warrants Non-
Share Share  Exchange general Special  Revaluation options equity Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserves profits Total interests equity
ThERES
HIBER RikER
Kd  RhEE  ERRE 0 HERE 0 BMEE 0 ERRE  DRERE  REGRE  XMEE  REEA it FBERE  R2EH
(Note ) (Noteil) (Noteii) (Note )
(i) (M) (F3Eii) (k)
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BT E%TT  EETn BT BBt BETr BT BBt BETr BT BT T BT
At 1January 2016 16E1A1R 1,084,335 9440807 (881,989) 14420 588,716 440,606 7 - 75314 3100814 13889140 658,231 14547371
(Loss)profit for the year rEE( E ) /,MJ - - - - - - - - - 73350 2733500 1314 (271218)
Other comprefensive income Af2E
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit LVMEM EZFMJ
obligations - - - - - - - - - (101) (101) - (101)
Fair value gain on leasehold land and BETHREF ANEYE
building - - - - - 117,548 - - - - 17,548 - 17548
Deferred tax on fair value gain of RELHREFALENE
Jeasehold land and buiding ELHE - - - - - (19,39) - - - - (19,395) - (1939
Fair value loss on avalable-forsale AHEREEE AL EEE
financial assets - - - - - (1877) - - - - (1877) - (1877)
Deferted tax on fair vaue loss of HHENBEELEERL
avallable-for-sale financal asset BB - - - - - 469 - - - - 469 - 469
Bcvange dffeencs arsing ronson. A E 80 EREL 2 EY 2R
of foreign operations - - (995,103) - - - - - - - (995,103) (39113 (1,034216)
Total comprehensive income SHREEE - - (995,103) - - 96,745 - - - TR0 (3631959 (17,799 (3649.758)
Issue of consideration preference shares EOREELR 55,510 46702 - - (256,670) - - - - - 21558 - 21554
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERmERESMEARA
convertible bonds 2683 18654 - - - - - - - - 1337 - nx7
Recognition of equity component upon
issuance of convertible bonds - - - - - - - 9874 - - 9874 - 9874
Cancelltion on repurchase of shares BERAz S (1,444) - - 1,444 - - - - - (7583) (7583) - (7583)
Issue of shares by Synergis to non-controling {7 2REM A2 EE
interests upon exercie of share options MEERERETRG - - - - - - (10) - - - (10) 499 3%
Acquiston of a non-wholly owned subsidiary & — k2 AHELE - - - - - - - - - - - 249 249
Transfer upon share options apsing BENmER - - - - - - (4,083) - - 4051 8 ®) -
Equity settled share-based transactions WA BRI BEEERS - - - - - - n - - - il 0 69
Disposal of a subsiciary HE-FIHBAR - - - - - - - - (75314) 75,307 1] (53843) (53850)
Change in ownership nterestn a R-ER%EEHR HEATZ
subsidary without loss of control BHRREY - - - - - - - - - (1,203) (1,203) 1,38 183
Dividends paid BiEke - - - - - - - - - - - (7,148) (7,148)
5,749 465,35 - 1,444 (256,670) - (4,082 9874 (15314) 705712 267,929 (58,867) 209,062
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 1,141,084 9,906,163 (1.877,092) 15,864 332,046 537,351 13035 9874 - 446,785 10,525,110 581565 11,106675
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital redemption reserve was created during the repurchase of shares of HK$1,444,000
and nil in 2016 and 2017 respectively. General reserve amounts to HK$10,000,000.

Special reserves comprise:
(@) the difference between the fair value of the consideration, net of deferred taxation
and fair value of acquiring land parcels in Tieling, the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"). This reserve will be recognised through the retained profits upon the earlier

of the disposal of the subsidiaries or the disposal by the subsidiaries of the assets to
which it relates, in proportion to the percentage the Group disposes.

the convertible preference shares issued on 15 January and 26 April 2016 for settling
part of the consideration for acquiring the properties in Foshan, the PRC in 2016.

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value change, net of deferred tax, on leasehold land
and building held for own use and available-for-sale financial asset.

Other reserves were arisen from the Group’s reorganisation and realignment of business
activities.

On 30 November 2012, the Company completed the disposal of Interiors & Special Projects
division to Driven Power Management Limited (“Driven Power”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), a separately listed subsidiary of the Company. The
transaction was accounted for as a transaction with non-controlling interests.

As part of the settlement of the consideration, Synergis issued 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares (“CPS") to the Company. In determining the Group's economic interest
in Synergis after the transaction, management has taken into account the rights of the CPS
holders, among other things, potential voting rights and the same entitlement to dividends
and other distributions as the ordinary shareholders, and that a holder of the CPS is entitled
to the return of capital in priority of ordinary shares in case of winding up of Synergis.
Accordingly, the Group’s economic interest in Synergis increased from 50.94% to 58.31%
and the gain on disposals to non-controlling interests of HK$77,664,000 was recognised in
equity.

On 21 November 2016, the Group had disposed its subsidiary, Synergis, and the related
other reserves had been transferred to retained profits.

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
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General information

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are engaged in building construction, civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical installation, property development
and investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, and were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 23 March 2018.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements which have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
leasehold land and building in Hong Kong, available-for-sale financial
asset and financial derivatives which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(i) Going concern basis

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group reported loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$774 million
(2016: HK$2,734 million) and had a net operating cash outflow
of HK$2,636 million (2016: HK$ 1,334 million). Total borrowings
increased from HK$11,580 million as at 31 December 2016
to HK$13,860 million as at 31 December 2017, of which
HK$10,582 million (2016: HK$6,551 million) were classified as
current liabilities, while its unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$784 million only.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

0]

Going concern basis (continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of the approval of
these consolidated financial statements, total borrowings of the
Group in aggregate of HK$1,167 million and HK$1,932 million
were overdue respectively but the Group has not been able to
obtain extension of repayment of such balances prior to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements. These
overdue borrowings without extension would be immediately
repayable if and when requested by the lenders.

Furthermore, in respect of the borrowings of the Group in
aggregate of HK$3,798 million as at 31 December 2017, the
Group could not meet certain financial ratios as set out in the
covenants in the relevant borrowing agreements.

Should the above-mentioned situations constitute or have
become events of default under the respective borrowing
agreements, including those under the cross-default terms,
these might cause an aggregate amount of borrowings up to
HK$6,463 million at 31 December 2017, of which an aggregate
amount of HK$3,256 million had original contractual repayment
dates beyond 31 December 2018, to become immediately
repayable and the said amount of HK$3,256 million might be
classified as current liabilities accordingly.

All of the above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In view of such
circumstances, the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as
a going concern. Certain measures have been taken to mitigate
the liquidity pressure and to improve the Group's financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the following:

(i) The Group has been actively negotiating with a number
of commercial banks and other financial institutions for
renewal and extension of bank and other borrowings
and credit facilities. Specifically, the Group is in active
negotiations with the lenders to extend the repayment
dates of the overdue borrowings, and to obtain waivers
from complying with certain restrictive covenants
contained in the loan agreements of certain borrowings;
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)

(@

100

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

In addition, the Group is identifying various options for
financing the Group's working capital and commitments
in the foreseeable future by obtaining facilities from
shareholders, issuance of shares and debt instruments;

The Group has accelerated its disposal plan of its property,
plant and equipment and leasehold land, investment
properties, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale (“Group Properties”). Apart from
selling the Group Properties, the Group expects to launch
pre-sales of certain residential units in Foshan, which are
expected to improve the Group’s operating cash inflow in
2018; and

The Group will continue to take active measures to
control administrative costs through various channels
including human resources optimisation and management
remuneration adjustment and containment of capital
expenditures.

The directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2017.
They are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within twelve months
from 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to

whether management of the Company will be able to achieve its

plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group will

be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the

Group's ability to generate adequate financing and operating

cash flows through the following:

0]

i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Successful negotiations with the lenders for the renewal of
or extensions for repayments of outstanding borrowings,
including those with overdue principals and interests;

Successful obtaining of additional new sources of financing
as and when needed;

Successful implementation and acceleration of its disposal
plan of the Group Properties, including timely execution
of definitive sales agreements and timely collection of the
disposal proceeds, and the successful deferral of capital
expenditures for the Group’s unsold projects;

Successful pre-sales of certain residential units in Foshan so
as to general operating cash inflows;

Successful negotiation with the Group's existing lenders
such that no action will be taken by the relevant lenders to
demand immediate repayment of the borrowings in any
breach of loan covenants or default, including those with
cross-default terms; and

Successful maintenance of relationship with the suppliers
of the Group, in particular those in relation to the Group's
construction business and the property development
projects such that no actions will be taken by those
suppliers against the Group should the Group not be able
to meet all the payment obligations on a timely basis.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue operate as a
going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group's assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. EEEHEBFREE )
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) HEEE(E)
(i) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on 1 (i) ERMFTR] RIETTE R EREER -

January 2017
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses
Annual improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 12,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle disclosure of interests in
other entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the additional
disclosure presented in the note supporting consolidated
statement of cash flows, Note 43.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax assets
and clarify some of the necessary considerations, including how
to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured of fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent
with the manner in which the Group has previously recognised
deferred tax assets.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 12, disclosure of interests in other
entities

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities, to clarify
that the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other than the
requirements to disclose summarised financial information, also
apply to an entity’s interests in other entities classified as held
for sale or discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS 5,
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on 1
January 2017 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities (continued)

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has no impact
on these financial performance and position of the Group
as the amendments affect only disclosure. In addition, there
is no interests in other entities classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations at the end of the reporting period.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are
relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle First-time adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting

Standards'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle investments in associates

and joint ventures'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
measurement of share-
based payment transactions'

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers'

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment
property’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) Newl/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are

relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the

financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration’

Prepayment features with
negative compensation?

Clarifies that companies
account for long-term
interests in an associate or
joint venture — to which the
equity method is not applied
— using HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments?

Amendments to: HKFRS 3,
business combinations;
HKFRS 11 joint
arrangements; HKAS 12,
income taxes; and HKAS 23
borrowing costs?

Leases?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continue to be

permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

2. FEFHBREE 5
(a) HBEREE(Z)
(i) SEMARERKEEER  BRK1K2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(iii) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are

relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
removing transition provision exemptions relating to accounting
periods that had already passed and were therefore no longer
applicable.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they
are currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a
venture capital organisation’s permissible election to measure its
associates or joint ventures at fair value is made separately for
each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; share-
based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-
settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification of financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) Newl/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are
relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

@
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HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to
use the exemption from restating comparative information and
will recognise any transition adjustments against the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's
financial statements are as follows:

(@)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2)
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and (3) fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as
follows:

The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument
is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for
trading and the entity irrevocably elects to designate
that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is
designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income
on that security will be recognised in profit or loss.
Gains, losses and impairments on that security will be
recognised in other comprehensive income without

recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with
their respective classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) Newl/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are
relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently
classified as “available-for-sale”, these are investments in
equity securities which the Group may classify as either
FVTPL or irrevocably elect to designate as FVTOCI (without
recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9.

At 31 December 2017, the Group held available-
for-sale equity investments at FVTOCI amounted to
HK$27,964,000 (Note 23). The Group plans to recognise
any fair value changes in respect of all the available-for-sale
equity investments in profit or loss (i.e. FVTPL) as they arise.

For those available-for-sale are measured at FVTOCI, this
change in policy will have no impact on the Group’s net
assets and total comprehensive income, but will increase
volatility in profit or loss in 2018.

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model,
it will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur
before an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity
is required to recognise and measure either a 12-month
expected credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances.
While the Group is in the process of assessing the extent
of impact on the impairment provisions under HKFRS 9,
it is expected that the application of the expected credit
loss model may result in earlier recognition of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's trade
and other receivables. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 would not have
material impact on the results and financial position of the
Group based on management’s assessment performed so
far.
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REMBHRRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are
relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(@) Classification and measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of an financial liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s credit risk
to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does
not have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
therefore this new requirement will not have any impact
on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

2. FESEHRFREE»)
(a) BEREE &)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(iii) Newl/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are

relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

Step 3:
Step 4:

Step 5:

The Group has assessed that its contracts with customers
fulfil the criteria for recognising revenue over time under
HKFRS 15. Methods that can be used under HKFRS 15 to
measure the Group's progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation satisfied over time include (i)
output method (i.e. recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurement of the value to the customer of the entity's
performance to date); and (ii) input method (i.e. recognise
revenue on the basis of the entity’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation).

In measuring the work progress under the new revenue
standard, the Group considers that an output method with
reference to progress certificates issued by customers and
any adjustment, where it is necessary and can be objectively
determined, on the work progress would appropriately depict
the transfer of control of goods or services to customers for
individual projects under the new standard. So far as the
measurement of progress for the Group's typical contracts
is concerned, the Group does not expect the adoption of
HKFRS 15 would significantly affect the financial position and
performance based on the assessment performed so far.

While the Group continues to assess the potential impact of
the new revenue standard, our management currently does
not expect the adoption of HKFRS 15 would have a significant
impact on how it recognises revenue and costs from contracts
with reference to the Group's typical contracts. The extent of
impact on the Group's financial position and performance upon
initial adoption of HKFRS 15 would depend on the progress of
and facts specific to the Group's individual contracts. The Group
expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will result in additional
disclosures in the Group's financial statements.
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REMBHRRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Basis of preparation (continued)
(iii) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are

relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of principal
versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 40 — Transfers of Investment
Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from investment
properties there must be a change in use and provides guidance
on making this determination. The clarification states that a
change of use will occur when a property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence in the
standard as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other
forms of evidence to support a transfer.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining the date
of the transaction for determining an exchange rate to use for
transactions that involve advance consideration paid or received
in a foreign currency and the recognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the date on which
the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income if specified
conditions are met — instead of at fair value through profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

2. FEEHBREE 5
(a) HBREE(Z)
(i) ©HEMREAEEIER B AKR2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(iii) Newl/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are

relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-
of use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease,
or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting
for leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease of
HK$105,028,000 as disclosed in Note 40. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability
in respect of all the leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition,
the application of new requirement may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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Basis of preparation (continued)
(iii) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and are

relevant to the Group but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect the
effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to
consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
based on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax authority
will examine amounts that it has a right to examine and have
full knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the
tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the
entity should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then the
uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected using either
the “most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely when
the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business
the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of adopting the above standards and amendments to existing
standards to the Group. Except as described above, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation will have
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions and/or the disclosures to the financial statements of the
Group.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December

2017.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

0]

Business Combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. Indemnification assets are
recognised as an asset of the acquirer at the same time and on
the same basis as the indemnified item is recognised as a liability
of the acquiree. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 in consolidated income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwiill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement as a gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation (continued)

114

0]

(i)

(iii)

Business Combinations (continued)

For purchase of subsidiaries which constitutes a purchase of
assets rather than a business combination, the assets and
liabilities acquired are accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies for the assets and liabilities rather
than the acquisition method of accounting.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of transferred asset. Where necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in consolidated income statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to consolidated
income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(©

(d)

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures; depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each investor has rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. For the joint arrangements that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations
to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements, they are classified
as joint operations. For the remaining joint arrangements, they are
classified as joint ventures.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investments in associates include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
consolidated income statement where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit
of investments accounted for using equity method' in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

(e)

116

Foreign currency translation

0)

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such
as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

— income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies (continued)

)
0)

(ii)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, currency translation differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.

Trademarks and trade names

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and trade names acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a finite useful life are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
They are subject to impairment testing annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

)

118

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Secured contracts

Secured contracts acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The secured
contracts have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the contracts of 5
years.

Client relationships

Client relationships acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The client
relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the client
relationships of 9 years.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design
and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are met:

— Itis technically feasible to complete the software product
so that it will be available for use;

—  Management intends to complete the software product
and to use or sell it;

—  There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

— It can be demonstrated how the software product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

- Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

—  The expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

(v) Computer software (continued)
Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets
are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not
exceed three years.
(vi) Operating right
Operating right of a property in Foshan is initially recognised at
cost. The operating right has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected life of the
operating right of 10 years.

(g) Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the companies in
the Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases. A property interest that
is held by a lessee under an operating lease may be classified and
accounted for as investment property if the property would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property and the lessee uses the
fair value model for the asset recognised.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
the end of the reporting period by independent professional qualified
valuers.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
assets. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices in less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

@)

(h)

120

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is recognised in the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the consolidated income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment and leasehold land. Its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting
purposes.

Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land

(i)  Property comprises leasehold land and building held for own
use in Hong Kong and is stated at fair value less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluation is performed with sufficient
regularity by independent professional qualified valuers. Changes
arising on the revaluation are dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated in the revaluation reserve, except
that, when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the consolidated income statement to the extent that it exceeds
the amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to revaluation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

When a revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Leasehold land in the PRC comprises prepaid operating
lease payments. Leasehold land classified as operating lease
commences amortisation form the time when land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as operating lease is calculated using
straight-line method to allocated their cost to their residual value
over their unexpired period of the lease.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
(continued)

@

(ii)

(continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as interest
expense and exchange differences capitalised during the periods
of construction. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to respective category
in property, plant and equipment and leasehold land when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land are
depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land classified as over the unexpired period of

finance lease the lease
Building 5%
Leasehold land classified as over the unexpired period of
operating lease the lease
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of
the lease
Plant and machinery 10%-50%

Furniture, fixtures and 10%-50%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%-30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

()

1)

122

Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land

(continued)

(i) (continued)
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated taking into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development comprises costs of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying
assets and professional fees incurred during the development period.

If a property under development becomes an investment property
under development when there is a change in use, any difference
resulting between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If a property under development becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and leasehold land. Its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting purposes.

Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus an
appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress payments
and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises direct materials,
labour and overheads expenses incurred in bringing the work-in—
progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers
for contract work for all contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade and retention receivables. The Group presents as a liability
the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Financial assets

The Group classifies its investment as available-for-sale financial asset.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid
prices. For financial assets that are not traded in an active market
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(m)

(n)

124

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessors are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(i) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the asset.
Lease income from an operating lease is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Q)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwiill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Borrowings

Borrowings, including senior notes, are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payable
Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

126

Current and deferred tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and joint operations
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
taxation liability is settled.

Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and joint operations, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

(®

(u)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the Notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits
The Group participates in mandatory provident fund schemes
in Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally
funded through payments to trustee-administered funds. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Employee benefits (continued)

128

0]

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in the PRC
participate in the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible employees. The
municipal government of the PRC is responsible for the entire
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay
the ongoing contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. It
is the Group’s policy to forfeit any untaken annual leave within
a specific time period. Subject to regular assessment of staff
turnover rate, a provision will be made or reversed. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Employee benefits (continued)

)

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility of
withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

(v) Long service payment liabilities
The Group's net obligation in respect of long service accounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method by
a qualified actuary. Actuarial gains or losses was credited/charged
to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(vi) Bonus plans
Provisions for bonus are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Revenue recognition

130

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of contracting work can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to date as
compared to the total contract sum receivable under the contracts.

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised when the risks and
rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers, which is when
the construction of relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered to the purchasers and collectibility of
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in the consolidated balance
sheet as advanced proceeds received from customers under current
liabilities.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the lease.

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income, consultancy
fee income, services centre charges, building management fee and
copying service income are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the

interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

x)

(7

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficial holder of the guarantee (i.e. the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its carrying amount of the net liability from the financial
guarantee with its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's equity holders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

(aa) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(ab) Convertible bonds, coupon bonds and warrants

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the option
of the holders, where the conversion price is at a stipulated price that
will be adjusted, subject to terms and formulae provided for in the
agreement of the convertible bonds, to adjust for the dilutive effects
of share split or consolidation, capital distribution, capitalisation of
profit or reserves, issuance of new shares or share options or warrants,
and etc, are accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an embedded derivative
component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(ab) Convertible bonds, coupon bonds and warrants (continued)

The liability component of convertible bonds is recognised initially
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component and embedded derivative
component are recognised initially at the difference between the fair
value of the convertible bonds as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of convertible
bonds and is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The derivative component of convertible bond is re-measured
using fair value model.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bonds equity reserve,
together with the carrying amounts of the liability and derivative
components at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds
are redeemed, the convertible bonds equity reserve is released directly
to retained profits, and any difference between the amount paid
relating to the liability component and the fair value of the liability
and derivative components is recognised in consolidated income
statement.

3. Financial risk management
(a) Financial risk factors

132

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i) Market risk
(1)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group’s
operation in Macau and the Chinese Mainland are
monitored by proper synchronisation of receipts and
payments in different operating currencies, hedging of risk
is not considered because of insignificant exposure to the
Group's working capital. The Group has no outstanding
forward exchange contract as at 31 December 2017 and
2016, but will consider hedging the foreign currency
exposure by using forward exchange contracts if needed.
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3.

Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

0]

(i)

(7

&)

3)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2016: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars
with all other variables held constant, the Group's loss for
the year would have been approximately HK$8,000 higher/
(lower) (2016: HK$23,000 higher/(lower), mainly as a result
of net foreign exchange (losses)/gains on translation of
foreign currency denominated trade and other receivables,
deposit, cash and bank balances and trade and other
payables.

Interest rate risk

Financial instruments at fixed and variable rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk respectively. The Group's interest rate risk arises
mainly from bank borrowings, other borrowings, senior
notes, private bonds and convertible bonds. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk due to fluctuation of HIBOR arising from
the Group's Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates on bank
borrowings, which carried at floating interest rate, had
been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) higher or
lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$3.8 million (2016: HK$9.1 million) as a
result of higher or lower interest expenses on floating rate
bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
financial asset held by the Group classified as available-
for-sale financial asset. The Group considers the price risk
exposure is not material.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from deposits, cash and
bank balances and receivables. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit rating.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

134

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment on the
potential customers is carried out as part of the acceptance
procedures for the new contracts.

To manage the credit risk associated with receivables, the Group
adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of the customers
and debtors, taking into account of their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Aging analysis is performed and
reviewed regularly by management of each operating segment
and follow up action will be taken, as appropriate.

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash, and
having available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. Relevant details are also set out in
Note 2(a)(i).

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating segments
of the Group and aggregated by corporate finance team.
Corporate finance team monitors forecasts of the Group's
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. For
bank loans containing a repayment on demand clause, after
taking into account the Group's financial position, the directors
do not consider that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment, and believe that the bank loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in Note 30. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payment.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

However, for bank loans containing a repayment on demand
clause, if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect, including short term
revolving loans of HK$688 million which is subject to annual
review by lenders and bank loans of HK$352 million with
scheduled repayment dates will be on demand for repayment
immediately, excluding interest payments.

REMBRRME

3. MERBER %

(a) MEBERRER &)

(iii)

RBESRER (8)

SRTI » BRI IR B IE FUE R Z IRITE K
e HERABREEFTNSEER
2R AZBBRERARFETRNZ
BH68EIL EHBRRERNAGIAR
B E B B35BT RITERKA
REREARER ENBENEMRK

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Less than Between Between Over
amount cash flow 1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years
HEDRER
RE(E RenE PR—F —FE@ME WEELE AENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EBRTT EBRTT ERTT BT BT
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%12A318
Bank loans RITER
— short term revolving —RHBRRITER 688,022 708,212 708,212 - - -
— with repayment on - BEREREERK
demand dause ZRITER 351,864 363,992 234,260 85,844 43,888 =
Other borrowings HiEE 9,339,776 10,706,520 8,538,418 2,168,102 = -
Payables JEfTERR 4,348,788 4,348,788 4,099,382 173,014 76,392 =
Amounts due to other ERLRGEL 2
partners of joint HibAER A
operations 44,772 44,772 44,772 - - -
Private bonds LEESH 21,903 35,190 1,360 1,360 13,770 18,700
Senior notes BREER 3,458,230 3,737,438 2,525,532 1,211,906 = =
Total Bt 18,253,355  19,944912 16,151,936 3,640,226 134,050 18,700
At 31 December 2016 120165128310
Bank overdrafts RITEX 25216 25216 25216 - - -
Bank loans RITER
— short term revolving —RHBRRITER 1,204,416 1,240,319 1,240,319 - - -
— with repayment on - BEREREERK
demand dause ZIRITER 1,125,319 1,151,108 943,146 78,121 129,841 -
Convertible bonds RRkES 44,696 55,359 55,359 - - -
Other borrowings Hthig & 5,762,001 6,175,656 4,388,123 1,787,533 - -
Payables JERTER R 5,166,706 5,166,706 4,957,368 157,572 51,676 90
Amounts due to other ERERGL 2
partners of joint Hih B IERH A
operations 22,847 22,847 22,847 - - -
Senior notes BREE 3,417,715 4,039,689 302,251 2,525,532 1,211,906 -
Total Bt 16,768916 17,876,900 11,934,629 4,548,758 1,393,423 20
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REMBERRME

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Capital risk management

()

136

In managing capital, the Group’s objectives are to safeguard its ability
to continue operation as a going concern and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of net debt-to-tangible-net-
assets ratio. Net debt is the sum of deposits, cash and cash equivalents
less bank loans, interest-bearing notes, convertible bonds, senior
notes, private bonds, financial derivative liability and other borrowings.
Tangible net assets include total net assets of the Group and exclude
goodwill and intangible assets. The ratio is 114% at 31 December
2017 (2016: 102%). As a result of long-term funding raising activity
to cope with rapid expansion of property development in the Chinese
Mainland, the Group has a net debt position of HK$13.1 billion as at
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$11.1 billion).

Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’ requires
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair
value measurement hierarchy:

—  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

—  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

—  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. These instruments
are included in level 1. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group
did not have financial instruments under this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have
financial instruments under this category.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. As at 31 December
2017 and 2016, the Group had available-for-sale financial asset and
financial derivative liability under this category.

There was no transfer of financial instruments between level 1, 2 and

3 during the year.

Movement of financial asset under level 3 measurements is as follows:
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2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

Available-for-sale financial asset AHEMBEE EBETT BT IT

At 1 January ©®1A1H 29,785 31,662

Fair value loss NILEEIE (1,821) (1,877)

At 31 December ®12A31H 27,964 29,785
Movement of financial liability under level 3 measurements is as RE-EENMBAaBEEHHT:

follows:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

Financial derivative liability eMTETRAR BETT BT

At 1 January ®1A18 183 206,412

Fair value loss/(gain) AREEE (W) 991 (194,168)

Conversion to ordinary shares it 7 L m AR - (5,573)

Early redemption REEE (1,174) (6,488)

At 31 December MW12A318 - 183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions having a significant effect on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

@)

(b)

138

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The directors consider that the Group has the capability to continue
as a going concern and the major events or conditions, which may
give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in
Note 2(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

Construction contracts

As explained in Note 2(w), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted construction income
is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews of the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the
actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in estimating
the total contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of percentage of
completion and job profit taken.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)
(c) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

(d)

The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group are based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of account
receivables and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than properties
under development

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademark have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2(f). The recoverable amounts of goodwill and
trademark are the higher of the assets’ fair values less costs to sell and
value in use.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions are required
in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill and trademark,
including growth rate, gross margin and weighted average discount
rate applied to the discounted cashflows.

The Group also assesses annually for intangible assets that are not
being amortised, to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
For the trademarks held by the Group, management carries out the
assessment by performing an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
including the ability to hold and use the trademarks and the market
environment of relevant industry, to consider whether there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost to sell or value-in-use calculations. These value-in-use
calculations require the use of estimates.

)

(d)
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REMBERRME

4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)
(e) Provision for impairment of properties under development

()

140

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development according to their recoverable amounts based on the
realisability of these properties, taking into account estimated costs to
completion based on past experience and committed contracts and
estimated net sales/rental value based on prevailing market conditions.
Provision is made when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The assessment
requires the use of judgement and estimates.

During the year, provision amounting to HK$361 million has been
made in light of the delayed progress of development. Management
assessed the net realisable value of its properties under development
based on the latest market condition and latest Group’s development
plan. In view of the liquidity position of the Group, the Group has also
been actively considering different potential development plans. Taking
into consideration all these factors, the Group considered a decrease
in net realisable value and accordingly concluded the provision of
impairment as at 31 December 2017.

Estimate of fair value of properties

The valuation of properties is performed in accordance with the ‘The
HKIS Valuation Standards (2017 Edition)" published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Details of the judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in
Note 17 and Note 18.

If information on current or recent prices of properties is not available,
the fair values of properties are mainly determined using income
capitalisation valuation techniques.

The Group uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of reporting period.

The principal assumptions underlying management'’s estimation of fair
value are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected
future market rentals; void periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared
to actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Group and
those reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of

current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and
condition.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

@)

(h)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for PRC income taxes. There are a number of transactions
and calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will affect the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies among
various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not
finalised its land appreciation taxes calculation and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land appreciation taxes based on
management’s best estimates according to the interpretation of the
tax rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and tax provisions in the periods in which such
taxes have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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4. EXGrHERER (5
() FrfFiR

(h)

AEBEABMEREL RFIRPBEZAEH -
REEE T BIFTSR BB BIE L ERHE -7
BREEBBRETFEAEERSKRH AR LR
HEE X5 R E -AREREEE BN
fipnanIE z fhEt iR AR IBERR Z B E-
HEZFFRIREANGEREY IR B
BAR AAHE=Her EETHREMEH R
BIERIA 2 B

Bt R E R
REBEEXNREZ LR E R B
MR Z AT RAERE D BRI TR BLE
RERA R MASKE AR EM BT RS
KRS EE L IR ER 2 ERNFIT A B
It REE TR ER 2 BB AR ERH
- REBRIBEEIEBIRE BB R 2 IR
1R 2 xR - HER A B L HIE AR © AT
BRERA RV T CENSEAR MBMAE
RGBT HEHEE BB RYIRREZ A
SRR KRR
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REMBERRME

5. Segment information 5. #¥EH
(a) Operating segments (a) EESHE
Revenue comprises gross billing value of contracting work to third WaBEERETE=AZANIRERE Y
parties, sales proceeds from stocks of properties, rental income from XEEZHEMGR MEFERKREMEZ
stocks of properties and investment properties and rental related HE WA KR EEEIERE 2 WA -
income.
In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting provided BEASERITFELEREE (AMITE
to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the Executive B8 HEAESERER FHEENERIAK
Committee, who are responsible for allocating resources, assessing TEHSRESMERTE ) 2 NEB IS - BT E2EH
performance of the operating segments and making strategic EESHEANEFEE: QL ARIRE: QHE
decisions, the reportable operating segments are (1) building T AROMFEZERIRE -
construction; (2) civil engineering; (3) electrical and mechanical
engineering; and (4) property development and investment.
Continuing operations
FREERE
Property
Electrical  development Corporate
Building Civil and and and others Discontinued
Year ended 31 December 2017 construction  engineering mechanical investment (Note 1) Total operation
MERER fTRR M B&IE
HBEN7E12ANALEE BFRE tXIE BEIR ®E (M1) a8 BERE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT
Revenue (excluding NSC (Note 2)) Ueas (MEEENSC (MizE2) ) 4,112,604 1,049,411 895,264 65,2903 1,267 6,124,449 -
Gross profit e 14,465 33418 90,813 25,990 378 165,064 -
Other gains/{losses), net il (BR)F8 9,283 65 8 (33,931) 4222 (20,278) -
Fair value gain on investment properties REMEL A EYE - - - 707,268 - 707,268 -
Provision for impairment of properties LFETNERERE
under development - - - (361,383) - (361,383)
Net exchange gain/(loss) BN/ (BR) 28 558 - 9 (49,704) 23,159 (25,978) -
Selling and marketing expenses HERTHEERY - - - (24732) - (24732) -
General and administrative expenses —RITHEY (96,403) (36,037) (23,972) (268,201) (150,686) (575,299) -
Operating (loss)/profit B (Fi8) /&7 (72,097) (2,554) 66,933 (4,693) (122,927) (135,338) -
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEH - - - (20,893) (147) (21,040) -
Interest income MEYA - - - 48113 732 48,845 -
Interest expenses FISRE - - - (241,009) (128,990) (369,999) -
(Loss)/profit before taxation BHA (BR) /%7 (72,097) (2,554) 66,933 (218,482) (251,332 (471,532) -
Taxation HE (93,206) -
Loss for the year TEEEE (570,738) -
Capital expenditure BAMER (138) (98) (118) (464,365) (380) (465,009) -
Depreciation HE (1712 (90) (214) (77,367) (7,498) (92,881) -
As at 31 December 2017 2017F12A318
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents R BeRERREER - - - 447,566 336,571 784,137
Bank loans BITER - - - (512,378) (527,508)  (1,039,886)
Other borrowings HifeE - - - (8,507,457) (832,319) (9,339,776)
Senior notes BEZE - - - - (3,458,230) (3,458,230)
Private bonds nEES - - - - (21,903) (21,903)
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REMBRRME

5. Segment information (continued) 5. SEEH @
(a) Operating segments (continued) (@) EERH(Z)
Continuing operations
FREERE
Property
development Corporate
Building Civil Electrical and and and others Discontinued
construction engineering mechanical investment (Note 1) Total operation
TR M B&ILE
Year ended 31 December 2016 BFRE tAIE HEIR DERERRE (i1 1] EERE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BE016512A31ALEE BUTT BUTT BRTT BUTT BRTT BUTT BUTT
Revenue (excluding NSC (Note 2)) Ui (FBIENSC (HHER2) ) 6718426 1,705,406 890,011 64814 - 9378657 2,162,961
Gross profit ES) 311,645 7,038 117472 20294 - 456,449 148516
Other gainsflosses), net Eflas/ (BB 58 1380 - 3 (1,173375) 65,798 (1,106,159) 4,193
Fair value loss on investment properties REMELREBE - - - (883,925) - (883,925) -
Provision for impairment of properties BRPMERERR
under development - - - (1,924,025) - (1,924,025) -
Net exchange (loss)gain EX (Fi8)/ s FE (1,068) - 16 (74,011) (26,836) (101,899) (94)
Seling and marketing expenses HERMSRERX - - - (14,620) (132) (14,752) -
General and administrative expenses —RIOBHEZ (74,725 (30,194) (26,484) (192,921) (168,106) (492,430) (110223)
Operating profit/oss) aEEAH/ (B8) 237232 (23,156) 91,042 (4,242,583) (129,276) (4,066,741) 439
Amortisation of intangble assets BREERY - - - (10,111) 2229 (12,340) (7.238)
Interest income LN - - - 3,591 8,510 12,101 105
Interest expenses FlEMA% - - - (94,300) (60,165) (154,465) (2,874)
2373 (23,156) 91,042 (4,343,403) (183,160) (4,221,445 32,385
Share of loss of an associated company EE-REEARER - - - (52,015) - (52,015) -
Profitloss) before taxation BB AET/ (517) 2373 (23,156) 91,042 (4395,418) (183,160) (4,273,460) 32385
Taxation HE 1,350,866 (7.892)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BR)/BF (2,922,594) 24493
Gain on disposal of a subsiiary HE-HNBAR kE 185915
210408
Capital expenditure ARIERR (5792) - (233 (822,365) (16874) (845,264) (12279
Depreciation & (9462) (145) 28) (57,846) (12,269) (80,004) (5281)
As at 31 December 2016 120165128318
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents R BeRERABRLEE - - - 40,258 370,889 41,147
Bank overdrafts BEX - - - - (25216) (25216)
Bank loans RITER - - - (1,762,518) (567,217) (2,329,739)
Convertible bonds HRES - - - - (44,696) (44,696)
Other borrowings EtofEE - - - (4,494,073) (1,267,928) (5,762,001)
Finandial derivative liability SRITETRER - - - - (183) (183)
Senior notes BARE - - - - (3417,715) (3417,719)

Notes: B sE:

1. Corporate mainly represents corporate and administrative activities, and shared 1. TBREZRAFRRITBUEE  LARLZIRES : b
services; others represent international infrastructure business and international HEEREREERRBEBREHE  REZBREB RS
real estate, hospitality business and retailing business. EEK-

2. Nominated subcontractors’ works of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project 2. RMSARLEBNE_HEEMNEES BT
("NSC"). B (INsC ) »
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REVBBRHE
5. Segment information (continued) 5. S¥HEH»)
(b) Geographical analysis (b) HERH
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
Revenue 2 BETT BT
Continuing operations FHEBERY
Hong Kong aBE 5,623,642 8,123,618
Macau BT 612,393 1,587,620
PRC A 62,392 66,805
Others Efth 3,947 45,173
6,302,374 9,823,216
Discontinued operation EBRIEESXR
Hong Kong B - 2,070,129
Macau P - 20,049
PRC A - 72,783
- 2,162,961
6,302,374 11,986,177
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ST T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Hong Kong B 23,416 585,447
Macau SR 16 23
PRC i 13,967,226 12,216,568
13,990,658 12,802,038
Available-for-sale financial asset AR E IR EE 27,964 29,785
Receivables and prepayments ERESRRENE 534,203 661,070
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBE E 5,044 9,056
Total non-current assets IEMENEERTE 14,557,869 13,501,949
() Customer base analysis ) EFEEDIT

AEMZ RFERS B MAHME (20165 :
MB)EF 2R 5 EMEAREBUEE10% M
L-ZERFZWHEREBTRESHRER
2,620,600,0007T (20164 : 7 #3,880,900,000
TLREBETFRE)

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes two (2016:
two) customers with transactions exceeded 10% of the Group's total
revenue. Aggregate revenue from those customers amounted to
HK$2,620.6 million and was derived from building construction (2016:
HK$3,880.9 million from building construction).
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5. Segment information (continued)
(d) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

5. SEEH @

(d) AFEHRBURZ LK

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Continuing operations FHEEERS

Reportable segment revenue BATEHRHBWE 6,124,449 9,378,657
Revenue — NSC Wrzs —NSC 177,925 444,559
6,302,374 9,823,216

Discontinued operation ERIEEERE
Reportable segment revenue AT E2WmH AR - 2,162,961
6,302,374 11,986,177

6. Discontinued operation CRIEEBEES

The discontinued operation represented interiors & special projects and
property & facility management business upon the disposal of Synergis
Holdings Limited, which ceased to be a subsidiary on 21 November 2016.
The results of Synergis Holdings Limited for the period from 1 January 2016
to 20 November 2016 was presented as discontinued operation accordingly.

BRIHEEEBRIETNEMRISHRIER UARYE
DEmEEER BRTEEELEBERAAEH
£ ZATIN2016FE11 21 BT B2 AREE NI E
nalcEHit - TEEREEBRARA2016F181H
£2016F 11 A208 IEEIR 2 #E 25 AE L IEEE
E )

2016

HK$'000

BT T

Revenue Wz 2,162,961
Cost of sales and operating expenses HEKAREESEHR (2,130,576)
Profit before taxation B 5 A g A 32,385
Taxation 18 (7,892)
Profit for the year NEE 5 H 24,493
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — 1 BT BB 2 R 2 W as 185,915
210,408

FEEEERERAT 2017F % 145



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REVBBRHE

6. Discontinued operation (continued) 6. ERLLEBEEXE®
2016
HK$'000
BT T
Profit attributable to: FEAE @A :
Equity holders of the Company RAalE=FAA 202,629
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A 7,779
210,408
Operating cash flows KEEBZHRERE 61,398
Investing cash flows REXB RERE (31,121)
Financing cash flows MEEKZEERE (71,195)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRERBEIBE RS FHE (40,918)
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE:
Intangible assets mILEE 64,400
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress FEREEP T2 414,942
Receivables and prepayments FEUER R R TE & 479,015
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERBELIEE 88,923
Other assets HEmmEE 100,148
Bank loans RITE R (239,048)
Payables and accruals JETBR A R BT & (734,623)
Other liabilities EMBEE (45,563)
Non-controlling interests FEEIRE (53,843)
Goodwill [l 18,753
Release of reserves upon disposal PR E R SR E ®
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRE ARz = 185,915
Total consideration BRE 279,011
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal: ERALHENRSRAFRE:
Cash and bank deposits disposed BHERE RRITHER (88,923)
Cash consideration received BUYIR KRB 279,011
190,088
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The amount represented the registered capital injection paid by the Company on
behalf of another shareholder of an associate. The amount of registered capital
was used for a potential acquisition of property projects through an associate. As
at 31 December 2016, the transaction was expired and the deposit paid was non-
refundable pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement. Due to the absence
of progress after repeated requests for settlement, management considered the
recoverability of the balance from the shareholder of the associate was highly
uncertain in the near future and therefore full provision of impairment had been
made accordingly.

The goodwill arose from Hsin Chong Property Development Limited in 2011 allocated
to the “Property development and investment segment”. Management carried out
impairment assessment of the goodwill and concluded a full provision is required as
at 31 December 2016.

mEMBHRRMT
7. Other losses, net 7. AftGIRBEH
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Continuing operations BEREEER
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME ERREER
plant and equipment and leasehold land ME Tz =T 112 31
Adjustment for tax indemnification asset FERGIAMEEE (M5E41)
(Note 41) - (983,861)
Gain on disposal of a leasehold land HEHETHREFT K
and building 167,333 -
Provision for impairment of amount due RN —FEEE AR I
from a shareholder of an associate' VRIEREL=N - (156,044)
Provision for impairment of amount due JEM — B & A RIRIA 2 RV E B
from an associate - (11,179)
Provision for impairment of goodwill2 R E R - (23,249)
Provision for impairment of property, W R RHRE R
plant and equipment and leasehold land THE T3 2 RERE (200,116) -
Provision for impairment of stock FERE R (4,359) -
Change in fair value in financial derivatives PTESMIARABEEE (MHFE34)
(Note 34) (991) 194,168
Gain/(Loss) on redemption of convertible B ATk ES 2 WS
bonds (E18) 1,174 (129,976)
Government grant eGSR 1,504 -
Miscellaneous Hity 15,065 3,951
(20,278) (1,106,159)
Discontinued operation EHRIEEEER
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME HWERBERBELT
plant and equipment and leasehold land I e F 58 - 138
Provision for impairment of receivables JRE M2 AR SRORR (B 188 15 = (16)
Miscellaneous HAth - 4,071
- 4,193
Notes: Bt 5 -

HEEEARRRE—HBE ARz —BREL 8
FMER - ZAMEA ST ANS B E A RBE
WHE—BRYEEE - R2016512A318 - kR S EEM
FEXMZEREEEARTTRE - ARNEBERE
MR A#E  EIREL BRI B4 A RREH U
E#ENRETECE ALEREE RS2 HHERE
it o

R0NMF HERRENEHEREEGRAA DEE
[EBREFIZREN A - R20165F128310 - BEEBEHE
EEITRETE AECREREEHERERE -
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REMBERRME

Provision for impairment of properties under
development

Management carried out impairment assessment with reference to
valuation performed by independent external valuer, B.I. Appraisals
Limited. Estimations of net realisable value of the Group's properties
under development are dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgement, including current schedules
of the projects, construction progress by contractors, estimated costs
to completion, intended use and management’s expectation on future
property market. Following the delays of the development in certain
property projects, potential changes in management’s development plans
and decrease in expected selling price, management considered a decrease
in net realisable value of its properties under development. As at 31
December 2017, provision of HK$361 million (2016: HK$1,924 million) has
been provided in light of such delayed development status and latest market
condition on certain property projects in the PRC.

R R SRR (E 1 R

EIEE2E B INE L ERMARE R G BRAR]
Iz EE ETREFG - AEBERPDEY
BN FEATIAREREEBEHEAHBNS
FEERR BRERENBEEE  AEAMNIEE
B ERRTHNEKS BREARKEEEBEH KRR
YEMISNBT - R A D WEBE ZEERE &
BERREAENECELHRIBHEE 2R EF
EBREERTWMHE 2ERFES D - R2017F12
A318  ERILEREEARL R EH SN AR
Bz 38 #1318 B 1 78 #361,000,0007T (2016
£ - 7#5#51,924,000,0007T ) 7 Bt o

Interest expenses FIRRAX
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts BITERRBEZ 2B 61,784 99,426
Interest expense on convertible bonds AR ES 2 FER X (FFE34)

(Note 34) 10,298 136,092
Interest expense on other borrowings Hihg B2 R B X 1,808,752 695,039
Interest expense on senior notes BEERBZFIFAX 342,764 335,649
Interest expense on private bonds LEREFZMERXZ 1,372 -
Others HAb 3,172 -

2,228,142 1,266,206
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets 8 : R A BI& B EE AL 2 K8 (1,858,143) (1,108,867)
369,999 157,339

Representing: Rk
Continuing operations SIBC LTS 369,999 154,465
Discontinued operation EEIISE = 2,874
369,999 157,339

The annual weighted average interest rates of bank loans and other
borrowings are 4.5% (2016: 3.2%) and 25.3% (2016: 19.1%) respectively,
of which the capitalised annual weighted average interest rates are nil
(2016: 3.9%) and 32.9% (2016: 20.3%) respectively. The imputed effective
capitalised weighted average interest rates of senior notes and convertible
bonds are 10.0% and 23.7% respectively (2016: 10.0% for senior notes
and 26.9% for convertible bonds).
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mEMBHRRMT
10. Loss before taxation 10. BRIRAIEIR
2017 2016
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
548 =F:J1d BB 2R 1E
BERY BEXY AT B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BETT BT T BETIT
Cost of sales SHERE
Cost of construction BIER A
— Staff costs —BIRA 720,886 - 1,052,581 122,375
— Other construction costs — H A EIER AN 5,375,622 - 8,269,666 1,331,128
[ 6,096,508 - 932247 1,453,503
Cost of property and facility I EYNE g AR
management services - ID N
— Staff costs — 8 TR - - - 442,367
— Others —Ef - - - 118,575
. - - T 260,942
Cost of property development  #3 8 E &
and investment B AR
— Staff costs —BINAE 6,534 - 3,758 -
— Stock of properties sold —BEMETFERR 7,950 - 12,906 -
— Others —Ef 25,429 - 27,856 -
e 39,913 = 4 ,4’,5,29 77777777777 -
Cost of retailing TENAR
— Others —Ef 889 - - -
6,137,310 - 9,366,767 2,014,445
Depreciation on property, LER Y& )5
plant and equipment and MELZIE
leasehold land 92,881 - 80,004 5,281
Auditor’s remuneration ZE M BN & 7,680 - 7,269 1,547
Operating lease rentals for land T R EFLEHER ¢
and buildings 45,967 - 33,791 8,061
Outgoings in respect of NTEEZER
— Investment properties —REWE 22,356 - 19,995 -
— Owner occupied property —BRZME 2,845 - 4,534 -
Staff costs, included in general ~ FFA—RITERAS 2
administrative expenses 8 T A 269,830 - 273,990 66,193
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REMBERRME

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

1. EFERTTHEEME
BERITRAEZNEZE2017F12 8318 ILEE 2 B

The remuneration of the directors and chief executive officer for the year

ended 31 December 2017 is set out below: E (LN
2017 2016
Salaries,

allowances Contributions

and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind' Bonus' scheme' Total Total

FlMl 2UR EfitE
e Eka (318 e 1] k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Names £33 BRI YT BUTT BETT EBYTT BETT
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Note v) B (fisty) 250 7,920 4,118 - 12,288 21,061
LUI Chun Pong (Note i) 2R (FisE) 310 - - - 310 3,625
Wilfred WU Shek Chun HEE 215 2,312 400 18 2,945 2,774
Eric TODD (Note ii) EIRIE (Fi3Ei) 163 487 - 23 673 -
ZHOU Wei (Note iii B (B i) 87 1,879 - - 1,966 2,079
LIN Zhuo Yan WEE 800 - - - 800 750
YAN Jie mE 300 - - - 300 250
CHENG Sui Sang L7l 510 - - - 510 340
GAO Jingyuan (Note vii) S AR - - - - - 1,266
LEE Jai Ying (Note i) FEE (Matx) 330 - - - 330 275
KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (Note vi) 838 (Bfi#Evi) 9%6 - - - % 280
CHEN Lei [ 250 - - - 250 250
CHUI Kwong Kau BRI 340 - - - 340 280
LAI Chik Fan (Note iv) H=E (Hiagiv) 270 = = = 270 -
George YUEN Kam Ho (Note vii) &% (M) 460 - - - 460 142
4,381 12,598 4,518 M 21,538 33372

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

150

The amounts represented emoluments in respect of services provided in connection
with management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking.

Mr. LUI Chun Pong was redesignated as a Non-executive Director with effect from 1
January 2017.

Mr. Eric TODD was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 9 March
2017.

Mr. ZHOU Wei resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 8 June 2017.

Mr. LAl Chik Fan was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 8 June 2017.

Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung was redesignated as a Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 8 June 2017.

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 8 June 2017.

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
with effect from 12 July 2016.

Mr. GAO lingyuan resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 12 July 2016.

Ms. LEE Jai Ying resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from
13 March 2018.
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(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

ZeRERRRABEEARASENBRRAZERL
PRISUCER 2 B &

ERASECHTRIFNTES H2017F1A1BRE

ERBEEERER/NTES  B2017F3R9HBER

AREEEBBERITES 8201766 A8H LR -

RBIEE S E LS ERBEIIENITES 5201756 A8H

ZEBELTIRMEFAEATRES B2017F6H8H
A

BLBRAEECHZERBILIFRNITES 520175648
BB

REECECERERBUIENTES 8201657712
B

SRREEDBEIEIFNITES  520165F7A 128

FRERTERMEBIUIFNITES  52018F3813A &
HRe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRMT
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)  11. EERTREZEME (&)
No benefit arose on shares issued and allotted to directors of the Company MBS E R AR IR AN A 70200268 H23 B E 42
under the employee share subscription scheme of the Company adopted EERBROTEBITREERN TARAES
on 23 August 2002 for both years as no such share allotment was made B b A R 118 4F & 7R T 8 st P 1 i B 2 A Rl Al o
for both years. None of the directors have waived their rights to receive MEFEAN REESHERSRIME 2R -
emoluments for both years.
There is no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of directors, their WEER EEXSHMUAESE ZEEFHTITF
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (2016: nil). REABERBRBEEEERTmAZRS (20165
') -
Except for the other receivables from related companies owned by a former BT RAM 26T 2 A A AR —RATEES (&
director of the Company, who resigned on 8 June 2017, and/or close 20176 A8HEHT) &k s i 5k A 2 BEA A
members of his family as set out in Note 26, these were no significant 2 H A FEWER KON RN E AR IR A F E ]
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business M AEETEFEEANEEESBER MARFZ
to which the Group was a party and in which a director of the Company BEERETEENHEEREERNEE LR S LB
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of REH) -
the year or at any time during the year.
Five highest paid employees 12. AfIREHHMESR
There was one director (2016: one) whose emolument was among the five AEBRUGEeHMEEFRRE—(LES (20164 :
highest paid employees in the Group and included in the analysis set out in —f)  HMeEERMF11 2R e
Note 11.
Details of the emoluments paid to the other four (2016: four) individuals, HEArUAr (20164F : AL Sem BB A L - HB I IE
who are not directors of the Company but whose emoluments were among ARREFEBRAEE A= T HES - HB
the five highest paid employees in the Group are as follows: AT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Salaries and other allowances S N2 B2 AE 14,243 14,222
Bonus TE4L 6,818 7,062
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRETEIH R 348 216
21,409 21,500
Number of Individuals in each band
EHEZRERAAY
Emolument bands [ kg | 2017 2016
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 75 #4,000,001 7T — 7 4,500,000 2 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 75 #64,500,001 7T — 7 #£5,000,0007T - 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 75 #55,000,001 7T — 7 #£5,500,0007T = -
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 785,500,001 7T — % #6,000,0007T - 1
HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000 785 £6,000,0017T — 75 #6,500,0007T 2 -
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 786,500,001 7T — 7 #7,000,0007T - 1
4 4
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REMBRRMT
13. Staff costs 13. RIR®F
2017 2016
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
#iE =¥:314 FEiE B
BEEE BEER e KRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BB T
Wages, salaries and allowances ~ T & - B &85
(including directors’ (BREEEW:)
emoluments) 973,067 - 1,299,991 608,231
Provision for annual leave, net FREEFRE - - - (190)
Termination benefits BIERBEA 360 - 520 -
Long service payment RERG S ER 206 - 273 1,085
Contributions to defined AREHFCRRE B 2 H%
contribution retirement
schemes 23,617 - 29,545 21,804
Share-based compensation LARRAD B lE 2 W 18 - - - 5
997,250 - 1,330,329 630,935
Charged to cost of sales B IHE R AR
(Note 10) (KtzE10) (727,420) - (1,056,339) (564,742)
269,830 - 273,990 66,193
14. Taxation 14. 1A
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the MIEFEEBRET IR A BEE 2 bt ERY
estimated assessable profits for the year after application of available tax a AR FRR 2 BB KT E16.5% 8 - &
losses brought forward for both years. Taxation on overseas profits has been B 2 85N F B TE AR AN S (A 5B AR A A
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of KSR BT EGTE -
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated income statement FEHRAWERIMG, (GEA) 2 BB T :
represents:
2017 2016
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
A =5:714 i B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BB T T
Provision for the year NEZREE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBFEB 29,252 - 34,136 9,067
— PRC income tax and —HEMEH R
Macau profits tax JRFIFIS 6,365 - 15,508 -
— Overseas profits tax —GHNREEE 144 - 2,851 -
(OverYunder provision in BAFE (BERE),/
respect of prior years BETE (2,597) — 12,999 -
Deferred tax charge/(credit) EEFENR (FFA)
(Note 29) (MI7E29) 60,042 - (1,416,360) (1,175)
93,206 - (1,350,866) 7,892
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REMBRRME

14. Taxation (continued)
Taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the tax rate of the home country of the

14. R\ (5)
REBERBABR I HBRRABRERBARRANLE
RZBEMAEZERTBLIZRLT

Company as follows:

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
g 2RIt i B
BEEHR BEXH R T
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BEFIT BT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E518) 5 A
(excluding share of loss of an (T fEEE—
associated company) BN BRI ) (477,532) = (4,221,445) 218,300
Taxation at Hong Kong profits ~ 1R& /8 F157 %16.5%
tax rate at 16.5% AHEZBIA (78,793) - (696,538) 36,020
Effect of different taxation rates ~ E b Fi 75 7l % @
in other tax jurisdictions TRMREZ 728 7,897 = (321,728) 511
(Over)/under provision in respect B FE (HBEEME),
of prior years BETR (2,597) — 12,999 -
Income not subject to taxation /A RRF UL A (105,739) - (37,582) (30,691)
Expenses not deductible for NAENBIE 2 A
taxation purpose 47,389 - 304,887 1,331
Temporary differences not REWRIYGRER
recognised 32,188 - 6,032 91
Tax losses not recognised REER BB 267,327 - 231,034 (884)
Utilisation of previously FRAERREERZEIE
unrecognised tax losses (2,473) - (12,372) 1,514
Land appreciation tax TG AR (71,993) - (837,598) -
93,206 - (1,350,866) 7,892
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mEN%

e

15. (Loss)/earnings per share

Basic

and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the

Group's (loss)/profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

15. |A (G#) 2T
SREAREE (B58), /BRI EARAERSE
AEEAREE (BR) HFBRUFRERTZ BB
AR AN T RR Bt 54 o

Continuing operations

Discontinued operation

BEEEES ERILEESES
2017 2016 2017 2016
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity B AN (B18),/
holders (HK$'000) (Note 1) AN (GBETT) (M) (774,382) (2,936,129 - 202,629
Weighted average number of BB BB MEF S
ordinary shares issued ('000) A8 (FAR) 5,706,671 5,586,379 - 5,586,379
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings BRERREE (B518),/
per share (HK cents) @A) (BEEL) (13.6) (52.6) = 3.6
Notes: PfEE -

1.

Pursuant to the terms of the convertible preference shares, the holders are at all times
entitled to dividends or other distributions of the same amount with respect to the
Company's ordinary shares. There was no dividend declared by the board for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and accordingly no adjustment has been
made in the calculation of the basic loss per share for the year.

2. The diluted loss per share for continuing operations for the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 are the same as the basic loss per share because the exercise of the
Group's share options, convertible preference shares and convertible bonds would
result in a decrease in loss per share for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the basis for diluted earnings per share for discontinued operation was the
same as the basis used in continuing operations.
16. Dividends
The Group did not propose any interim and final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
1 54 Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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17. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

17. R -BREEMRER LM

Leasehold
Leasehold land and Furniture,
land Building building Leasehold  Construction Plantand fixtures and Motor
in the PRC inthe PRC in Hong Kong improvements in progress machinery equipment vehicles Total
REEZ
ReE ReE  HELHR HEnE & EE
ZHELH b4 &2 #F K EEIE HERERE 2 KERRE RE #8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BB BB BB BB BETT BETT BETT
Cost or valuation BFHHE
At 1 January 2016 201651718 - - 506,000 75,820 - 68,864 98,180 17,034 765,898
Exchange difference ERER - - - (302) - - (1,768) (684) (2,754)
Additions NE - - - 17,481 - 4,880 17,504 3,787 43,652
Fair value gain on revaluation A ffEERENE - - 64,000 - - - - - 64,000
Transfer from investment REREME  BE
properties (Note 18) (BizE18) 180,431 191,129 - - - - - - 371,560
Transfer from properties under  REZEFNEZ
development (Note 24) % (Fi4) 1,177,482 - - - 837,210 - - - 2,014,692
Disposal & - - - (2,205) - (248) (1,581) (244) (4,278)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEA A - - - (12,359) - (4,133) (34,265) (4,655) (55,412)
At 31 December 2016 2016124318 1,357,913 191,129 570,000 78,435 837,210 69,363 78,070 15,238 3,197,358
Exchange difference EHESE 95,994 15,859 - 1,008 60,952 - 1,619 675 176,107
Additions RE - 49,860 - 108 65,866 140 1,857 767 118,598
Fair value gain on revaluation AR EEENE - - 15,000 - - - - - 15,000
Transfer from investment REREMEEE
properties (Note 18) (BizE18) 20,908 19,562 - - - - - - 40,470
Disposal HE - - (585,000) - - (1,989) (886) (496) (588,371)
At 31 December 2017 20178124318 1,474,815 276,410 - 79,551 964,028 67,514 80,660 16,184 2,959,162

Upon the finalisation of development plan of certain property projects,
a certain portion of its properties under development and investment
properties were determined to be for self-use by the Group and have
been transferred to property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
accordingly. During the year ended 31 December 2017, nil (2016: HK$2,015
million) from properties under development and HK$41 million (2016:
HK$372 million) from investment properties under development had been
transferred to property, plant and equipment and leasehold land.

EXOMEBRENBRAELEER AREAE
BAESHOERIMERKLEMEEER
PSR S Y 2 MBS N AR B R A & i o 22017
FNRANBLEFE FEFYEEEE (20165F
75 #2,015,000,0007T) B R A K E Y ¥ D EEE
#41,000,0007T (20164 : 7 %372,000,0007T ) = ¥
¥ OMEREERAE M
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REMBERRME

17. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land 17. X BIRRMBRE[ LM (2)

(continued)
Leasehold
Leasehold land and Furniture,
land Building building Leasehold  Construction Plantand fixtures and Motor
in the PRC inthe PRC in Hong Kong improvements  in progress machinery ~ equipment vehicles Total
REEZ
RehEZ ReE  #EELHER HEYE & BE
HRLH ZBF #F 3 ERBIE HERRE RERIR RE #|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETL BETT BETR BETL BETT BETR BETL BETT

Accumulated depreciation ~ RIRIFE

At 1 January 2016 1201651718 - - - (68,859) - (45,672) (73,945) (9,285) (197,761)
Exchange difference ERER - - - 22 - - 972 367 1,561
Depreciation for the year REEHE (M)
(Note) - - (53,548) (11,392) - (8,127) (13,209) (2,515) (88,791)
Elimination of fair value gain ~ ##AREE Mk
on revaluation - - 53,548 - - - - 53,548
Disposal e - - - 2,17 - 251 1,462 244 4,128
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—-AHBAR - - - 5,955 - 2,121 29,640 3,057 40,773
At 31 December 2016 12016124318 - - - (71,903) - (51,427) (55,080) (8,132) (186,542)
Exchange difference EREH (1,491) (1,442) - (959) (5.869) - (860) (400) (11,021)
Depreciation for the year REEHE (M)
(Note) (43,381) (12,871) (17,924) (3,180) - (6,706) (8,544) (3,128) (95,734)
Elimination of fair value gain ~ H AR EEE M
on revaluation - - 17,924 - - - - - 17,924
Disposal HE - - - - - 1,966 821 462 3,249
Impairment loss recognised in -~ IMEEHERZ
profit or loss REEE - (29,158) - - (170,958) - - - (200,116)
At 31 December 2017 20178124318 (44,872) (43,471) - (76,042) (176,827) (56,167) (63,663) (11,198) (472,240)
Net book value or EERESEE
valuation
At 31 December 2017 120175124318 1,429,943 232,939 - 3,509 787,201 11,347 16,997 4,986 2,486,922
At 31 December 2016 20165124318 1,357,913 191,129 570,000 6,532 837,210 17,936 22,990 7,106 3,010,816
Note: B 5T :
During the year, depreciation of HK$2,853,000 (2016: HK$3,506,000) was capitalised in A B #2,853,0007T (20164F : & #53,506,0007T) Z T EE R
properties under development and investment properties. BERPYERREWETUNERE
The leasehold land and building was revalued at fair value by an ME T REFHBE AEMRBBEEFEERA
independent valuer, B.I. Appraisals Limited. RRAREE-
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17. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land

(continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

As at 31 December 2016, fair value of leasehold land and building
in Hong Kong was derived using the direct comparison method. This
valuation method compared the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which had recently transacted. However, given the
heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, appropriate adjustments
were usually required to allow for any qualitative differences that might
affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under consideration.

There was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year the ended
31 December 2016.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of leasehold land
and building in Hong Kong at 31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

17. PE - BERBBRES LM ()

H"/fEI$ REGABES A AEHE (F=
Y4

R2016F12A31H REBZHELWEEFZA
AETRBEZLEASE WEEENBEER
BEZYEBREMAHR S 2 Al LB EEITH R
SR EREMEYE 2 ME T ER - BEAED
BEZABRUMATMNEE L7 2R ZEEER
SREMEBYEZER-

REZE2016F12A31BLFE - F—E -F_EXREF
— BB EE T

BAREER20165£12A31BZHHEE L ERIE
FOAREZEXRBHBARIE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Valuation method Unobservable input to fair value
TR B0 A BhE
HERE ARG A B LREZRE

Leasehold land and building
— Hong Kong

HE i REF
—&E

Direct comparison method

BERLEOR

As at 31 December 2016, if leasehold land and building in Hong Kong
had not been revalued, it would have been included in these consolidated
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation of
HK$78,291,000.

The leasehold land and building in Hong Kong was with a medium-term
lease.

The leasehold land in the PRC is with a medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's leasehold land and building of
approximately HK$1,793,550,000 (2016: HK$2,265,166,000) was pledged
as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2017, fair value of building and construction in progress
in PRC was derived using the direct comparison method and discounted
cash flow analysis.

Average price per square feet:  The higher the average price,
HK$6,915

FEHRFHER
16,9157

the higher the fair value
FHEREE AREYS

R2016F 128318 W BB 2HELHEEF
WEETEM NSRFEERNEARBBTEBE
78,291,0007C ATt A X SR A B TSR K ©

UREEZHE L W REFHERHHEE-

URAREZHE LA e -
R2017F12 A31 8 - ANEBMHEE T RIEFL B
1,793,550,0007T (2016%F : 7 #£2,265,166,0007T) &
WIREAREERITRE 2 G-

M2017F128318  fIRFBEZEFREEZTIRZA
REDNRAEELEEARIRIBEESRESMEH-
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REMBERME

17. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land 17. X BIRRMBRE[ LM (2)

(continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) (continued)

Direct comparison method is by comparing the property to be valued
directly with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of these comparable properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative
differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property
under consideration.

For the discounted cash flow analysis, both income and expenses over the
coming three years from the date of valuation are itemised and projected
annually taking into account the estimated future revenue and the expected
growth of income and expenses of the construction in progress. The net
cash flow over the three-year period is discounted at an appropriate rate of
return.

As at 31 December 2017, certain property, plant and equipment of
HK$2,662,912,000, which were related to certain cash generating units
of the property development operation located in the PRC (“CGU"),
were assessed for impairment under this CGU and certain of these assets
amounting to HK$200,116,000 were impaired.

The recoverable amount of this CGU amounting to HK$2,455,373,000 has
been determined based on the fair value less costs of disposal using direct
comparison method and value-in-use calculation using discounted cash flow
analysis by an independent valuer, B.I. Appraisals Limited. Key estimates and
assumptions used for determining the recoverable amount of the CGU are
as follows:

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of building and
construction in progress at 31 December 2017

Valuation method

H{ERE

Unobservable input

Tl RERE A B

ﬁ?EIIWﬂ§m1ﬂ§ZQﬁE#§(§E
B) (&)

BEUBOEERNBRETREZMFEE R BRI
HiXX 57 A LB RAELL B - AT - ERZF A LR
WMEZUHEEETHER BEAFHEE 2 HEUN
ANMEMEELZZR REZRLUGTEMERY
KB

RAERRSRESNM S BEERHRARKR=
F2ZWARRXEARINR YEARERTEZ
AET AR ER AR WA B 2 TBRIRIR R B F
TR - = F R M EFRREE s T
1TBA3R -

R2017F12H318 © 8 #2,662,912,0007t 2 & T4
¥ EMEEEEETNRTENMEERRER 2
WEELEMN ([REELEN|) BRI B AT G Z
REEABNETNZRE HATZSEEECRES
#200,116,0007T °

%R A B 2 A W (o] £ R B #52,455,373,0007T
Tl — BB EEMRABEBRTHERAGREA
AEREER AN A ZE L EE N IRIEESRED
MetENFERAEEET AABTREELSEMN Y
AU El &M E B E R BREES T

AREEN2017F12B31BZ2EFEREEIRD
REZERBGAEE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
FrBseEs A Bis
DREZRE

Building and construction in progress Direct comparison method

Adjusted average market

The higher the adjusted average

in the PRC and discounted cash transacted price per sqm market transacted price, the
flow analysis RMB13,000-28,500 higher the fair value.
RAEBEZEFRERTIR HELBER KRBTSR HE KARTEME R SENS
BB S REAT I K DR B
AR #13,000-28,5007T
Discount factor adopted The higher the percentage, the

11.5% higher the fair value.
FRER R AE IR BUR11.5% BoklE AAEBS-
Average revenue growth The higher the percentage, the
rate 12% higher the fair value
TSI RER12% BokEE AAEES
Average expense growth The lower the percentage, the
rate 3%-7% higher the fair value
FHFRXIERER3%-7% BHLEE AREES
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mEMBHRRMT
18. Investment properties 18. I_EME
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BWwTT BT T
At fair value: BALE:
As at 1 January W A1H 9,597,022 10,721,129
Addition = 346,500 813,891
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMHE AR - (3,040)
Transfer to property, plant and EEEYE HERREREELS M
equipment and leasehold land (Note 17) (MF3E17) (40,470) (371,560)
Fair value gain/(loss) A EWRE () 707,268 (883,925)
Exchange difference JE R Z%8 707,398 (679,473)
At 31 December M®12A31H 11,317,718 9,597,022
The Group's interests in investment properties AN&EB&E 2 WS DT T
are analysed as follows:
Properties outside Hong Kong held under RIRA T HERE 2 EBRIND %
— Medium-term lease (more than ten years but —A HiFAE (BB 10518 D504 )
less than fifty years) 11,317,718 9,597,022
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's investment properties of 7201712 A31H - A5 [ 49745 #9,210,015,0007C
approximately HK$9,210,015,000 (2016: HK$7,310,374,000) were pledged (2016%F : #7,310,374,00070) Z % & ¥ ¥ B K 1
as collaterals for the Group's banking facilities and other borrowings. EREBRRITHERAMEE 2R -
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REMBERME

18. Investment properties (continued)

18. ¥EWME (&)

Completed Commercial
commercial  properties under
Carparks properties development Total
Bt EBRIGEWE BEPEEME it
Hong Kong PRC PRC
& HE E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT EETT
At 1 January 2016 7201651 A1H 3,040 5,052,796 5,665,293 10,721,129
Additions AE - 477,172 336,719 813,891
Transfer to property, plant and BEZNE BREREFHR
equipment and leasehold land (Note 17) & £ (Fif5E17) - (371,560) - (371,560)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBAT (3,040) - - (3,040)
Fair value loss DREBE - (585,724) (298,201) (883,925)
Exchange difference EHER - (317,131) (362,342) (679,473)
At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H - 4,255,553 5,341,469 9,597,022
Additions AE - 259,381 87,119 346,500
Transfer to property, plant and HEmE BEREER
equipment and leasehold land (Note 17) T & 3t (B 5£17) - (40,470) - (40,470)
Fair value (loss)/gain ARE(BR) /M - (145,929) 853,197 707,268
Exchange difference ERER - 300,670 406,728 707,398
At 31 December 2017 #201712/318 - 4,629,205 6,688,513 11,317,718

The investment properties were revalued at their fair value by an
independent valuer, B.I. Appraisals Limited. The Group's finance department
would review the valuations performed by the independent valuers for
financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the finance department and valuers at least once every six
months, in line with the Group's interim and annual reporting dates.

KREMFHB I AHEMREERFHEERABTRA
AREER AERE 2 HEEPIRER B (HEM R
MEERWE METZHE - MBHBMRGEERED
BAEA (BAKEZHHRFRERHRA R B0 H
HERF R AARETR W
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18. Investment properties (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

18. WBEWE (1)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2017 using

EHTIEERREHZ
#20175E12A31MHZ A RERTE
Quoted prices Significant

in active other Significant

markets for observable unobservable

identical assets inputs inputs

HEAEE HthEX BEXFH

REBTS AHRE bk

ZHE WA B WA R

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(5—E) (B=8) (E=E)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Description iREA BT T BT T BT T

Recurring fair value measurements KEUEARESE
Investments properties: wEYE:

Shopping mall in the PRC AR E L EYES - - 4,331,326

Carparks in the PRC B 2 BB AL - - 297,879
Commercial properties under AR B BERAEEYE

development in the PRC - - 6,688,513

There was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Fair values of shopping mall, carparks and commercial properties under
development in the PRC are derived using the direct comparison method
(2016: direct comparison method).

Direct comparison method is by comparing the property to be valued
directly with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative
differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property
under consideration.

RAFE F—E F_EBERE=BZHEITEETE
o

FREXTTBRBABBEZ LR ENE (F=
®)

R EZEBYES EURBERDEAENEZLLR
BERMBEEZLEL (20165 - BELEBUE) i

HEERLEAERSRETRECMEEREEMT
HIR 5 2 ATLL B E LB - AT - BN B FIHEY)
XZMEETHER BEBFLEE ZHBAAA
EEELZEZR REEZRAQTEMERYE
Z (BT

FEEEERERAT 2017F 8% 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

18. Investment properties (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3) (continued)

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of investment

properties at 31 December 2017

Valuation method

fHER &

18. HEWME (&)

E) (&)
B A BUR

Unobservable input

AUHRBANE

FHEXL TR REASIBES L A ENE (F=
FARETE2017F12A31BZREMEARBZEKXR

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FURRBARBRLREZRE

31 December 2017
20175128318

Completed commercial properties -
Retail, PRC
ERIBENE-TE &

Carparks - PRC
By

Commercial properties under
development - land, PRC
ERTPEENE -t B

Commercial properties under
development - retail, PRC

ERTAENE-TE TE

Commercial properties under
development — apartment, PRC

BRTAENE -0 TE

Commercial properties under
development — carparks, PRC

BRTPAEME L TE

162

Direct comparison method

(2016: Dircet comparison method)
BELEA

(20165 : R EE)

Direct comparison method

(2016: Direct comparison method)
BELBE

(20165 - ERELLEE)

Direct comparison method

(2016: Direct comparison method)
BELBE

(20165 - R EE)

Direct comparison method

(2016: Direct comparison method)
BELBE

(20165 - R EE)

Direct comparison method

(2016: Direct comparison method)
ERERRE

(20165 : B LECE)

Direct comparison method

(2016: Direct comparison method)
ERERE

(20165 : EEILECE)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sgm RMB30,250-70,000
(2016: RMB19,280-52,580)
BRBIOTISHE
75K AR™30,250-70,0007C
(2016% : AR #19,280-52,5807T)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per lot RMB280,000-450,000
(2016: RMB250,000)
BRLHETFOTERHE:
AR #280,000-450,0007C
(20165 : AR #250,0007T)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sgm RMB2,500-5,850
(2016: RMB2,500-5,280)
HHRETINEXFE:
FF TR ARH2,500-5,8507
(20165 : AR #2,500-5,2807T.)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sgm RMB11,700-30,000
(2016: RMB15,000-19,000)
BRBEIYTSIHE:
FFHRAEE,700-30,0007C
(2016% : AR H15,000-19,0007C)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sgm RMB20,000
(2016: RMB21,000)
BABTHDERHE
FFTRAKM20,0007T
(2016% - AR #21,0007C)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per lot RMB110,000-220,000
(2016: RMB110,000-150,000)
BESARTATSLHE:
AR #110,000-220,0007T (2016 :
AR ¥110,000-150,0007T)
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The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
ERETYTERSEES AAELE-

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
KRBTSR SBHR DAEES-

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
KRETHMSRSBHR DAEES-

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
BRETHMSRSHBHE DAEHS-

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
KRBTSR HELS AAELES-

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
BRETITERHELS DAELS.
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R MK ERRME
19. Intangible assets 19. ML EE
Other
Secured Client trademarks Software Operating
Trademark contracts  relationships and trade cost right
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) Sub-total names (Note 2) (Note 3) Total
-1 nEaeH EFRE Hitig® BERF HEE
(MEE1) (1) (1) Mt RERER (PE2) (PEs3) ot ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BERTT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI

Cost BE
At 1 January 2016 #2016F1718 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 13,502 - 175,141
Additions RE - - - - - 544 210,101 210,645
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RIBAR (58,469) (30,497) (71,073) (160,039) - - - (160,039)
Exchange Realignment BN AR - - - - - (46) (8,874) (8,920)
At 31 December 2016 #2016 124318 . - - - 1,600 14,000 201,227 216,827
Additions RE - - - - - 217 - 217
Exchange Realignment & g - - - - - 72 14,107 14,179
At 31 December 2017 #20174 124318 - - - - 1,600 14,289 215,334 231,223
Accumulated amortisation AEny
At 1 January 2016 #201651 718 - (30,497) (57,904) (88,401) - (10,697) - (99,098)
Amortisation for the year AEEEH - - (7,239) (7,238) - (2,286) (10,073) (19,597)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBAR - 30,497 65,142 95,639 - - - 95,639
Exchange Realignment ERRE - - - - - 3 426 429
At 31 December 2016 #20165 124318 - - - - - (12,980) (9,647) (22,627)
Amortisation for the year AEEEH - - - - - (355) (20,819) (21,174)
Exchange Realignment EH AR - - - - - (13) (1,391) (1,404)
At 31 December 2017 #2017% 124318 . - - - - (13,348) (31,857) (45,205)
Net book value RESE
At 31 December 2017 2017612318 - - - - 1,600 941 183477 186,018
At 31 December 2016 20164124318 - - - - 1,600 1,020 191,580 194,200
Notes: Bt 5 -
1. Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of Synergis included a trademark, 1. WEFEEEMELAZEFEE PEBE BFEHARK
secured contracts and dlient relationships. The trademark had an indefinite useful BEEBFR MR ARTEAIEAFEH I BREEYE
life as there was no foreseeable limit to the period over which the trademark was RNEBATE £ S E R IR A A 78R A HIR < 712016
expected to generate economic benefits to the Group. During the year of 2016, these F ARNHENEETE BUEFEAEEHIIKRARK.
intangible assets were derecognised due to the disposal of Synergis.
2. During the year, amortisation of HK$134,000 (2016: HK$19,000) was capitalised in 2. RER B 15134,0007T (20164 : ##519,0007T ) 2 # 85
properties under development. ERBRPWETUER-
3. Operating right acquired during the year of 2016 was in connection with a golf 3. 2016FFTEG B RELNFREBILSRRKSE
course in Foshan, the PRC. The operating right has a ten years useful life. B LR ERFHRI0F
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20. Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination as follows:

20.

BEZERHEER TN A EEEMUEERE S 6P

EBSNaReELrSBMER:

Property Property

and facility development

management and investment
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total

MER MEBRER

BEER ®BE
(P&EG)) ( PEEGi)) b=t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T PEMET T
At 1 January 2016 R201651H18 18,753 23,249 42,002
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRIE QR (18,753) - (18,753)
Provision for impairment B R - (23,249) (23,249)

At 31 December 2016 and 201612 A31H &
31 December 2017 2017412 H31H - - -
Notes: BiaE

(0]

(ii)

The balance represented goodwill arising from Synergis, allocated to the “Property
and facility management” segment.

Upon disposal of Synergis on 21 November 2016, the entire amount of goodwill
was derecognised and included in the determination of the gain on disposal of a
subsidiary.

The balance represented goodwill arising from Hsin Chong Property Development
Limited (“"HCPD"), allocated to the “Property development and investment”
segment. The recoverable amount was considered taking reference to valuation
prepared by external independent valuer, B.I. Appraisals Limited, for properties under
development of related property project. Latest market condition and sales plan had
been considered by external independent valuer and it was concluded that certain
impairment is to be provided for its properties under development in the PRC. In view
of this, management considered full provision on its goodwill over this segment was
appropriate.

() HRENEEEEAZHE EORE [MERREERE]

DERe

EHEEENR2016F11A21B HE%  22EEH 5Kk
AERAEETHE B AR Z M-

@iy ZHBEEORE [MEBRRRRE | DBREHNEHMERE
RERAR ([HEMERR]) WEHE - JREOSE2
ZBEIUINEGEMRAERFGEERABMABEYER
B ZBRTMEMEL 2 hE - INER[EME Z BRN
MISARRHERT S BAUNTEEAZERPYE
EREORERF - Et EEERAR/M S E 2 HEER
BEBREEN-

0 IN=
21. Associate 21. BFEAF
The movement of the share of net assets is as follows: EIEEEFEEBIT
HK$'000
BETT
At 1 January 2016 R2016451 A18 -
Investment in associate & NRZIRE 52,994
Share of loss of an associated company FE{h —EH = A R E B (52,015)
Exchange difference PEHZR (979)
At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 2016912 A31H KX20179F12A31H -
1 64 Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



21. Associate (continued)
The share of the aggregate amounts of the assets, liabilities and results
of the associate, all of which are unlisted, attributable to the Group is as

21. BEAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

(&)
AEEREBERREE ABRFE (BRIFLT)
ZInERR

follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

Assets BE 14 13
Liabilities afE (11,963) (11,179)
Net liabilities FEE (11,949) (11,166)
Loss after taxation and total FrEIZ 1B &

comprehensive income EHEW BT - (219,718)

As at 31 December 2016, the deposit paid by the associated company
for a potential acquisition of property projects had been impaired due to
the expiration of sales and purchase agreement. Therefore, management
considered to make provision for impairment for the amount due from an
associated company accordingly.

Details of the associated company of the Group is given in below:

M2016F12A31H  HREE W=D Em - HE AT
ABEREZWEBES N 2EEERE Bt
BB ERR AR S A R B EL AR R E R -

BRAEEBERRZFBNT

Place of

incorporation/ The Group's effective

registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
08 Wi/ BW EEh s KEERERESL BRTRAERE FEREK

347 HEAE
REHECEERBRAR The People’s Republic of 25% RMB178,250,000  Consultancy Service
China ARH178,250,000 IR
REARLA

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the
associate as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The associated company is an unlisted company and there is no quoted
market price available for its shares.

20174124318 &2016512 8318 - W EH B A
EENEE N R RN ARAE-

ZEE AR AR LM AR BT 5 I &
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22. Joint operations 22 HEREXES
Details of major investment in joint operations as at 31 December 2017 and 20176 2016512 A31H X B HRILEEKIRE

166

2016 are as follows:

ZEIBEWT

Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
£:1 BEE FERH 2k
2017 2016
CRCC - HC - CR15G Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 30% 30%
REE-TE-RERSREE AT in Hong Kong TARIRE
/i NIRRT =
EREERE 2 FBEAARGEER
GAS Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 30% 30%
REEHEAT in Hong Kong BETRE
EEBGE 2 R EELREE X
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice JV  Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 70% 70%
HEDHE-FEBEREHE AR in Hong Kong BETE
EEBGE 2 FBEAARGE X
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice JV Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 60% 60%
FETHE-—PEBEREEE AT in Hong Kong BIR
(002) EEREEFBEEARBERH
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice JV  Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 60% 60%
FEDLE-—PEBREREHE AR in Hong Kong WETiE
(003) EEBGE B EALREEET
Hsin Chong - Build King JV Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 65% 65%
in Hong Kong EFRE
EEBRE 2 FBEAARGEER
Hsin Chong — Maeda JV Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 60% 60%
in Hong Kong BFRE
EEBCE LB ERMLRKL R %
Hsin Chong - Yau Lee Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 50% 50%
in Hong Kong BFEE
EEBRE B ABARGEEH
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 60% 60%
HEREERE in Hong Kong TARTRE
EEBRE 2 FBEAARGEER
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
572 EH A (DC/2012/07) in Hong Kong TARIRE
EEBRE B EEARGEER
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
T8 £ 2 (DC/2012/08) in Hong Kong tATIE
EEBREZFBAEARGEEH
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22. Joint operations (continued) 22 XEREEH (»
Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
£ REBR ITERE 28
2017 2016
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 83% 83%
8 3 22 (5WSD/13) in Hong Kong tAIE
AEBLEZ B EBLRLEER
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
5B £ 2 (CV/2015/03) in Hong Kong tATRE
EEBRE B LABARGCEER
Laing O" Rourke — Hsin Chong — Paul Y. Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
Joint Venture in Hong Kong TATIRE
EERCE B EBLREEEY
Laing O' Rourke — Hsin Chong — Paul Y. Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
(WKCD) Joint Venture in Hong Kong TARTR
ABEBLE 7 FBEB AL EER
Maeda - Hitachi - Yokogawa Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
~ Hsin Chong Joint Venture in Hong Kong TAIE
EEARE B ERLREEEY
MBH Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
in Hong Kong TARIRE
EERCE B EBLREE XY
Samsung — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 40% 40%
in Hong Kong ITATIRE
EEBRE B EEARGEER
Yau Lee - Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 40% 40%
AR-#EKE in Hong Kong BFgE
EERCE B ERLRLEEY
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 51% -
$TE #EEH (CV2016/10) in Hong Kong TAIR
EERCE B EBLREEEY
Note: B &
Pursuant to the terms of the joint arrangements, the profit sharing for each year of all joint BEAR LT IEGR Ll RAKEEBEF Rz D
operations listed herein above shall be distributed to the joint operators in proportion to their KRS KRS EEFTh 2 2 B R fIHES -
respective participating interests.
Amounts due from/to other partners of joint operations are unsecured, non-interest bearing, FEN e RIS 2 Rt A ER M 2 RIEBEIER - T E
have no fixed terms of repayment and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. 2 [E IR R R A HE R B g o
The above table lists the joint operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, FRITFEEFRAFEVENEEEESIEE AEBHRFL
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other joint operations EEK -EEFRA RUAFEMAERLEEBHFBEEER
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. BRITK e
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23. Available-for-sale financial asset

Available-for-sale financial asset comprises the following:

23. AHHEZMERE
A 2 B A B SR TS RA

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYTT BT T
Equity securities BxE%H
Listed, at fair value W BARE
At 1 January M1A1H 29,785 31,662
Fair value loss NAEEE (1.821) (1,877)
At 31 December ®12A31H 27,964 29,785

The fair value of listed securities is determined by referencing to a valuation
report by independent valuers and the latest net asset value of the unlisted

securities as at reporting date.

ETEHRZARETIZEB U AERMZ ERSE R
FLEMESREE ARz SO PEEFEMEE

168

development expected to be completed and available for sale within
one year is approximately HK$1,546,717,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$1,290,906,000). The remaining balance is expected to be recovered
after one year.
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24. Properties under development 24. BERPME
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
At 1 January M1A1H 13,429,518 16,808,489
Additions during the year FRRE 1,971,243 1,541,647
Provision for impairment (Note 8) BERE (H3E8) (361,383) (1,924,025)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment and ~ E#E Z ¥ 2 - #E25 MRRHB &
leasehold land (Note 17) HE L (FIFE17) - (2,014,692)
Exchange difference E X Z%8 877,178 (981,901)
At 31 December ®12A31H 15,916,556 13,429,518
Properties under development comprise: BRAYEDLRE:
Land use rights TR AR 12,639,190 11,863,829
Construction cost and capitalised expenditure 33K 7K & & AL B 2 2,028,645 1,644,898
Interest expense capitalised B BRE 3,130,499 1,329,992
17,798,334 14,838,719
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (1,881,778) (1,409,201)
15,916,556 13,429,518
As at 31 December 2017, the amount of properties under 72017412 A318 - BHARR —FR% T RA#EHE

ZEERERYESREL) ABE1,546,717,0000T (20164F
128318 : 7##1,290,906,0007T ) ° 458 T8 HARG A —
FigUgE -
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GO BB RAE
24. Properties under development (continued) 24. ERPME (9
As at 31 December 2017, a portion of the Group's properties under 2017412 A31 8 - NEE 2 B EA LS REE
development with carrying amount of approximately HK$8,745,598,000 4975 158,745,598,0007T (20164F : B #48,574,608,000
(2016: HK$8,574,608,000) was pledged as collateral for the Group's T EBERERRSERITEEREMEE ZER
banking facilities and other borrowings. a
25. Stocks and contracting work-in-progress 25 FRREERDPIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Gross amounts due from customers for EWERZ
contract work TIEFIEERE 1,419,585 1,826,631
Raw materials, at cost R AR 1,669 1,603
Stocks of properties, at cost VERE BKA 570,970 541,851
Stocks for retailing HEENFE 15,361 25,849
2,007,585 2,395,934
Note: BT
Cost plus attributable profit less B DN A i L
foreseeable losses BISERN o= 34,410,386 40,297,427
Less: progress payments received and receivable 5 : B U & fE IR TI2BR 3k (33,323,882) (38,778,476)
Contracting work-in-progress Bl T72 1,086,504 1,518,951
Representing: (e
Gross amounts due from customers for FeEREgZPTREIBEEREE
contract work included in stocks and JEWE Pz TRHRIBERE
contracting work-in-progress 1,419,585 1,826,631
Gross amounts due to customers for contract ~ JEfTERA K FEFH B IER R EIE
work included in payables and accruals ENEFEZIRHIBEE (333,081) (307,680)
1,086,504 1,518,951
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's stocks of properties of approximately MR2017F12A31H AEBENYMEFENEE
HK$562,333,000 (2016: HK$527,161,000) was pledged as collateral for 562,333,0007T (20164 : &%527,161,0007T ) E
Group's banking facilities and other borrowings. EREERITEERAMEE 2 ERR-
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26. Receivables and prepayments 26. BIRIRR BT &
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade receivables B 5 AR K
— third parties =il 622,098 856,613
— provision for impairment —RERE - (423)
622,098 856,190
Retention receivables RE S IR
— third parties —E=5 961,352 1,213,917
— provision for impairment —RERE = (125)
961,352 1,213,792
1,583,450 2,069,982
Other receivables HL b [ U AR R
— third parties’ —E=5 271,258 623,910
— related companies? —BER AP 507,691 285,307
778,949 909,217
Deposits and prepayments RekENS
— third parties —$£=F 696,641 745,234
3,059,040 3,724,433
Less: non-current portion B IEmENE D (534,203) (661,070)
2,524,837 3,063,363
The carrying amounts of the Group's receivables and prepayments are AEEZ ERERRENSEEBEDRATEES
denominated in the following currencies: &:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar eoa 1,465,902 1,999,746
Renminbi AR 683,667 604,810
Macau pataca SRS 375,104 458,807
European dollar BT 164 -
2,524,837 3,063,363
Notes: B :
1. Balance includes deposits of nil (2016: HK$512 million) made to a third party as 1. REBREBEME=ZAIMNBEB ST (201649 : B
collateral to secure the other borrowings from the corresponding party. 512,000,0007T) MRz & AMEAERREBZ T WEMEES
Z ARG
2. Related companies represented two companies incorporated in the PRC, which are 2. BERRERTBEFMAZAMEAR  AEAAR—F
owned by a former director of the Company, who resigned on 8 June 2017, and/ AMEESE (201756 ASHBHE) K /S HT 3 EA -
or close members of his family. Balances represent two borrowings granted to two REEMRERTREBERARTNMEBE  DHRFE
related companies which carry interest at 12% per annum and 0.91667% per month 12/ & A B80.91667E 51 B &5 BIZEM2024F8 210 &
and is repayable by 21 August 2024 and 12 November 2018 respectively. 2018511 A12H AIEE -
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26. Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The aging analysis of trade receivables by due date is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

26. BUIRR R M & (@)
(@) H5RFE2EMER
() EBEWEFIRIEE ZRRITNT -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BT

Not yet due R EIH 584,107 758,437
1 to 30 days 1230k 187 85,011
31 to 90 days 31290k 2,514 2,586
91 to 180 days 91Z180K 17,564 6,710
Over 180 days 180K A £ 17,726 3,446
622,098 856,190

As at 31 December 2017, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing as
there is no history of default of the customers.

The Group's credit terms for its contracting business and
property rental are negotiated with and entered into under
normal commercial terms with its trade customers. The credit
period for the trade receivables for contracting business generally
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2016: 30 to 60 days).

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts.
Rental income is billed in advance of the rental period. At 31
December 2017, retention receivables held by customers for
contract works amounting to approximately HK$431,681,000
(2016: HK$462,011,000) are expected to be recovered or settled
in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and retention receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

(i) M20175F12A318 » AR EUER R
AT EEFEHRERZ L BUREE
ABERE NERBITZEMR

AEBRBEXGEYEREZ EEHIZ
B—RAEGRREEESRFARELE
Ao BEEBNE ZRKER 2 EEH—
M F30ZE60K (20164 : 30E60K ) °

(iif)

BEXEZRESEBBRERFIZRERE
N2 EREE-HE WA BRHEEH R
FZEEEBW - R2017F12A318 &
FPRBZEGNIREFE ZRESEKER
A B #431,681,0007T (20164 : 7 #E
462,011,0007T) - TEER A A R 25 HA 45 SR B
FETERE+ =@ A BB AT -

MRAREEF RETD  #E S RRE
EREERLBEEED AR -

(iv)
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26. Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables (continued)

(v)

Depending on the credit history and financial position of each
individual customer, trade receivables that are less than 180 days
past due are not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2017,
trade receivables of HK$17,726,000 (2016: HK$3,446,000),
net of provision for impairment, were past due over 180 days
but not impaired as there are no recent history of default
of independent customers and no objective evidence of the
receivables being not fully collectible.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and

26. BUTIER R M€ (2)
(a) BHREERERER (&)

(v)

RIZERNEP 2 EER S M BEAR M
T B 5 W AR BUs Bl D I 80K AR
ABEERME-N2017F128318 2 H1%
BEREE 2 B 5 EUERE 17,726,000
7T (20164 : 75 #53,446,0007T ) &% & %1 Hf
BiB180K - B EIEHRE - RARBL
EEAHSEIERERGLEE MEREE
BRERZ SRR E L2 SR E -

B 5 RRES RUERR < BIEREEEEHM

-

retention receivables are as follows: 3

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
At 1 January B1ATH 548 548

Receivables written off F 7N EF TS 88 VB 1 AT Lt [ B
during the year as uncollectible JE U AR 3R (548) -
At 31 December M12A31H - 548

The provision for impairment represents trade and retention
receivables aged over 180 days in both years.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group does not hold
any collateral.

27. Amounts due from non-controlling interests
Amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair values, and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

172
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B A M AR ER B 180K 2
B 5 RARE S BAARSK

20175 R20165E12 A31 8 @ ZAREE &
BAEEER -

27. BUSFIZRRIE R R IR

FEWSF IR A a5 SR D IR R - 2 B M Bl FE AR X
HeREEREQAERT WEBABEREN -



28. Cash and bank balances

@

()

(9]

Deposits, cash and cash equivalents

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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28. e RBITHE

(a) FR-FALREFARELEFEH

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRTT BT

Cash at bank and in hand RITHETFRFERS 775,407 400,210
Short term bank deposits (Note i) 5 ERSRI TR (P EEI) 2,748 4,506
778,155 404,716

Time deposit over three months (Note ii) =& A BA L E HATF 3k (Bt i) 5,982 6,431
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents FHRBRekERRLER 784,137 411,147

Deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following FRCReRERRGER AT EERENT
currencies:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T
Hong Kong dollar ot 323,444 317,765
United States dollar ETT 3,655 16,640
Renminbi AR 446,970 40,487
Macau pataca SRS 9,829 36,060
Other Hit 239 195
784,137 411,147
Notes: Bt
()  The short term bank deposits of the Group have original maturities of three 0} AEBEZGHRRITEREVEHA A =& A=A
months or less. TSe
(i) The time deposits of the Group carry an effective interest rate of 1.6% (2016: iy AEBEHTEHRFHRIZERFENE1.6% (20165 :
1.6%) per annum and have an average maturity period of 183 days (2016: 1.6% )&t E  FHEH B A183K (20164 : 183
183 days). R) e
Restricted cash (b) FRHEL

As at 31 December 2017, restricted bank deposits of
HK$392,224,000 (2016: HK$626,573,000) represent deposits placed
in banks on which charges are created to secure banking facilities.

Significant restrictions

Restricted and unrestricted cash, and short-term deposits of
HK$450,081,000 (2016: HK$668,370,000) are held in the PRC and
are subject to local exchange control regulations. These local exchange
control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from
the country, other than through normal dividends.

MR2017F12A318  ZREIZ BT HEREE
392,224,0007T (20164 : /& #£626,573,0007T )
I T IRTT ARG IRI TR E 2 SRITTER

2R

) EXBRH

R ARG 2RERERFHEE

450,081,0007T (2016%F : j# #668,370,0007T )

UEDIN

BRI FE A W/ 8 ST E S EE R AR

{7 B —ARELBIN RN H B AT BN E

SINEE

B HIAR -
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29. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability
method using applicable tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates. The movement of the deferred tax is as follows:

. B FETRIR

BB IERA R AR R E R A B E
BIRM B TEA R EE R BE E - BRI &
T

Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
BEREAR BERERE
Properties under Depreciation
development/ in excess of
Accelerated tax Properties held Fair value Intangible depreciation Tax
depreciation for sale gains assets Total allowance losses Total
BRT0E/ HERR
NEREHRE REHEZNR LhERE L3714 L HESRE HEBR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BRI RETT BETTL BT BT
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A18 (36417) (4443412) (1915472 (11.821) (6,407,122) 4331 37643 41974
Exchange difference [3:5:31 1477 2373 106,879 - 332,089 - - -
Disposal of a subsiciary HE-HHEAR 375 - - 10626 11,001 80) - 80)
Charged to other comprehensive income (2 EMEAIIR - - (18,926) - (18,926) - - -
Credited{charged) to conolidated income A MERMETA/ (H18)
statement (Note 14) (W) 3,689 1223107 238 1,195 1450373 (358) (32,480) (32,839)
At 31 December 2016 20165127318 (30876) (29%,572) (1,605,137) - (4,632,585 3893 5163 9,056
Exchange difference [3:5:31 (1303 (221728 (111,010) - (334,041) - - -
Release of deferred tax upon disposal of s~ REMZEUEEALERE LR
leasehold land and bulding recognised i~ EFEEBIELEH R
other comprehensive income - - 108,711 - 108711 - - -
Charged to other comprehensive income &2 BN EMR - - (4.977) - (977) - - -
Credited{charged) to consolidated income - REFARERFF A/ (1)
statement (Note 14) (W) 18288 102499 (176,817) - (56,030) (2435) (1577) (4012)
At 31 December 2017 R017F12A318 (13891) (3,115,801) (1,789,230) - (4918922) 1458 3586 5,044

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$3,315,702,000 (2016:
HK$1,447,631,000) which can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses amounting to HK$1,539,780,000 are expiring from 2018
through 2022 (2016: HK$660,013,000 expiring from 2017 through 2021).
The remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.
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REMBRRME
30. Bank loans 30. SRITHER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Bank loans, wholly repayable within five years ZBRAFRBEEE ZEITER
— secured 832,377 1,982,508
— unsecured 207,509 347,227
1,039,886 2,329,735
The repayment schedule of bank loans is as
follows:
Short term revolving bank loans HHIEIRIRTTE R 688,022 1,204,416
Portion of bank loans due for repayment BER—FREEZRITERLD
within one year 226,564 925,401
914,586 2,129,817
Portion of bank loans due for repayment after ‘EJ\E/\ iiéﬁiﬁfa
one year but contain a repayment on Xz
demand clause
(i) in the second year E’\\% fﬁ :t|J 5 82,300 75,100
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=Z2FRF7H
(BEEMFBIFEEN) 43,000 124,818
125,300 199,918
1,039,886 2,329,735

The Group's bank loans are denominated in the following currencies:

REBRTEFUA TN EBFE:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BWTT BT T

Hong Kong dollar 1,030,400 2,272,508
Macau pataca 9,486 57,227
1,039,886 2,329,735
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30. Bank loans (continued)

Notes:

(@) The bank loans of the Group carried weighted average interest rates of 4.54% (2016:

3.19%) per annum.

(b)  As at 31 December 2017, the bank loans of the Group were secured by leasehold

land and building of HK$nil (2016: HK$570,000,000) (Note 17); investment
properties of HK$910,384,000 (2016: HK$840,683,000) (Note 18); restricted cash
of HK$360,673,000 (2016: HK$626,573,000) (Note 28); and equity interests of the
Group's subsidiaries.

(0 The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair value.

31. Payables and accruals

B aE -

(a)

(b)

(©

30. SRITER (&)

INE B 2 SRITE KA INRE 19 G K 534.54% (20164
3.19%) °

M2017F12A318 ' AEEZRITEFABESIT (2016
£ : A #570,000,0007T) 2 & L it R AEF (EE17)
7 1#910,384,0007T (20164 : 7 #840,683,0007T ) 2 &
B (M7E18) : 5 #360,673,0007T (20164 : /5 %
626,573,0007T) 2 R HIH & (Mi5H28) : RAKLEHE
R AL IREVEIE R o

RITERZREERERAERL

31. BERRERRA

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade payables B SRR
— third parties —F= 1,207,937 1,311,707
Retention payables RE S ERERFK
— third parties —%£=7 743,119 918,800
Accruals for builders’ work EEBIIRETER 1,276,571 2,249,265
3,227,627 4,479,772
Other payables, deposits and accruals HAb BRI 2 E REER
— third parties —%£=7 2,039,982 1,207,039
— accruals for tax liabilities on acquisition of — BN E S
land parcels in Tieling EETTHIERE 316,127 325,187
5,583,736 6,011,998

The carrying amounts of the Group’s payables and accruals are

AREBEMNEREETERZREEL T EEG

denominated in the following currencies: &
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
Hong Kong dollar ikt 2,786,652 3,775,259
Renminbi AR 1,945,563 1,340,220
Macau pataca SRS 846,337 890,794
United States dollar ETT 5,184 5,725
5,583,736 6,011,998
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31.

32.

Payables and accruals (continued)
The aging analysis of trade payables by due date is as follow:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31.

REMBRRME

EMEREERRA ()
B SEMERRESHE 2 RR AT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BT

Not yet due R EIH 402,184 668,127
1 to 30 days 1230K 72,456 307,600
31 to 90 days 315890k 124,497 145,571
91 to 180 days 91E180K 99,813 77,539
Over 180 days 180K A b 508,987 112,870
1,207,937 1,311,707

Note:

Retention payables in respect of the contracting business are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts. At 31 December 2017, retention payables held by the
Group amounting to approximately HK$249,406,000 (2016: HK$209,248,000) are expected
to be settled in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Other borrowings and private bonds

Other borrowings

The other borrowings from financial institutions of HK$8,507,457,000
(2016: HK$4,494,073,000) bear weighted average interest rate of
26.0% (2016: 19.3%) per annum, in which HK$6,392,413,000
(2016: HK$2,883,684,000) will be repayable within one year. As at 31
December 2017, the other borrowings were secured by the Group's
investment properties of HK$8,299,631,000 (2016: HK$6,469,690,000)
(Note 18); properties under development of HK$8,745,598,000 (2016:
HK$8,574,608,000) (Note 24); property, plant and equipment and leasehold
land of HK$1,793,550,000 (2016: HK$1,695,166,000) (Note 17); stock of
properties of HK$562,333,000 (2016: HK$527,161,000) (Note 25); and
equity interests of the Group's certain subsidiaries.

The other borrowings from third parties amounting to HK$832,319,000
(2016: HK$1,267,928,000) will be repayable within one year, with
a weighted average interest rate of 19.8% (2016: 14.8%). As at 31
December 2017, these other borrowings are secured by receivables and
prepayments of nil (2016: HK$512,459,000) (Note 26) and equity interests
of the Group'’s certain subsidiaries.

Private bonds

The private bonds from third parties amounting to HK$21,903,000 (2016:
nil) are unsecured and repayable in various dates in 2021 and 2024, with a
weighted average interest rate of 10% (2016: nil).

The carrying amounts of other borrowings and private bonds approximate
to their fair value.

32

B o -

BEEBZREASENERNIBRESEENZEREE -
R2017F 128318 AEBE A ZRES B RROEE
249,406,0007T (2016%F : 7##£209,248,0007T ) TBERH B ¥4 Bi4E
REFBE T _EAKEE-

HtESERILESRS

HUEE

RE SR #E 2 E g EHES,507,457,0007T
(20164 : ##4,494,073,0007T ) 2 hi#E ¥ 5 4
A ZE526.0% (20165 :19.3% ) " MH 1 7 8%
6,392,413,0007T (2016%F : /& #2,883,684,0007T ) #%
R—FERNEE-A2017F12 8318 EEERAE
[E5571£8,299,631,0007T (20164F : 75 #6,469,690,000
TT)ZREWE (M 3£18) : /& #8,745,598,000
7C (20164F : 7 #8,574,608,0007T ) 2 2% & Fh ) &
(Fff 5524) : 7% #1,793,550,0007T (20164 : 4 #&
1,695,166,00070) 2 ¥ B R EMEE &
(B EE17) 5 75 #562,333,0007T (20164F : 4 #
527,161,0007T) 2 W1 %77 & (f7¥25) : kA KEH
TH B A A Z AR R

REFE=FH 7 HMEE BES32,319,0007T (2016
% :1,267,928,0007T) * # 5> — F NEE - 5
F R 519.8% (20165 : 14.8% ) ° 22017412 A31
B hEEMEERASEZEKEREBENER
5 T 7T (20164 £ 512,459,0007T) (Bt 5£26) K 2
SEETHB AR 2 BREERE-

BEESF

KEAFE=H 2T EHB121,903,0007T (20164 :
i) AEIR & BR202146 M2024F 5 % @ B Hi(E
B INEFHEFERAE10% (20164 : #£) o

HipEE R ESF 2 REERE A RERS -
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33.

34.

178

R R R M

Senior notes

In May 2015, the Company issued senior notes with principal amount of
United States Dollars (“USD”) 300 million (the “USD300 million Senior
Notes”). The USD300 million Senior Notes bear interest of 8.75% per
annum, which are repayable semi-annually. The USD300 million Senior
Notes will mature on 18 May 2018. The Company may at its option, at any
time prior to 18 May 2018, redeem the USD300 million Senior Notes in
whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date. The USD300 million Senior Notes are listed on the
Stock Exchange and can be dealt with by way of debt issues for professional
investors only.

In January 2016, the Company issued senior notes with principal amount of
USD150 million (the “USD150 million Senior Notes”). The USD150 million
Senior Notes bear interest of 8.5% per annum, which are repayable semi-
annually. The USD150 million Senior Notes will mature on 22 January 2019.
The Company may at its option, at any time prior to 22 January 2019,
redeem the USD150 million Senior Notes in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus the applicable
premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.
The USD150 million Senior Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange and can
be dealt with by way of debt issues for professional investors only.

The fair value of the USD300 million Senior Notes and the USD150 million
Senior Notes at 31 December 2017 amounted to USD156,000,000 and
USD117,068,000 respectively. The fair value of the senior notes is calculated
using the quoted price of the senior notes and is within level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy.

Convertible bonds and financial derivative liability
On 20 November 2015, the Group issued 6.0% convertible bonds at a par
value of USD100 million. The bonds mature two years from the issue date
at their nominal value of USD100 million or can be converted into shares at
the holder’s option within the conversion period at the rate of HK$1.00 per
share. On 20 May 2016, the conversion price was adjusted downwards to
HK$0.78 per share. The values of the liability component and the embedded
derivative component were determined at the issuance of the bonds. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, principal amount of HK$734 million
was early redeemed by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company redeemed all

outstanding 6.0% convertible bonds in full at the redemption price equal to
100% of the outstanding principal amount of US$2,600,000.
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EZENREFEIBERAAERBENEIBNR-

AERESFREMTETRAAR
2015911 5208 + 2~ & & %% 17 E {8100,000,000
ETHE6 OB BERES ZSESFEEME
100,000,000 7T & 2517 H HA#E 5T M E B HE - s AT 3%
A ARRERE R ANIESREE1.007THL
R AN R2016F5 8208 HIRE N AZF
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34. Convertible bonds and financial derivative liability

(continued)

On 19 May 2016, the Group issued zero coupon convertible bonds at a par
value of HK$34 million. The bonds mature on the 18th month from the
issue date at their nominal value of HK$34 million or can be converted into
shares at the holder’s option from the date of issue up to the maturity date
at the rate of HK$1.00 per share. The values of the liability component and
the equity component were determined at the issuance of the bonds. Upon
the maturity of this convertible bonds, the outstanding liability component
was extinguished as other borrowing.

The movements of the liability component of the 6.0% convertible bonds
and zero coupon convertible bonds are set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

4. TRERFREMUTETIRRAR (8

201654190 + AN [E 217 E B 34,000,000
TZ2ZERABEES REELFREAAESE
34,000,000t B %77 B #f#EAT 1\ & A 25 - skAliZ
HHEANEIERBETEHEE A MR EREE
1.007CHI L REEHBRT(D - BEE D Mg B HE
ERBITESFRETE - NI RRESFEIEE  rE
MAEEBEIBOESEMER T AL

6OEMRBEERTE A RRES s BEISH &
ZHan T :

6.0%
convertible bonds

Zero coupon
convertible bonds

20 November 19 May
2015 2016 Total

6.0E 8

AR R % AR ES

20155 20165
118200 5A19H -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BB
At 1 January 2016 20161818 544,199 - 544,199

Issue of zero coupon convertible BOITENHRRES
bonds - 24,126 24,126
Interest expense (Note 9) FEFXZ (FFEE9) 132,439 3,653 136,092
Conversion to ordinary shares of HBARNNRE AR
the Company (Note 36(a)) (i 5£36(a) ) (15,764) - (15,764)
Coupon interest paid BENER (46,478) - (46,478)
Early redemption RRED (597,479) - (597,479)
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 16,917 27,779 44,696
Interest expense (Note 9) FIEFZ (F1F9) 4,077 6,221 10,298
Coupon interest paid BENER (843) - (843)
Early redemption RFER (20,151) - (20,151)
Debt extinguished to other borrowing {& 75 £2 H 4t & 20 7 44 - (34,000) (34,000)
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H - - -
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34. Convertible bonds and financial derivative liability

35.

180

(continued)
The movements of the embedded derivative component of the 6.0%
convertible bonds are set out below:

4. THREBEREREMITETRAAR B

6.0E AT MR E A < R ALTE T A EHH 5|0
T~

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥TT BT T

At 1 January B1A1H 183 206,412
Change in fair value in financial derivatives CRISTETARABEEE (MHF7)

(Note 7) 991 (194,168)

Conversion to ordinary shares of B AR R T LB (MFE366)

the Company (Note 36(a)) - (5,573)

Early redemption REHEL (1,174) (6,488)

At 31 December W12 A31H - 183

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the liability component
and embedded derivative component of the 6.0% convertible bonds
approximately amounted to USD2,400,000 and and USD24,000
respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of liability component
was calculated using cash flows discounted at effective interest rate at
28.10%. The fair value of derivative component was calculated using Black—
Scholes model and was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of the zero coupon
convertible bonds approximated to their fair value.

Long service payment liabilities

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employee’s final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's defined contribution retirement scheme that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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35 REEE£&H/ (&
AT EHNEICRES #SHMT:

35. Long service payment liabilities (continued)
Movements of present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Atldenway o omvweE S 6,553 _
Amounts recognised in consolidated income AR A WS R P HERZ SHE
statement:

Current service cost B EA AR 755 Ak AN 176 239
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation AERHEEZFIEMA 30 34
e 206 %7737 1

Amounts recognised in REMEERGETERZ S5
other comprehensive income
Remeasurement: BHEE:
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from: U TRIEELE VEEERE (k) -

Experience adjustment KRR 41 1,347
Financial assumptions B 5B E% 255 (1,246)
e 666 170717 |

Others: HAth -

Benefits paid [=AEER (86) (793)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—fRHERR - (3,977)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, @) ______ @70 _
At 31 December W12A31H 2,943 2,157

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: HRAZEZRERZNOT
2017 2016
Discount rate ALIR & 2.0% 2.0%
Long term salary increase rate REFoHERE 3.2% 32%
Long term average expected return on BHIM ARSI EE 2 RIITFIITEH
mandatory provident fund scheme assets B3 2.0% 2.0%
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35. Long service payment liabilities (continued)
The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the
significant principal assumptions is as follows:

35.

RURBRHEAR 5
RERMETHEATIZRREGNGRELINE
FIgnR

Impact on defined benefit obligation

(HK$'000)
HATRERAEENCE (B%TR)
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
RS fRE&I2 R
Discount rate BIR & 0.50% (593) 735
Long term salary increase rate RHFEER 0.50% 50 (69)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption
while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 19.5
(2016: 20.4) years as at 31 December 2017.

A EBRESRER —RERRER - A H bR
RAE B b AAKAIREHA B — L RR 2
SR EREMAEEN EFERAERNETHE
RIFERROGRER - A THRIE (RREH
RATEFH B AL BERERMETNRE) ©

R2017F12 A318 @ KT & F F L/ N5 HR
A319.5% (20165 : 20.44F) »

36. Share capital and share options 36. AR BAIE
(a) Share capital @) BZFE
2017 2016
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
i E BETRT & 88 BETT
B TR
Authorised, ordinary shares k% SRE{EEY
of HK$0.1 each: 0.17TZ ¥ iHAg -
At 1 January and 31 December 1 A1H K
12A31H 30,000,000 3,000,000 30,000,000 3,000,000
Authorised, preference EE SERmEEY
shares of HK$0.1 each: 0.1 Z B 5ehk:
At 1 January and 31 December 1 A1 &
12H31H 15,000,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000
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mEMBHRRMT
36. Share capital and share options (continued) 36. BEE R ABAEHE ()
(a) Share capital (continued) @) B#FE(E)
2017 2016
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'OOO
K& E BETRT &R BT T
T TR
Ordinary shares, issued and EBR{TREEZEE
fully paid: B&:
At 1 January M1A1TH 5,706,671 570,667 5,188,577 518,858
Issue of shares upon conversion  FABEIR A EEHA(E SC A%
of convertible preference BEITRG!
shares' - - 505,702 50,570
Issue of shares upon conversion A A] A% (& 514
of convertible bonds BT
(Note 34y (Fff7E34)? - - 26,828 2,683
Cancellation on repurchase of & [0 B% 17 F 5 53
shares? - - (14,436) (1,444)
At 31 December RM12A318 5,706,671 570,667 5,706,671 570,667
Preference shares, issued BERITRBEZES
and fully paid: B :
At 1 January R1A1H 5,704,166 570,417 5,654,772 565,477
Exercise of conversion right T AT SR B S AR BT
attached to convertible B 75 B e
preference shares' - - (505,702) (50,570)
Issue of consideration FIREELER
preference shares* - - 555,096 55,510
At 31 December M12A31H 5,704,166 570,417 5,704,166 570,417
11,410,837 1,141,084 11,410,837 1,141,084
Notes: B o

In 2016, ordinary shares were issued upon exercise of conversion rights
attached to the convertible preference shares on a one for one basis.

In 2016, these shares were issued pursuant to the exercise of 6.0% convertible
bonds issued on 20 November 2015. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with other shares in issue.

In April 2016, the Company purchased a total of 14,436,000 shares of the
Company, price ranged from HK$0.51 to HK$0.54, on the Stock Exchange for
an aggregate consideration of HK$7,556,020. All of the repurchased shares
were cancelled, accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value of these shares.

In 2016, these shares were issued upon the issue of state-owned land use
rights certificates for a land acquired on 8 January 2015.

1.

R2016%F » ETT1E RIS E SRR AP 7 < S A T
B—H—BEERTEEK-

M20164F - ZEM 5 THRTTER2015611 208 %
THIOE AR EH M BT ZERMN GRS
EHREAM B BTG =8 RS-

M20165F4A8 « AN A B TE B R AT LA B AR B #50.517T
Z 0,547 B5 B $£14,436,0008 A8 1 B IAD » 42
RAB A#B%7,556,0207T ) * FiEIBE 2 IRIDEE
0 ANDRIZ BBEITRAC B 2 AN EEE

#20164F * 5201551 A8 A Ui 2 —th R B 3 i B
B i AR MBI TR ERD

FEEEERERAT 20175 8K 183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

36. Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options

184

2008 Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 May 2008 (the
2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion, grant
options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during the
year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year
and their related average exercise prices are as follows:

36. R AR AERHE (&)
(b) MERE

2008 F R I FEET &

AR B FR20085F5A22 B IR — EH R E T 2
([2008FRIHELTE] ) - 1RIK20085F RAXMERT
B RAREFIITHEBEMIBEEREERA
T+ (FE& R2008F R tEsTEl 2 3 A)) - EBTE
(EHRBE)ARARINEHBARZEMES -

WITES ERTESREBEUFRITESEDY
SRR

R20084F R AEET &I T 2 RIEFANES) |
RENRERZRITERBRERBRERH 2
FHTEEFBELT

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FEHITER RERERE

(HK$ per share) ‘000

(FREET) T

At 1 January 2016 1201651 A1H 1.92 24,004
Granted 2R 0.70 3,000
Lapsed RS 1.57 (8,420)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 1.89 18,584
Lapsed B 1.02 (1,000)
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 1.94 17,584

Out of 17,584,000 outstanding options (2016: 18,584,000 options),
17,584,000 options (2016: 18,584,000 options) were exercisable with
the average exercise price of HK$1.94 (2016: HK$1.89).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise
price:

717,584,00010 R 1T 2 R AR HE (20164
18,584,00017 7R A% #€)  + 55 17,584,00017 B A%
#E (20164 : 18,584,0001) RAX#E ) B ] T 17
# - FHITHEEEBE1.947T (20165 : B
1.897T) °

RARTTRERIEZ ZIH A RITEEMT

Average

Expiry date E|®AA exercise price Number of share options ('000)
FEHTER RN E (F3)

(HK$ per share)
(GRB%T) 2017 2016
22 May 2018 201854221 2.13 14,000 14,000
3 December 2019 20194912 A3H 1.02 1,334 2,334
31 August 2021 2021F8A31H 1.29 2,250 2,250
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REMBRRME

Contingent liabilities 37. BiRAR
20174 2016512310 AE BN —R XK B
BHAEGRZEIRETRERNZTHE
EERA ASEDERESMRFARETRERE
TR RANAELEZ AETSHAREEZ FHKMRR

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group is subject to various claims
on liquidated damages of certain construction contracts during the normal
course of business. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has
applied extension of time to mitigate the liquidated damages and any

BERE-

resulting liability would not materially affect the financial position of the R MERTE -
Group.
Related party transactions 38. A RS
The following transactions were carried out with related parties: HABA 2 X ST
(a) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in (a) BEEPBHRRAZIFEEBE HERIN RE
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary AREEEERE S EABERERPETZ
of significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary BERABMARIMERT -
course of business between the Group and its related parties during
the year.
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT
Interest income from related companies R A BAEE A &) 2 F) B A 46,239 6,064
Note: Bt -
Loans to related companies were concluded on terms and prices agreed by both BTRBRAR 2 ERIIRETHE 2GR RERET
parties. Please refer to Note 26 for details. 152026 -
(b) Key management compensation (b)) ETEEEANBZHH
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Salaries and other benefits e R B g 48,456 51,169
Bonus TE4T 13,465 14,263
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRETEI R 1,848 1,754
63,769 67,186

None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules.

*E%?%%L‘/(J:ﬁﬁ?}iﬁ’ézEﬁﬁﬁﬁ?’i?&%%ﬂiiﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ

RECLBEXSGEFEEEZS -

HEEBEZERBRAR 2017FH
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REMBRRMT
39. Capital commitment 39. BF &R
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments as follows: 2017612 A318 - REEB T 5B ANEHE -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Contracted but not provided for EEESEES Y
— Properties under development, commercial —3EFRYE - REMEPHNERE
properties under development under  FEEWERYE HEERZE
investment properties and construction ~ RHEE TP HERTE
in progress under property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land 2,568,877 2,709,931
— Other capital investment —HERIEE - 228,571
2,568,877 2,938,502
40. Commitments under operating leases 40. BERVIKIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease REFE R REBRESATEGE 2 2 EHOFRAR
payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REZM 2 EHERIBAENT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Land and buildings T REF
- not later than one year —$£—FR 55,225 36,833
— later than one year but —E_FEENENRN
not later than five years 39,785 46,393
— more than five years —RFEMNUE 10,018 15,874
105,028 99,100
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease 2017512 A318 - RE B R BN Al g 2 2 &M
payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases, which typically D (—MREEHR—ZRF) PARRZRZEHEREIK
run for a period of one to five years, as follows: RIAMEERIAT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT
Land and buildings T REF
— not later than one year —-E—FNR 52,696 49,396
— later than one year but —FEZFEFAFN
not later than five years 93,936 75,283
— more than five years —HFNE 22,578 32,589
169,210 157,268
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YN
41. Tax indemnification asset 4. RAREEE

In connection with acquisition of Goleman International Limited in 2015, B AR 2015F Y2 Goleman International Limited + %%

therein the tax indemnification asset represented the tax indemnity granted BREEERE DN RGN EIHETIRLER

by the vendor in respect of estimated taxation charge arising from the sales wEE AREE2,500,000,0007TH - B RLIHE Y EAT
of properties (“Property Sales Taxation”) when the aggregate amount of EEMMEFHES L ([MEEERIE]) IR EOB

Property Sales Taxation paid or accrued exceeded the first RMB2,500 million. TE (& - & $£2,604,000,0008% B 3517 A] X B S A% B

A total of 2,604 million issued convertible preference shares were withheld 21T B B0 FE AR AEBRE Bl ASE

and redeemable by the Group within a period of 10 years starting from the EfER - LA IEASREAEBEERIBAR:

share issuance date to safeguard the Group’s potential tax liabilities.

The movement is as follows: SEHIIWT

HK$'000

BT

At 1 January 2016 20161 71H 1,006,384
Adjustment! FEkeS (983,861)
Exchange difference EHER (22,523)
At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 12016512 A31H K&2017412H31H -

Note: B 5 :

1. During the year of 2016, provision for impairment of properties under development 1. R20165F BEFtiRERFAYERERZE Bt XEEE
had been provided. Accordingly, the Group has reassessed its tax position of certain MEER M2 IR 2 BISARR - 72016512
properties in the PRC as at 31 December 2016 which resulted a decrease in deferred A318  EERBEEEETRS SR ERELEZH
tax liabilities and correspondingly, resulted an adjustment to the tax indemnification o
asset.
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REAENBMRMT
42. Note to the consolidated statement of cash flows 42. FEBHARERME
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash outflow from operations BR7 Al F B AR 8 2 IR @ HFRRERR 0T

is shown as below:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Loss before taxation from continuing operations 13 48 4% 4 3£ 7 2 & i &5 18 (477,532) (4,273,460)
Profit before taxation from discontinued BRI 5% 2 B m F
operation - 218,300
Less: Share of loss of an associated Company 8 : &1 2 B & A A& 18 - 52,015
Loss before taxation B Bl & 18 (477,532) (4,003,145)
(Gain)/loss on redemption of convertible bonds FEBIFJ 2% E4 2 (M) /BB (1.174) 129,976
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 21,040 19,578
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #% - EBE R R ERAE T 2T E
and leasehold land 92,881 85,285
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment properties & &M¥E N E (WzE) /BB (707,268) 883,925
Fair value loss/(gain) on convertible AIBBRESTETEZ ARE
bond derivative BE () 991 (194,168)
Net finance costs BB RAN R 321,154 145,133
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BRRZBERES T2
equipment and leasehold land W58 (167,445) (169)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB ARz Y= - (185,915)
Provision for long service payment liabilities RERG S B ERE 206 273
Share-based compensation LARR D A 2T 2w (& - 69
Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary R —fRKFILHIEZHBRARZ
without loss of control B =S - 183
Adjustment for tax indemnification asset ABRNIAREEE = 983,861
Provision for impairment of goodwill BRI E R = 23,249
Provision for impairment of property, MEE - HEEE R R B 2 R E R
plant and equipment 200,116 -
Provision for impairment of properties BRPYERERE
under development 361,383 1,924,025
Provision for impairment of stock FERERE 4,359 -
Provision for impairment of amount due JE UG — BB & A R SRIE 2
from a shareholder of an associate B - 156,044
Provision for impairment of amount due e — B & R B RIE 2R E R
from an associate - 11,179
Operating loss before working capital changes 48 & & B B f « L& E518 (351,289) (20,617)
Increase in properties under development BRP YL (422,850) (96,003)
Decrease/(increase) in stocks and contracting ~ 1F & & #iEd T2 4,/ (38h0)
work-in-progress 421,060 (310,088)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables and FEUBR R R FBR SR, (180)
prepayments 166,716 (418,762)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from JEUG ISR AR 2 R IE (18 n) /R
non-controlling interests (1,983) 1,873
(Decrease)/increase in payables and accruals JENERR N FESHE R () /1 hn (541,751) 532,797
Net cash outflow from operations S aRpE (730,097) (310,800)
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REMBRRME

43. e KRB RMITHE

flows
Reconcdiliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEEHELEZBEEEK:
Bank Other  Convertible Private Senior
overdrafts  Bank loans borrowings bonds bonds notes Total
HITER BOTHR  HMER TRERS 2 LERF 2 EERE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  A%Fr  A%Tr  BETr B%Tr B¥%Tr B%Tr
At 1 January 2017 20171818 25,216 2,329,735 5,762,001 44,696 - 3,417,715 11,579,363
Changes from cash flows Reneg
Proceeds from bank overdrafts RITEX 2 FIGHIE 1,078 - - - - - 1,078
Repayment of bank overdrafts BERTEX (26,294) - - - - - (26,294)
Proceeds from bank loans RITERFGRE - 329,636 - - - - 329,636
Repayment of bank loans BERTER - (1,620,267) - - - - (1,620,267
Proceeds from other borrowings HiiEE 2 FBHIE - - 10,013,128 - - - 10,013,128
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMER - - (6819785 - - - (6819,785)
Proceeds from issuance of private BOINEESF 2 FEHE
bonds - - - - 21,357 - 21,357
Interest paid ERFE - - (128256) (843) - - (129,099)
Total changes from financing BEBReTELEEEE:
cash flows: (25216)  (1,290,631) 3,065,087 (843) 21,357 - 1,769,754
Exchange adjustments B 5 % - - 455,900 - - - 455,900
Other changes: Hih 25
Gain on redemption of BERRES 2 K
convertible bonds - - - (1,174) - - (1,174)
Amortisation of arangement fee THE#H - 782 22,788 - 546 40,515 64,631
Interest expense on convertible bonds A A% (&% 2 7 8. - - - 10,298 - - 10,298
Redemption of convertible bonds BRIk ES - - - (18,977) - - (18,977)
Extinguished as other borrowings EREMEEMRE - - 34,000 (34,000) - - -
Total other changes Hin 282 8% - 782 56,788 (43,853) 546 40,515 54,778
At 31 December 2017 #2017%12A318 - 1,039,886 9,339,776 - 21,903 3458230 13,859,795
gesmeraRAT 20758 189
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REMBERRME

44. Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

4. FLFIZREARER#ERED

Company
(a) Balance Sheet (a) EEREF
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment and M HWERREREE LM
leasehold land 9,525 16,488
Intangible assets mEE 59 148
Investment in subsidiaries WEBARIRE 1,428,295 772,007
Loans to subsidiaries BERTHE AT - 1,232,940
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE = 3,586 3,586
1,441,465 2,025,169
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU I B A R FRIE 16,246,418 16,379,922
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R TEN & 125,212 65,303
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRIA®IEHR 2,602 745
Restricted cash SIRHIIRE 360,673 -
16,734,905 16,445,970
Current liabilities mENR R
Bank loans RITER (141,978) (1,010,000)
Other borrowings HiEE (812,319) (1,267,928)
Senior notes BEEE (2,317,069) -
Convertible bonds AR ES - (44,696)
Payables and accruals ENEREFRETER (123,342) (105,800)
Loans from subsidiaries REWBRAGZER (363,500) (315,000)
Amounts due to subsidiaries [ AEEENEIE S (3,566,394) (2,659,783)
Financial derivative liability CRITETHRARE - (183)
(7,324,602) (5,403,390)
Net current assets mENEERE 9,410,303 11,042,580
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTDHAR 10,851,768 13,067,749
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BEMBBRERME
44. Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 4. EAFIZEERARERFERER )
Company (continued)
(a) Balance Sheet (continued) (a) EERMEF(EZ)
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T BT BT T
Non-current liabilities ERBAER
Senior notes BERRE (1,141,161) (3,417,715)
Private bonds LEEFH (21,903) -
Long service payment liabilities EHREEaE (768) (274)
Total non-current liabilities =Rt (1,163,832) (3,417,989)
Net assets EERE 9,687,936 9,649,760
Equity B2
Capital and reserves attributable to ZFATHSFEA
the Company’s equity holders BEEER R
Share capital f& A 36 1,141,084 1,141,084
Other reserves Efth s 10,254,678 10,264,952
Accumulated losses RETEE (1,707,826) (1,756,276)
Proposed dividends B S - -
Total equity g 9,687,936 9,649,760
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of EEER2018F3AZBMEARRIZEESR
Directors on 23 March 2018 and was signed on its behalf. ERWHA NIESKREE-
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung Wilfred WU Shek Chun
#=Rn BERE
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer
HITEFFTHAAE HITEFFERERRE
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44. Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

Company (continued)

4. FLAFIZREARRREMRED ()

(b) Reserve Movement (b) FEEE
Convertible
bonds and Retained
Capital Share warrants profits/
Share redemption options Special equity  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
TRERHR
HREE  ROEN/
BYERE BRIREREE  DRERE L RaRE  (RAER) L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AR BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2016 1201651718 9,438,746 4420 17,063 588,716 - 170,769 10,219,714
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - - - (1,923,566) (1,923,566)
Other comprehensive income Et2ENE
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit BINERIEEZ BEME
obligations - - - - - 43 43
Total comprehensive income 2ANELE - - - - - (1,923523) (1,923523)
Issue of consideration preference shares 4T EE %k 446,702 - - (256,670) - - 190,032
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERTARER K
convertible bonds BT 18,654 - - - - - 18,654
Recognition of equity component upon BT AR ER K
issuance of convertible bonds HER S S - - - - 9874 - 9,874
Cancellation on repurchase of shares el R - 1,444 - - - (7.583) (6,139
Transfer upon share options lapsing TR ERRRIE K ik - - (4,061) - - 4,061 -
Equity settled share-based transactions IR BB RiEEER S - - 64 - - - 64
465,356 1,444 (3.997) (256,670) 9,874 (3.522) 212,485
At 31 December 2016 120165124310 9,904,102 5,864 13,066 332,046 9,874 (1,756,276) 8,508,676
Profit for the year KEEER - - - - - 38,659 38,659
Other comprehensive income Hp2ENE
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit BRETIEARERE
obligations - - - - - (483) (483)
Total comprehensive income *EYHEE - - - - - 38,176 38,176
Transfer upon share options lapsing RERER L B - - (400) - - 400 -
Transfer upon maturity of convertible HRESREER
bonds - - - - (9,874) 9,874 -
- - (400) - (9,874) 10,274 -
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 9,904,102 5,864 12,666 332,046 - (1,707,826) 8,546,852
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Company (continued)

(b) Reserve Movement (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

4. ERFIZCREARKRREAMED )
(b) GEFEEH(F)

Convertible
bonds and Retained
Capital Share warrants profits/
Share redemption options Special equity  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
TRERSR
RkEE RQ@n/
RIFER BREWOGEE  DRERR R ERREE  (RHER) #e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT REFT BEFT BETT BETT BETT
Representing: R&:
Resenves [ 9,904,102 5,864 13,066 332,046 9,874 (1,756,276) 8,508,676
Final dividend proposed in respect of BREZE20165128318
the year ended 31 December 2016 IFFRE 7 RER 8 - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 20164124318 9,904,102 5864 13,066 332,046 9,874 (1,756,276) 8,508,676
Representing: R&:
Reserves G 9,904,102 5,864 12,666 332,046 - (1,707,826) 8,546,852
Final divicend proposed in respect of BREZE017£128318
the year ended 31 December 2017 IHFEZRERE - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 9,904,102 5864 12,666 332,046 - (1,707,826) 8,546,852
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45. FERBELAT

45. Principal subsidiaries

194

Place of , )
incorporation/ The Group s effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
48 BRI/ SR FREMGRREREDL BRTRAEKRE IERH
FLF HELR
Beijing Zhong Ji Xin He Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$40,000,000  Property investment
(Note 2) China 40,000,000  MERE
ERREENEERR AR (F2) hEARLNE
Cogent Spring Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$85,000,002  Property investment
Bk /818500000270  MERE
Datawin Trading Limited* British Virgin Islands - 100% US$100,000  Investment holding
EBEESERAT RERAES 100000%7T  REEMR
Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Registered contractor services
 Company Limited (Note 1) R BPIE.000 R RS
KERECRP)ARRR (M)
Far Capital Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
ERBRAR 0 BT RELR
HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Building construction and civil
 Limited R JRPI#25,0007 engineering
HERERLAIR (CRM)BRAR BFRERLIAIR
Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$76,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
MEGHEETREARAR ) 776,000,000 building services
BIRRETRE
Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and civil
HESER (BN BRAR Bk HK$70,002,000 engineering
Non-voting deferred: ~ BFEERTATRE
HK$10,000,000
7%70,002,00070
Bzl
RS B
10,000,0007T
Hsin Chong Construction (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands 100% - HK$150,000  Investment holding

*  For identification purpose only

RBELES
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R MK RRME
45. Principal subsidiaries (continued) 45. EEMEBATF (&)
Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
4% BRI/ BM EE R FEERGRREREAL BRTRMERE FERHK
47 WEAT
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and ciil
MEEERBERLR ) HK$1,024,002,000 engineering
Non-voting deferred: ~ EFEERTATRE
HK$20,000,000
B
7B 11,024,002,0007T
mhkEg
BB :
751%20,000,00070
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% RMB172,653,600  Building construction and civl
_(Notes 1&2) \ China AE#172,653,6007T engineering
MELERERRAR (ME15k2) REARARE BFRERIATIRE
Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Construction management
HELE (BRI ERAR £ BT services
BIEERRE
Hsin Chong Construction Management Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000  Construction management
 Services Limited o AR#1,000,0007T services
HESEERREERAT BEEERG
Hsin Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Construction management
MEIR(RM)BRAR B2 JRPS25,0007T services
REERRG
ﬂsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited* (Note 1) The People’s Republic of - 100% US$139,468,979  Investment holding
sErEk (hE)FRAR (F1) China 139468979% T REEMR
hEARANE
ﬂsin Chong Property Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$227,355,000 Investment holding
MENERRERAA ERRAES 22735500057  REER
Hsin Chong Property Development Limited Hong Kong - 100% US$2,502,191  Provision of investment
MEMEZRBRAR BA 2,502,191% 7T and asset management
consultany services
REREREEEREARS
L&X Investment Industrial Limiped (Note 1) British Virgin Islands - 65% US$32,500 Investment holding
BEREEXERARF (M) ERRUHSE 32500k REEK
Liaoning Huisheng Property Investment Limited* ~ The People’s Republic of - 100% US$150,695,000  Real estate development
(Notes 18 2) China 150,695000% T EHELRE
FEEREFFRAAE (ME1R2) PEARANE
* for identification purpose only * EHRBES

FEEBERERAT 20175 8F 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

45. EEMBAT (5)

45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

196

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
28 B3/ S SR FRARGERERTSLL BRTRMERE FERHK
F4% HEAT
Liaoning Tongji Property Investment Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$211,149,960  Real estate development
(Notes 1 & 2) China A1,149960%T  FHEER
FERBEEEERAF (ME1R2) hE ARAME
Renowned Brand Outlet Store (China) Limited Hong Kong - 100% \I/-IK$47,700 Real estate development
BRI ARITE (FE)ER LA Bk BEBATI0T  FHERR
Renowned Brand Outlet Store Investment Hong Kong - 100% HK$51,000  Real estate development
Limited ) Bk BES1000T  FHERE
BRI NEREBERAT
Renowned Brand QOutlet Store Properties Hong Kong - 100% HK$51,000  Real estate development
Limited £ BES000T  BHEER
R AR NEERBRAR
Renowned Outlet Store Asia Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$49,000  Real estate development
EREBEFTHESNER AR BB BT FEHEER
Rosy China Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% Us$T  Investment holding
(Note 1) (FizE1) RERAES =T RABR
Rife Yard Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000  Real estate development
Bk BEI000T  BEHERR
Sight Star Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
ENBBRRT Eh BT REZER
Smart Lane Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1  Investment holding
(Note 1) (FifzE1) RERREAHES =T RAER
Sorano Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% Us$T  Investment holding
(Note 1) (FiizE1) RRRAES =T RABR
Wisdom Top International Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000 Property Investment
R=ERBRAT BB 1,000,000 MERE
RERITELERARAT The People’s Republic of - 100% US$40,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 & 2) (FiEF1%2) China 40000000  FHEERE
REARLA
BREAEZERAR The People’s Republic of - 100% US$40,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 & 2) (Fif3%152) China 40000000%7T EHEZRE
hEARLNE

*  For identification purpose only
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45. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. EEMBLT (&)

REMBRRME

2.
3.

Notes:

1. Companies not audited by BDO Limited
A wholly foreign owned enterprise
A company controlled by the Group through a non-wholly owned subsidiary 3.

the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

)= PN

W :

1. WFMEBLERR

SEXGEHEEZHBR

2. —HHNEBELE

46. FFIERRED

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
248 BRI/ FRAMKEERERAEAL BRTRBERT IEERH
F47 RELR
EREE E%ﬁ B The People's Republic of - 100% US$30,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1&2) (M1 52) China 30,000000%X7C FEHEERE
HEARLAE
ERREEXERANA The People’s Republic of - 100% US$10,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 & 2) (PfsE1%2) China 10,000,000XT FHEER
HEARLNE
ERERRONFERERAR The People's Republic of - 100% US$61,039,300  Real estate development
(Notes 1 & 2) (M 1%2) China 61039300%7T RFHEEZRE
HEARLAE
SEHE (FR)EXERAF The People’s Republic of - 100% US$42,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) (MizE152) China 42,000,000 FHEER
hEARANE
REEABSERNRA The People’s Republic of - 64.3% RMB390,317,009  Real estate development
(Notes 1,2 &3) (HizH1 ~2]%3) China AR¥390317,0000 FEHELE
hEARANE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of ERINRZAEBRBRARAESRAEELER

AEERR REHARE
AMFHBEREERER IR -

S EBAARARNERZ AR
BmASE BB M2 ENBRRIRE AR

Non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to L&X Investment
Industrial Limited, which has a material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The
summarised financial information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

TREINBEEEEAIE B ([JHERER])
ZEERERXERAR 2ER - T2 ZHH
ERBER AR AN AR 2R

FEEEERERAT 2017F % 197



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

46. Non-controlling interests (continued)
Details of the Group's subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests

46. FiZBxIER (&)

BAEEAFERER Z AKENE AR 2 F BT

are set out as below: m:
2017 2016
Effective percentage of equity interest ERERTERECER A T
held by non-controlling interests:
L&X Investment Industrial Limited P2 BB EER AR 35.68% 35.68%
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling % Bit 2= JEFE R 25 2 ANFE 3 F
interests:
L&X Investment Industrial Limited P2 BB EBR AR 203,890 13,592
Accumulated balances of non-controlling IR RS A TR B A RaT 4k
interests at the reporting date:
L&X Investment Industrial Limited EEIREBXAR AR 817,295 566,679

The following tables illustrate the unaudited summarised financial
information of the L&X Investment Industrial Limited. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

TRINREEREBERAR AR Z REEZNHE
HE - B BIIR DR NEYHAT 2

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Total revenue s = -
Profit for the year NG i F 571,401 38,091
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEPEBRE - -
Current assets MBEE 3,166 5,131
Non-current assets FMBEE 2,954,861 2,016,745
Current liabilities mBEE (59,287) (49,797)
Non-current liabilities EmEEE (608,276) (383,969)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEEBMAZReREFEE (4,420) (506,176)
Net cash flows (used in)/from WEES (FTR) /B zBeneF
investing activities ) (4,633) 498,041
Net cash flows from financing activities RMERSMECReREFE 9,186 5,949
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BERERIBEBEEM CRD)
cash equivalent F R 133 (2,186)

The non-controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.

ZR AR T EK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRMT

47. Event after the reporting period 47. REHEREH
On 23 March 2018, the Company and its subsidiary entered into an M2018F3A230 ' AR R REM B AR HEAEES
agreement (the “Agreement”) with two companies related to a former FEEEERBHIME AR ([ZMEAR]) T
director, Mr. Zhou Wei (the “Two Companies”), regarding the arrangement (Mpezl) AR EBEERWZME A RRREZZ
for settlement of balances due from the Two Companies which has to be - AATEABEZE MR E A48 A AT

carried out within 4 months from the date of signing of the Agreement.

FEEBERERAT 20175 8F 199



Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEHBERBE

Year ended 31 December

#EZ12A310LLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT BET T BT T BT T BT T

Operating Results BEXRE
Revenue Uz 6,302,374 9,823,216  12,585256 14,010,505 11,505,979
(Loss)/profit before taxation BE AT (E18) %75 (477,532) (4,273,460) 2,517,816 553,492 225,542
Taxation FiiE (93,206) 1,350,866 (99,213) (150,617) (32,127)
(Loss)/profit from continuing FEKEEB

operations (&518) = Al (570,738)  (2,922,594) 2,418,603 402,875 193,415
Profit from discontinued operation B 4% |F4& & %75 2 i F - 24,493 55,487 - -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERB AR W= - 185,915 - - -
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR M 2 (203,644) (21,314) (28,253) (15,317) (8,013)

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity ~ AQFERIFE A

holders of the Company FE(L (B518) & T (774,382)  (2,733,500) 2,445,837 387,558 185,402
Assets and Liabilities BERAR
Total assets BB E 36,204,334 33,437,635 36,341,951 13,193,323 11,143,153
Total liabilities wafE (24,499,348) (22,330,960) (21,794,580)  (8,534,873)  (6,901,401)

11,704,986 11,106,675 14,547,371 4,658,450 4,241,752
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS

Major Projects

TETREEH

BRETRZEEIR

Group’s Commencement Anticipated

Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer

x5EE

ITEAT FrikEa BIAH FHRT A EF B¥REE

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

BFEE

M+ Main Works Contract Including RDE Building (P39B), 100%  September 2015 June 2019 West Kowloon Cultural District
Interfacing Car Parking and Sewage Pumping Station at West Kowloon 201549 A 201946 A Authority
Cultural District * AR ERR

BEAANXEERZM+EZTIREH BETE
B H B K12 (P39B) - (5 H 35 857K Rk *

Main Contract for The Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel 100% May 2016 July 2018 Capital Court Limited
at Ocean Park, Hong Kong 201645 A 201847 A MEBRAR

BESFAEBRUENEEAHIRE

Design and Construction of Kowloon East Regional Headquarters and 65% May 2016 September 2019 Avrchitectural Services Department
Operational Base cum Ngau Tau Kok Divisional Police Station 201645 A 201949 A BEE
at 105 Concorde Road, Kai Tak*

FUERFAE105 RN BB E AT R
TEHEMEFEANREERNE R RESIHER *

Lisboa Palace, Macau 100%  November 2015 July 2018 Cotai Magnific View-Property
COT/DSC1012-4 Reinforced Concrete Works 20155114 201874 Development Company Limited
(Excluding Reinforced Concrete Works Below Tower) and General BEBEEBRERMNERAR
Builder’s Works for Podium (G/F to Podium Roof) (West Portion)

AR RMBEEERL AR REETIR

PPC Pile Works for Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 4 Lot 4 100%  September 2017 May 2018 Galaxy Cotai Project
New Integrated Resort Development at Cotai City, Macau 2017494 201845 Management Limited

SRLP K KR AR S T R A A 85 6 O BR SRR RIS % PO ATIRERARAA
BEISSENEARTEFE DTE R B LB T2

Sportland, Henggin 100% June 2015 December 2018 SEMBIRIRE AR A A

BEREE 201546 A 2018124

CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS

TXRIE

Elevated Road along LOHAS Park Road and the Pedestrian Footbridge FB1 100%  August 2016 November 2018 MTR Corporation Limited

B BE S 2R 1T ARTE T72 2016478 8 20184113 EEEBRARAA

Construction of MTR Express Rail Link Contract 8108, 22.5% January 2011 July 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
West Kowloon Terminus Station South 2011481 A 201847 A BAHUBRAERAR

EE R RS = RS KA X810 N e s () & TR

Shatin to Central Link, Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations and 40%  August 2012 September 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
Tunnels, Contract 1109 2012478 A 201894 BRHEEARAR

DHEPRG  NLEBBREMRBEETR (E445%1109)

Site Formation and Infrastructural Works near Tong Hang Road and 57%  November 2015 May 2019 Civil Engineering and
Tsz Tin Road in Area 54 Tuen Mun 20154114 2019454 Development Department

HPIEs AR ET R EARN L FRRERTR TARTRAREE

Site Formation and Associated Infrastructural Works for 51% December 2017 December 2020 Civil Engineering and
Development of Columbarium at Sandy Ridge Cemetery 20174F12R4 2020124 Development Department

DEEGEEERZEMN T FERAAEERRETE

HEXEBEZERBRDR 2017FH

ITARTIZARE
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Major Projects
TETIRHER

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETPZEEIR ()

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM
ITE#EAE FristEsa FMIBH RHART A ER B#REE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL
BEIR
Sub-Contract for the Supply and Installation of the Electrical 100%  September 2015 June 2019 West Kowloon Cultural District
(inclusive of ELV) Air-Conditioning, Fire Services, Plumbing and 2015994 201946 A Authority
Water Supply Systems,(inclusive of Town Gas Installation) BAXEEEER
for M+ Museum (Building Contract Number CC/2015/3A/022)*
M+EYEE (RS LR 57 CC/2015/3A022)2 BR
(BEEBEZRM) =# HHKERE REKER
(BHERRARE) TE
Supply and Install of the Building Services and Electrical & Mechanical 100% July 2016 September 2019 Architectural Services Department
Installation for the Main Contract for Design & Construction of 2016577 201949 A4 BEE
Kowloon East Regional Headquarters and Operational Base Cum Ngau
Tau Kok Divisional Police Station at 105 Concorde Road,
Kai Tak (Programme No. 237 LP)*
Fﬁl?ﬁ‘ﬁ%m}_mﬁﬁiﬂﬁéf@[f@fﬁ&ﬁiﬂ%ﬂﬂ%&iaﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁ
LERNERTRERFESHZEFTRBEER
REREBERE (JABRIR237LP) ¢
New World Centre Remodeling and Palace Mall Remodeling Project 100% June 2014 February 2019 NWS Holdings Limited
(Package Code No. 10040B-1) Design, Supply and Installation of 201456 7 201942 A MAEEEERAR
H2 and H2 Podium MVAC —Podium Portion Nominated Sub-Contract
Pt RO REY R OEBIEE (A 24%100408-1)
—H2RH2F GBRAZER 2 Rt HERTRIEEDHELH
Proposed Retail and Hotel Development at Tung Chung Town Lot 2 & 100% December 2016 March 2019 Newfoundworld Project
Lot 11 — HVAC Installation Contract No. C1105/N04 20165124 2019434 Management Limited
RRREM —ERT—RAEREEERIAR
—BRERATEDHEL
Central Police Station Conversion and Revitalisation Project 100% December 2012 August 2018 The Jockey Club CPS Limited
Works Contract for Plumbing and Drainage (Package 601), 20124124 201848 A ESENWMREARAR]
MVAC (603) and FS (604) Installation
¢fﬁﬁz%§$§§3¥1%é&}ﬁtﬁﬁﬂ*iﬁ#*( 43601),
[ 22 38 (4 #9603) & SH BT R 4T (& #I604)% 3
Air-conditioning and Ventilation Systems Term Maintenance Contract 100% January 2017 December 2019 Hong Kong Housing Authority
(Contract No.20169030) (Kowloon East, Wong Tai Sin, Tsing Yi, 201718 20194124 EEEEZES

Tsuen Wan, Islands, Kwai Chung, Tuen Mun and Yuen Long Regions)
2017/2020 for Hong Kong Housing Authority Estates, Areas and
Buildings

201720209 EEBEEZEE (LER #EAW TR 28
BES B HRMRTHR) —ER At MEFERAGHK
BREZREHRESLD (A #IREH20169030)
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BEELT

Major Projects
TETRER

PZEETE@®

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
FKRME
ITEAT FritiEz FRIAM R IR EFR BR#EREE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL (continued)
BETRE(E)
Electrical and ELV Installation Works Contract 100% March 2016 August 2018 Cheer Regal Limited
for the Proposed Hotel Development at Lot No. 1950 in DD221, 201643 A 201848 A BRERAA
Wai Man Road, Sai Kung, New Territories
I8 ERIRDD22 1 R F 19505k ¥t H 53R IE R
—BRKEEERGLEER
Air-conditioning Installation for Construction of 100% March 2017 March 2020 Avrchitectural Services Department
Sports Center, Community Hall and Football Pitches in Area 1, Tai Po 201743 A 202043 A BEE
ABEIRBEE HEREREHSERTIRNEHEE TR
Air-conditioning and Mechanical Ventilation Installation 100%  January 2017 April 2019 Hong Kong Housing Authority
for Construction of Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at 201741 A 201944 A EBEEZE®

Pak Tin Estate Phases 7 and 8
HHBECHREN\HARBFTEEEREERETIEN
ZERREEBREREE T2

* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies
BHAVESHTEEARA
# Sub-contract awarded by group companies or joint venture

SERNRFHEZRERTZOHAEY
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Major Properties

Approximate Percentage of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest
FEMEAAL
mERL A& #iheEE iR HEFH EREsk
Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2017
®2017£12A31B 2 8E HA HEhE
Carparks in Lung Mun Oasis Carpark 42 carparks For Sale Medium 100%
43 Lung Mun Road, By A{EE L HE i HA
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEME B
BB R AHPTREPT BR435R
Basement Level 1 & Level 1t0 6 Commercial 38,214 @ Rental Medium 100%
New Times Plaza [EES e i Hf
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
Bl IE R S B B 255
HEEERYPR L
HE—E kit E—BENE
Level 7 to 15 Office/ 11,962 For Sale Medium 100%
New Times Plaza Residential HE w8
No. 25 Maliandao Road, W/ EE
Xicheng District,
Beijing,

People’s Republic of China

BlIE R R B R 255
HEFERMT O
+tEETRE
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Major Properties

FTEME

Approximate Percentage of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest
EREFRE
o 3= 30 B& BHEmR iR HESFH ERast
Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2017 (continued)
#2017F12A31AZRE AR HEME ()
Basement Level 2 and 3 Carpark 364 carparks Rental Medium 100%
New Times Plaza Hfg 3641EE e H
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
FEE R I R S i B BR 255
MEZBEBDT O
WE—ERE=E
No. 33 Lubao Avenue Commercial 99,000 @ Rental Medium 100%
Lubao County, EES HE F
Shanshui District,
Foshan, Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China
FEERE®LT = KRESE
BB RE335%
Commercial Podium Level 1 to 3 Commercial 11,526 @ For sale, Medium 100%
Tian Cheng Ming Yuan BES in the meantime, H
Nos. 111-119 Shipai Xi Road, looking at
Tianhe District, the possibility of
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, generating revenue
People’s Republic of China through
B ER A BN T AT R A REAE111-1195 short term lease
AERAR—EE=E HE  RRFESK
BRENEEREE
s 2 T A
Basement Level 1 and 2 Carpark 325 carparks For sale, Medium 100%
Tian Cheng Ming Yuan By 325MEfL in the meantime, i
Nos. 111-119 Shipai Xi Road, looking at

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,

People’s Republic of China
RIS BN KT B R E B 111-1195%

AERWE—ERINE=E

the possibility of
generating revenue
through

short term lease
e FEESK
BREBHEES
Wezs 2 AT EEE

seemererRaAs 2017648 205



Major Properties

TENME
Estimated
Approximate Percentage of Year of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest Completion
HSRERG
F 12311 B #ineER iR HEFH ERES B ERFER
Properties Under Development as at 31 December 2017
R2017F12A3 1A Z B R ME
South of Ganjiang Road, Residential 225,000 Construction Medium and 100% 2018 t0 2019
west of National Highway 102, = and Design long 20185 220195
Dafanhe Village and Xintun Village, in Progress A ] =
Fanhe Town, BER
Tieling County, FETHEITH
Liaoning Province,
People’s Republic of China Ground Floor 6,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2018 t0 2019
REEEEEEGEN TR Retails and Design long 2018F E2019%F
ANV R #1028 HHEE in Progress FER R
AR 88T B LA RA 3 5 TEHH BiER
REHETH
Commercial 215,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2018 10 2019
BE and Design long 2018F 220195
in Progress FE R R
BER
R
Residential/ 1,419,000 © Master Medium and 100% N/A
Commercial Plan in Progress long TERA
/% BERa mERRE
HEIT
Ninty-nine Gang Residential 223,000 @ Construction Long 100% 2018 t0 2019
Dushu Gang Villager Committee, = and Design & 2018F £20195
Lubao County, in Progress
Sanshui District, BER
Foshan City, FEEITH
Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China Residential/ 1,583,000 @ Master Medium and 100% N/A
FEEREHLT=KE Commercial Plan in Progress long TEA
EHEBHENZEA TS /% R RERRE
T
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Major Properties

4]

)]

3)

TENE
Estimated
Approximate Percentage of Year of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest Completion
FREFRG

MEEd B #BneER iR HEFH ERFSk B ERFR

Properties Under Development as at 31 December 2017 (continued)

R2017F12A31AZREPME (8)

Jiali Commercial Plaza Commercial 274,977@  Construction and Long 100% 2018 10 2019
South of the middle section of Yitianmen [HE Design in Progress =3 2018F £20195
Street, B REE
Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, ETH
Tai'an City,

Shandong Province,
People’s Republic of China

RELRERZ TR RNEXRER
—RPIREHE A

Southern side of Har River, Commercial 328,100 @ Master Plan Medium 64.3% N/A
Northern side of Binhe Road, [EES in Progress i TEA
Central Business District, BEEREETH
Binhai New District,

Tianjin,

People’s Republic of China
FREXZEMESNEROEBE
EMRELAL A
Gross floor area of square feet #21E & (F77R)
Gross floor area of square metres #EiZ I E & (FJ7K)

Gross site area of square metres #8827 (F5K)

seEmereRAs 201768 207



Corporate Information

NCIE=E

Board of Directors
=

Audit Committee
FKERY

Remuneration Committee

FHERE

Nomination Committee

REZRE

Executive Committee

B

Company Secretary
LFE#

©%  with effect from 23 March 2018 5201843523 H #2434
25 with effect from 13 March 2018  H2018F3/ 13H &4 3
with effect from 14 August 2017 F2017F8A 14 A #E4£ 3K

LIN Zhuo Yan*
(Non-executive Chairman)
WREIEH (FEHTTEE)
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung*
(Chief Executive Officer®)
BRfEIRT (FTECAEZE®)

Wilfred WU Shek Chun* (Chief Risk Officer)

SEE (HEERE)
Eric TODD**
R
YAN Jie**
%ﬁ,{gg##
CHEN Lei**
g% =
CHUI Kwong Kau*
LUI Chun Pong*#
= i FB2
CHENG Sui Sang**
B35
George YUEN Kam Ho*#
LAI Chik Fan*#*@
Fjs g
Executive Director
tOHITEE
#  Non-executive Director

" JEHITEE

##  Independent Non-executive Director

BB TEE

CHENG Sui Sang (Chairman)
Bm i (/%)

CHUI Kwong Kau

B IR

George YUEN Kam Ho

‘f{ &E

LAl Chik Fan®

g

CHENG Sui Sang (Chairman)
B (F/)

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
Wilfred WU Shek Chun
$EE

George YUEN Kam Ho
&i/m

LAI Chik Fan®

M Ee

George YUEN Kam Ho (Chairman)® <
REWE(FE)OC

CHENG Sui Sang

3 A

LAl Chik Fan®

P&

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
%

LUl Chun Pong®

EEEI

Joseph%CHOI Kin Hung

N /

Wilfred WU Shek Chun

M E

Eric TODD*

ERE

CHAN Chi Fai David*
I

with effect from 8 June 2017 201746 H8H #4534

<&

@

* with effect from 22 March 2017 H20174%3 522 H #2434
* with effect from 9 March 2017 201743 /9H #E4£3X

& with effect from 1 January 2017 E20174 15 1H #4534

208 Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Risk Management
committee

RBEERRE

Corporate Governance
Committee

SEELARES

Auditor
1% BB

Principal Bankers*
ﬁ*

Reference Banks*

HERBIT*

Registered Office
S i S R

Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

FEXEERME

Principal Share Registrar
and Transfer Agent

FERBBFRBICE

Hong Kong Branch Share
Reglstrar and Transfer

iﬁﬂﬁﬁ;ﬂﬁﬂ!ﬂﬁﬁ

Stock Code
B 5 1X5%

Board Lot
BFEHEEMN

Website
ht

Email Address
EbhE

LAl Chik Fan (Chairman) ~#
HRIE (X))

CHENG Sui Sang ##

BIH A

George YUEN Kam Ho ##

REE

George YUEN Kam Ho (Chairman)*#
rmedE (ER)A

CHENG Sui Sang 4

BT AL

LAl Chik Fan ##

FBIEE AN

BDO Limited®

BEN RS EBBERRA

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

BB LEEZRITERAF

Banco Well Link, S.A.

SERITRMD AR AR]

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

RERTT (B8) BRAF

Bank of China Limited Macau Branch

PEIERTTIRMD BIR A FIRFID 1T

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Hong Kong Branch

RBBITRMDERARBAEDTT

China Everbright Bank Company Limited,
Hong Kong Branch

FEIERRITRODEBER AR EESIT

East West Bank

FEXRTT

Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited

BT RT (M) BRAF

Nanyang Conlmercial Bank, Limited

FFEERITARAF

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

RERITARARA

* In ar‘ghabet/ca/ order

* BFENEF

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM 11
Bermuda

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
=5 h A

1B %47107-1095%

FEF D

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong
/%EPF% “%AuBﬁBE”AT

BABET

SEABRISH

AP o7i2

1712-1716%% 4

00404

2,000 shares

2,000 f%
www.hsinchong.com

info@hcg.com.hk



HSINZTE
CHONG

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2579 8238

Fax: (852) 2516 6596

Website : www.hsinchong.com

EBNESE
BEHA107-1095%

FEHO

EiE  (852) 2579 8238
fEH : (852) 2516 6596
3k © www.hsinchong.com



	Cover
	Inside Cover
	Contents
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Profiles of Directors
	Profiles of the Group’s Key Personnel
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Major Projects
	Major Properties
	Corporate Information
	Back Cover

